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Item 1.

PART 1. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Consolidated Financial Statements

REDWOOD TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31, December 31,
2003 2002
(Unaudited)

(In thousands,
except share data)

ASSETS
Residential real estate loans $7,321,039 $6,215,179
Residential loan credit-enhancement securities 373,162 352,479
Commercial real estate loans 31,214 29,270
Securities portfolio 366,307 335,697
Cash and cash equivalents 42,882 39,169
Total Earning Assets 8,134,604 6,971,794
Restricted cash 11,816 11,755
Accrued interest receivable 22,262 19,087
Principal receivable 931 1,214
Other assets 2,450 3,922
Total Assets $8,172,063 $7,007,772
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Short-term debt $ 475,717 $ 99,714
Long-term debt, net 7,170,691 6,397,020
Accrued interest payable 5,772 5,267
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 23,007 19,768
Dividends payable 11,474 12,970
Total Liabilities 7,686,661 6,534,739
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share; Class B 9.74% Cumulative

Convertible 902,068 shares authorized, issued and outstanding ($28,645

aggregate liquidation preference) 26,517 26,517
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share; 49,097,932 shares authorized;

16,604,910 and 16,277,285 issued and outstanding 166 163
Additional paid-in capital 427,998 418,701
Accumulated other comprehensive income 68,077 69,146
Cumulative earnings 132,191 116,578
Cumulative distributions to stockholders (169,547) (158,072)

Total Stockholders’ Equity 485,402 473,033
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $8,172,063 $7,007,772

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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REDWOOD TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Interest Income

Residential real estate loans

Residential loan credit-enhancement securities
Commercial real estate loans

Securities portfolio

Cash and cash equivalents

Total interest income

Interest Expense

Short-term debt
Long-term debt

Total interest expense

Net Interest Income

Operating expenses

Provisions for excise and income taxes

Variable stock option expense

Net unrealized and realized market value gains (losses)

Net income before preferred dividend
Dividends on Class B preferred stock

Net Income Available to Common Stockholders

Earnings Per Share:

Basic Earnings Per Share:

Net income available to common stockholders
Diluted Earnings Per Share:

Net income available to common stockholders

Cash dividends per common share
Cash dividends per preferred share

equivalents:
Basic
Diluted

Three Months Ended

Weighted average shares of common stock and common stock

March 31,
2003 2002
(Unaudited)
(In thousands,
except share data)

$ 42,314 $ 14,125

13,693 6,695

816 1,274

4,192 8,514

110 108

61,125 30,716
(1,940) (4,941)
(34,993) (10,661)
(36,933) (15,602)

24,192 15,114
(6,472) (3,546)
(2,077) —
(948) (543)

918 875

15,613 11,900
(681) (681)

$ 14,932 $ 11,219

$ 0.91 $ 0.82
$ 0.88 $ 0.80

$ 0.65 $ 0.62

$ 0.755 $ 0.755

16,412,867 13,658,443

16,983,513 14,077,405

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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REDWOOD TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2003 2002
(Unaudited)

(In thousands,
except share data)

Net income before preferred dividend $15,613 $11,900
Other comprehensive income:
Net unrealized gain on assets available-for-sale 54 8,314
Net unrealized (loss) on cash flow hedges (1,123) —
Other comprehensive income (1,069) 8,314
Comprehensive income before preferred dividend 14,544 20,214
Dividends on Class B preferred stock (681) (681)
Comprehensive income $13,863 $19,533

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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REDWOOD TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Class B Accumulated Cumulative
Preferred Stock Common Stock Additional Other Distributions
Paid-in Comprehensive Cumulative to
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income Earnings Stockholders Total
(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share data)
Balance, December 31, 2002 902,068 $26,517 16,277,285 $ 163 $ 418,701 $ 69,146 $ 116,578 $ (158,072) $473,033
I — I — I
Comprehensive income:
Net income before preferred
dividend — — — — — — 15,613 — 15,613
Net unrealized gain on assets
available-for-sale — — — — — 54 — — 54
Net unrealized loss on interest
rate agreements available-
for-sale — — — — — (1,123) — — (1,123)
Total comprehensive income
before preferred dividend — — — — — — — — 14,544
Issuance of common stock — — 327,625 3 9,297 — — — 9,300
Dividends declared:
Preferred — — — — — — — (681) (681)
Common — — — — — — — (10,794) (10,794)
Balance, March 31, 2003 902,068 $26,517 16,604,910 $ 166 $ 427,998 $ 68,077 $ 132,191 $ (169,547) $485,402
I — I — I

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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REDWOOD TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income available to common stockholders before preferred
dividend

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Provision for credit losses
Non-cash stock compensation
Net unrealized and realized market value (gains) losses
Net (purchases) sales of mortgage loans held-for-sale
Principal payments on mortgage loans held-for-sale
Net (purchases) sales of mortgage securities trading
Principal payments on mortgage securities trading
Net (purchases) sales of interest rate agreements
Net change in:

Accrued interest receivable

Principal receivable

Other assets

Accrued interest payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
(Purchases) of mortgage loans held-for-investment
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held-for-investment
Principal payments on mortgage loans held-for-investment
(Purchases) of mortgage securities available-for-sale
Proceeds from sales of mortgage securities available-for-sale
Principal payments on mortgage securities available-for-sale
Net (increase) decrease in restricted cash

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Net borrowings on short-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
(Repayments) on long-term debt
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock
Dividends paid

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for taxes

Non-cash financing activity:
Dividends declared but not paid

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2003 2002
(Unaudited)
(In thousands)
$ 15613 $ 11,900
2,183 3,331
1,756 282
22 42
(918) (875)
— (417,251)
113 8,658
— (9,904)
— 53,149
(983) —
(3.175) 628
283 (1,434)
1,685 (991)
505 (345)
2,790 (48)
19,874 (352,858)
(1,355,723) (165)
87,928 —
152,693 89,140
(80,032) (92,052)
— 60,531
34,541 11,160
61) 1,065
(1,160,654) 69,679
376,003 325,702
1,009,594 8,354
(237,412) (87,831)
9,278 46,162
(12,970) (8,278)
1,144,493 284,109
3,713 930
39,169 9,030
$ 42,882 $ 9,960
I I
$ 36428 $ 15947
$ 1,019 $ —
$ 11,474 $ 9,748

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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REDWOOD TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2003
(Unaudited)

Note 1. Redwood Trust

Redwood Trust, Inc. (Redwood Trust) together with its subsidiaries is an investor in real estate loans. Our primary business is owning and credit enhancing high-quality
jumbo residential real estate loans nationwide. We also invest in diverse types of real estate loans through our real estate securities portfolio and our commercial loan portfolio.
Our primary source of revenue is monthly loan payments made by homeowners and property owners on their loans, and our primary expense is the cost of borrowed funds.
Redwood Trust is structured as a Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) and therefore the majority of our taxable net earnings (exclusive of income earned in taxable
subsidiaries) are distributed to shareholders as dividends.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2003 and 2002 are unaudited. The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the same basis as the annual consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, reflect all adjustments (which include only normal recurring adjustments)
necessary for a fair statement of our financial position, results of operations, and cash flows as of and for the period ended March 31, 2003 and 2002. These consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto are unaudited and should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements included in the Redwood Trust
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002. The results for the three months ended March 31, 2003 are not necessarily indicative of the expected results for the year
ended December 31, 2003.

The March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Redwood Trust and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Sequoia
Mortgage Funding Corporation, Acacia, and RWT Holdings, Inc. (Holdings), and Holdings’ wholly-owned subsidiaries including Sequoia Residential Funding, Inc. For
financial reporting purposes, references to Sequoia mean Sequoia Mortgage Funding Corporation and Sequoia Residential Funding, Inc. References to Acacia mean Acacia
CDO 1, LTD. References to the REIT mean Redwood Trust and Sequoia Mortgage Funding Corporation only.

Substantially all of the assets of Sequoia, consisting primarily of residential whole loans shown as part of Residential Real Estate Loans, are subordinated to support Long-
Term Debt in the form of collateralized mortgage-backed securities (Long-Term Debt). Substantially all of the assets of Acacia, consisting primarily of residential real estate
loan securities and other asset-backed securities shown as part of Residential Loan Credit-Enhancement Securities and Securities Portfolio, are subordinated to support Long-
Term Debt in the form of collateralized asset-backed securities (Long-Term Debt). The assets of Sequoia and Acacia are not available for the satisfaction of general claims of
Redwood Trust. Our exposure to loss on the assets, which are collateral for Long-Term Debt, is limited to our net equity investment in Sequoia and Acacia, as the Long-Term
Debt is non-recourse to Redwood Trust.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions with Sequoia and Holdings have been eliminated in the consolidation of Redwood Trust as of March 31, 2003.
Certain amounts for prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the March 31, 2003 presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of certain
revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from
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REDWOOD TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

those estimates. The primary estimates inherent in the accompanying consolidated financial statements are discussed below.

Fair Value. We estimate the fair value of our financial instruments using available market information and other appropriate valuation methodologies. The fair value of a
financial instrument, as defined by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, is the amount at
which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced liquidation sale. Our estimates are inherently subjective in
nature and involve matters of uncertainty and judgment to interpret relevant market and other data. Accordingly, amounts realized in actual sales may differ from the fair values
presented in Notes 3, 5, and 9.

Reserve for Credit Losses. A reserve for credit losses is maintained at a level deemed appropriate to provide for known credit losses, as well as estimated losses in our
earning assets. The reserve is based upon our assessment of various factors affecting our assets, including economic conditions, delinquency status, and credit protection. These
estimates are reviewed periodically and adjusted as deemed necessary. The credit reserve on real estate loans is increased by provisions, which are charged to income from
operations. Summary information regarding the Reserve for Credit Losses on real estate loans is presented in Note 4. Our actual credit losses may differ from those estimates
used to establish the reserve.

Individual real estate loans are considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. When a loan is impaired, impairment is measured based upon the present value of the expected future cash flows
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s observable market price, or the fair value of the underlying collateral.

Recognition of Interest Income and Impairment on Securities. The Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) issued EITF 99-20,Recognition of Interest Income and Impairment
on Purchased and Retained Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets, which established new income and impairment recognition standards for interests in certain
securitized assets. Under the provisions of EITF 99-20, the holder of a beneficial interest should recognize the excess of all estimated cash flows attributable to the beneficial
interest estimated at the acquisition date over the initial investment (the accretable yield) as interest income over the life of the beneficial interest using the effective yield
method. If the estimated cash flows change, then the holder of the beneficial interest should recalculate the accretable yield and adjust the periodic accretion recognized as
income prospectively. If the fair value of a beneficial interest has declined below its carrying amount, an other-than-temporary decline may be considered to exist if there has
been a decline in estimated future cash flows. In such cases, the difference between the carrying value and fair value of the beneficial interest is recorded as a mark-to-market
loss under Net Unrealized and Realized Market Value Gains (Losses) on our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Risks and Uncertainties

We take certain risks inherent in financial institutions, including, but not limited to, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, prepayment risk, market value risk, and
capital risk. In addition, there are several risks and uncertainties specific to our business. We seek to actively manage such risks while also providing our stockholders an
appropriate rate of return for risks taken. There can be no assurances that such risks and uncertainties are adequately provided for in our financial statements. We have prepared
these financial statements in accordance with GAAP and in an effort to properly present the risks taken.

Earning Assets

Our earning assets consist primarily of residential and commercial real estate loans and securities (Earning Assets). Real estate loans and securities pledged as collateral
under borrowing arrangements in
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REDWOOD TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

which the secured party has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge the collateral have been classified as “pledged” as discussed inNote 3. Coupon interest is
recognized as revenue when earned according to the terms of the loans and securities and when, in our opinion, it is collectible. Purchase discounts and premiums relating to
Earning Assets are amortized into interest income over the lives of the Earning Assets using the effective yield method based on projected cash flows over the life of the asset.
Gains or losses on the sale of Earning Assets are based on the specific identification method. It is our intention to hold all of our loans and securities to maturity.

Real Estate Loans: Held-for-Investment

Real estate loans held-for-investment are carried at their unpaid principal balance adjusted for net unamortized premiums or discounts and net of any allowance for credit
losses. All of our Sequoia loans that are pledged or subordinated to support the Long-Term Debt are classified as held-for-investment. Effective July 1, 2002, we classified all
existing and new residential real estate loans acquired for future securitization through Sequoia as held-for-investment. Commercial real estate loans, for which we have secured
financing through the term of the loan or we otherwise have the intent and the ability to hold to maturity, are classified as held-for-investment. While we do not sell real estate
loans as part of our normal business operations, loans may be sold periodically to facilitate calls on Long-Term Debt through our Sequoia program.

Real Estate Loans: Held-for-Sale

Real estate loans held-for-sale (residential and commercial) are carried at the lower of original cost or market value determined on an individual basis. Any lower of cost or
market adjustments on these loans are recognized in Net Unrealized and Realized Market Value Gains (Losses) on our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Real estate
owned (REO) assets are included in Real Estate Loans held-for-sale.

Securities: Trading

Securities classified as trading are recorded at their estimated fair market value. Unrealized gains and losses on these securities are recognized as a component of Net
Unrealized and Realized Market Value Gains (Losses) on our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Securities: Available-for-Sale

Securities available-for-sale are carried at their estimated fair value. Current period unrealized gains and losses are reported as a component of Other Comprehensive
Income in Stockholders’ Equity with cumulative unrealized gains and losses classified as Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Stockholders’ Equity. Unrealized losses
on these securities as a result of EITF 99-20 adjustments are reported as a component of Net Unrealized and Realized Market Value Gains (Losses) in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

Interest income on loans and securities is calculated using the effective yield method based on projected cash flows over the life of the asset. Yields on each asset vary as a
function of credit results, prepayment rates, and interest rates. For Residential Loan Credit-Enhancement Securities purchased at a discount, a portion of the discount for each
security may be designated as a credit reserve, with the remaining portion of the discount designated to be amortized into income over the life of the security using the effective
yield method. If future credit losses exceed our expectations, or credit losses occur more quickly than expected, or prepayment rates occur more slowly than expected, the yield
over the remaining life of the security may be adjusted downwards or we may take a mark-to-market earnings charge to write down the basis in the security to current market
value under the provisions of EITF 99-20. If future credit losses are less than our prior estimate, or credit losses occur later than expected, or prepayment rates are faster than
expected, the yield over the remaining life of the security will generally be adjusted upwards over time.
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REDWOOD TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash may include principal and interest payments on real estate loans or securities held as collateral for Long-Term Debt, cash pledged as collateral on certain
interest rate agreements, and cash held from borrowers until certain loan agreement requirements have been met. Any corresponding liability for cash held from borrowers is
included in Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Other Assets

Other Assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets include fixed assets, prepaid interest, and other prepaid expenses.

Interest Rate Agreements

We maintain an overall interest rate risk management strategy that incorporates the use of derivative interest rate agreements for a variety of reasons, including minimizing
significant fluctuations in earnings or market values on certain assets that may be caused by interest rate volatility. Interest rate agreements we use as part of our interest rate
risk management strategy include interest rate options, swaps, options on swaps, futures contracts, options on futures contracts, and options on forward purchases (collectively
Interest Rate Agreements). On the date an Interest Rate Agreement is entered into, we designate the Interest Rate Agreement as (1) a hedge of the fair value of a recognized asset
or liability or of an unrecognized firm commitment (fair value hedge), (2) a hedge of a forecasted transaction or of the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to
arecognized asset or liability (cash flow hedge), or (3) held for trading (trading instruments).

Prior to the fourth quarter of 2002, we elected not to seek hedge accounting under SFAS No. 133,4ccounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, for any of
our Interest Rate Agreements. Hedges were designated as trading and were recorded at their estimated fair market value with changes in their fair value reported in current-
period earnings in Net Unrealized and Realized Market Value Gains (Losses) on our Consolidated Statements of Operations. In the fourth quarter of 2002, we elected hedge
accounting under SFAS No. 133 for certain of our Interest Rate Agreements. Accordingly, specific instruments are accounted for as cash flow hedges, are recorded at their
estimated fair market value, and changes in their fair value are generally reported in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Any
ineffective portions of the cash flow hedges are included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations (see Note 5).

Net premiums on Interest Rate Agreements are amortized as a component of net interest income over the effective period of the Interest Rate Agreement using an
appropriate method. The income or expense related to Interest Rate Agreements is recognized on an accrual basis and is included in interest expense on Long-Term Debt in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations (see Note 5).

We formally document all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as our risk-management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. This process includes linking all derivatives that are designated as fair value or cash flow hedges to (1) specific assets and liabilities on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets or (2) specific firm commitments or forecasted transactions. We also formally assess (both at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis) whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions have been highly effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows of

10




Table of Contents

REDWOOD TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

hedged items and whether those derivatives may be expected to remain highly effective in future periods. When it is determined that a derivative is not (or has ceased to be)
highly effective as a hedge, we discontinue hedge accounting prospectively, as discussed below.

We discontinue hedge accounting prospectively when (1) we determine that the derivative is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows of a
hedged item (including hedged items such as firm commitments or forecasted transactions); (2) the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised; (3) it is no longer
probable that the forecasted transaction will occur; (4) a hedged firm commitment no longer meets the definition of a firm commitment; or (5) we determine that designating the
derivative as a hedging instrument is no longer appropriate.

When hedge accounting is discontinued due to our determination that the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective fair value hedge, we will continue to carry the
derivative on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at its fair value but cease to adjust the hedged asset or liability for changes in fair value. When hedge accounting is discontinued
because the hedged item no longer meets the definition of a firm commitment, we will continue to carry the derivative on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at its fair value,
removing from the Consolidated Balance Sheets any asset or liability that was recorded to recognize the firm commitment and recording it as a gain or loss in current-period
earnings. When we discontinue hedge accounting because it is no longer probable that the forecasted transaction will occur in the originally expected period, the gain or loss on
the derivative remains in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income and is reclassified into earnings when the forecasted transaction affects earnings. However, if it is probable
that a forecasted transaction will not occur by the end of the originally specified time period or within an additional two-month period of time thereafter, the gains and losses that
were in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income will be recognized immediately in earnings. In all situations in which hedge accounting is discontinued and the derivative
remains outstanding, we will carry the derivative at its fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, recognizing changes in the fair value in current-period earnings.

Debt

Short-Term Debt and Long-Term Debt are carried at their unpaid principal balances net of any unamortized discount or premium and any unamortized bond issuance costs.
The amortization of any discount or premium is recognized as an adjustment to interest expense using the effective yield method based on the repayment schedule of the related
borrowings. Bond issuance costs incurred in connection with the issuance of Long-Term Debt are deferred and amortized over the estimated lives of the Long-Term Debt using
the effective yield method, adjusted for the effects of actual principal paydown rates.

Taxes

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and the corresponding provisions of state law. In order to qualify as a REIT, we must
distribute at least 90% of our annual taxable REIT income (exclusive of taxable income of taxable subsidiaries) to stockholders within the time frame set forth in the tax rules
and meet certain other requirements. If these requirements are met, we generally will not be subject to Federal or state income taxation at the corporate level with respect to the
taxable REIT income we distribute to our stockholders. In 2003, we anticipate retaining some of our taxable REIT income (up to 10%) and paying Corporate level income taxes
on this retained income. Accordingly, we have made a provision for income taxes in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. In prior years, no income tax provision was
necessary.

Under the Code, a dividend declared by a REIT in October, November, or December of a calendar year and payable to shareholders of record as of a specified date in such
year, will be deemed to have been paid by the REIT and received by the shareholders on the last day of that calendar year, provided the dividend is actually paid before
February 1st of the following calendar year, and provided that the REIT has any
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REDWOOD TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

remaining undistributed taxable REIT income on the record date. Therefore, the dividends declared in the fourth quarter 2002, which were paid in January 2003, are considered
taxable income to stockholders in 2002, the year declared.

Taxable earnings of Holdings and its subsidiaries are subject to state and Federal income taxes at the applicable statutory rates. Holdings provides for deferred income
taxes, if any, to reflect the estimated future tax effects under the provisions of SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. Under this pronouncement, deferred income taxes,
if any, reflect the estimated future tax effects of temporary differences between the amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and such amounts as
measured by tax laws and regulations. See Note 8 for further discussion on income taxes at Holdings.

To the extent a REIT’s distributions declared before calendar year-end and paid on or before January 31 of the following calendar year are less than 85% of its taxable
REIT income in the calendar year plus 100% of the undistributed taxable REIT income from prior calendar years, a REIT incurs a 4% excise tax on the shortfall. For 2003, we
believe that our dividend distributions declared before calendar year-end and distributed on or before January 31, 2004 will be less than 85% of taxable REIT income for the
2003 calendar year and the prior year’s undistributed taxable REIT income. Therefore, we will be required to incur a 4% excise tax provision on the shortfall. Accordingly, we
have made a provision for excise tax in our Consolidated Statements of Operations (see Note §).

Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted net income per share is computed by dividing the net income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares and
common equivalent shares outstanding during the period. The common equivalent shares are calculated using the treasury stock method, which assumes that all dilutive
common stock equivalents are exercised and the funds generated by the exercise are used to buy back outstanding common stock at the average market price during the
reporting period.
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The following table provides reconciliations of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted net income per share computations.

Three Months Ended March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands,
except share data)

Numerator:
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per share —
Net income before preferred dividend $ 15,613 $ 11,900
Cash dividends on Class B preferred stock (681) (681)
Basic and Diluted EPS — Net income available to common stockholders $ 14,932 $ 11,219
I I
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per share —
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period 16,412,867 13,658,443
Net effect of dilutive stock options 570,646 418,962
Denominator for diluted earnings per share 16,983,513 14,077,405
I I
Basic Earnings Per Share:
Net income per share $ 0.91 $ 0.82
I I
Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Net income per share $ 0.88 $ 0.80
I I

As of March 31, 2003 and 2002, the number of common equivalent shares issued by Redwood Trust that were anti-dilutive totaled 380,372 and 390,662 respectively.

Comprehensive Income

Current period unrealized gains and losses on assets available-for-sale are reported as a component of Comprehensive Income on our Consolidated Statements of
Stockholders’ Equity with cumulative unrealized gains and losses classified as Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Stockholders” Equity. As of March 31, 2003 and
December 31, 2002, Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income consisted of net unrealized gains and losses on both real estate loan assets available-for-sale and derivatives
classified as cash flow hedges. In prior years, the only component of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income was net unrealized gains and losses on real estate loan assets
available-for-sale.

Stock-Based Compensation

As of March 31, 2003, we had one stock-based employee compensation plan and one employee stock purchase plan, which are described more fully inNote 10. We
account for the plans under the recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations. Under
these provisions we do not include any stock-based employee compensation cost in net income on our stock-based compensation plan, as all options granted under the plans
have an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. We do not include any stock-based employee compensation cost in net
income on our employee stock purchase plan because the plan is deemed non-compensatory under APB Opinion No. 25.
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In accordance with the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure — An Amendment of FASB

Statement No. 123, the following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if we had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to stock-based employee compensation. For further discussion of SFAS No. 123, see Note 10.

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands,
except share data)

Net income, as reported $14,932 $11,219
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair

value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects (74) (124)
Pro forma net income $14,858 $11,095

Earnings per share:

Basic — as reported $ 091 $ 0.82
Basic — pro forma $ 091 $ 081
Diluted — as reported $ 0.88 $ 0.80
Diluted — pro forma $ 087 $ 0.79

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46,Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51 (FIN 46). This Interpretation
provides guidance on when a company should include in its financial statements the assets, liabilities, and activities of a variable interest entity (VIE). Under FIN 46, a VIE
must be consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the VIE’s activities or entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s residual
returns or both. We have not identified any current interests that we believe meet the VIE criteria of FIN 46 and therefore no additional consolidation or disclosures are
required.

Note 3. Earning Assets

As of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, Earning Assets generally consisted of investments in adjustable-rate, hybrid, and fixed-rate residential and commercial real
estate loans and securities. Hybrid loans have an initial fixed coupon rate for three to ten years followed by annual adjustments. The original maturity of the majority of our
residential real estate assets is twenty-five to thirty years. The actual amount of principal outstanding is subject to change based on the prepayments of the underlying loans. The
original maturity of our commercial real estate loans is from two to ten years.

For the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, the annualized effective yield after taking into account the amortization income or expense due to discounts and
premiums and associated credit expenses on the Earning Assets was 3.31% and 4.92%, respectively, based on the reported carrying value of the assets. For the three months
ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, the average balance of Earning Assets was $7.4 billion and $2.5 billion, respectively.
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As of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, Earning Assets consisted of the following:

Residential Real Estate Loans

March 31, 2003

December 31, 2002

Held-for- Held-for- Held-for- Held-for-
Sale Investment Total Sale Investment Total
(In thousands)
Current Face $ 836 $7,296,679 $7,297,515 $ 918 $6,189,756 $6,190,674
Unamortized Discount (12) — (12) (13) — (13)
Unamortized Premium 1 33,531 33,532 1 32,788 32,789
Amortized Cost 825 7,330,210 7,331,035 906 6,222,544 6,223,450
Reserve for Credit Losses — (9,996) (9,996) — (8,271) (8,271)
Carrying Value $ 825 $7,320,214 $7,321,039 $ 906 $6,214,273 $6,215,179

As of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, residential real estate loans with a net carrying value of $452 million and $103 million, respectively, were pledged as
collateral under short-term borrowing arrangements to third parties. As of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, residential real estate loans with a net carrying value of
$6.9 billion and $6.1 billion, respectively, were pledged as collateral under long-term borrowing arrangements through our Sequoia program.

For the three months ended March 31, 2003, we recognized net unrealized and realized market value gains of $0.7 million from our Residential Real Estate Loans through
our Consolidated Statements of Operations due to the call of Sequoia Mortgage Trust 3 and the sale of the remaining whole loans.

Residential Loan Credit-Enhancement Securities

Current Face
Unamortized Discount

Portion of Discount Designated as a Credit Reserve

Amortized Cost
Gross Unrealized Gains
Gross Unrealized Losses

Carrying Value

March 31, 2003
Securities
Available-for-Sale

December 31, 2002
Securities
Available-for-Sale

(In thousands)
$ 614,111
(84,648)
(234,060)

295,403
82,731
(4,972)

$ 373,162

$ 559,186
(58,578)
(224,891)

275,717
79,867
(3,105)

$ 352,479

We credit enhance pools of high-quality jumbo residential real estate loans by acquiring subordinated securities in third-party securitizations. The subordinated interests in a
securitization transaction bear the majority of the credit risk for the securitized pool of loans, thus allowing the more senior securitized interests to qualify for investment-grade
ratings and to be sold in the capital markets. We therefore commit capital that partially “guarantees” or “credit enhances” the credit reserve of a securitized pool of real estate

loans.

Our Residential Loan Credit-Enhancement Securities are first loss, second loss, and third loss securities. First loss securities are generally allocated actual credit losses on
the entire underlying pool of loans up to a maximum of the principal amount of the first loss security. First loss securities provide credit-enhancement principal protection from
the initial losses in the underlying pool for the second loss, third loss, and more senior securities. Any first loss securities that are owned by others and that are junior to our

second and third loss
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securities provide our interests with some protection from losses, as they serve as external credit enhancement. We provided some level of credit enhancement on $61 billion
and $59 billion of loans securitized by third parties as of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively.

When we purchase residential credit-enhancement interests, a portion of the discount for each security may be designated as a credit reserve, with the remaining portion of
the discount designated to be amortized into income over the life of the security. Interest income on loans and securities is calculated using the effective yield method based on
projected cash flows over the life of the asset. Yields on each asset vary as a function of credit results, prepayment rates, and interest rates. As of March 31, 2003 and
December 31, 2002, we designated $234 million and $225 million, respectively, as a credit reserve on our residential credit-enhancement interests. The credit reserves are
specific to each residential credit-enhancement interest.

If future credit losses exceed our prior expectations, or credit losses occur more quickly than expected, or prepayment rates occur more slowly than expected, the yield over
the remaining life of the security may be adjusted downwards or we may take a mark-to-market earnings charge to write down the basis in the security to current market value
under the provisions of EITF 99-20. If future credit losses are less than the our prior estimate, or credit losses occur later than expected, or prepayment rates are faster than
expected, the yield over the remaining life of the security may be adjusted upwards over time. For the three months ended March 31, 2003, we recognized net unrealized and
realized market value losses of $0.6 million from our Residential Loan Credit-Enhancement Securities under the provisions of EITF 99-20. For the three months ended
March 31, 2002, we did not recognize any losses under the provisions of EITF 99-20.

As of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, no Residential Loan Credit-Enhancement Securities were pledged as collateral under short-term borrowing arrangements to
third parties. As of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, Residential Loan Credit-Enhancement Securities with a net carrying value of $159 million and $167 million,

respectively, were pledged as collateral under long-term securitization. (see Note 7).

Commercial Real Estate Loans

March 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Held-for- Held-for- Held-for- Held-for-
Sale Investment Total Sale Investment Total

(In thousands)

Current Face $19,107 $13,116 $32,223 $19,139 $11,111 $30,250
Unamortized Discount (896) (113) (1,009) (897) (83) (980)
Carrying Value $18,211 $13,003 $31,214 $18,242 $11,028 $29,270

As of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, no commercial real estate loans were pledged as collateral under short-term borrowing arrangements to third parties. As of
both March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, commercial mortgage loans held-for-investment with a net carrying value of $10 million were pledged as collateral under long-
term borrowing arrangements to third parties (see Note 7).

16




Table of Contents

REDWOOD TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Securities Portfolio

March 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Securities Securities
Available-for-Sale Available-for-Sale
(In thousands)
Current Face $ 370,187 $ 339,095
Unamortized Discount (5,740) (5,385)
Unamortized Premium 7,337 6,523
Amortized Cost 371,784 340,233
Gross Unrealized Gains 2,854 1,520
Gross Unrealized Losses (8,331) (6,056)
Carrying Value $ 366,307 $ 335,697
I I

For the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, we recognized net unrealized and realized market value losses of $0.1 million and net unrealized and realized market
value gains of $0.9 million, respectively, from our securities portfolio through our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

As of March 31, 2003, securities portfolio assets with a net carrying value of $41 million were pledged as collateral under a warehouse agreement (sedVote 6). At
December 31, 2002, no securities portfolio assets were pledged as collateral under short-term borrowing arrangements to third parties. As of March 31, 2003 and December 31,
2002, securities portfolio assets with a net carrying value of $277 million and $285 million, respectively, were pledged as collateral under long-term securitization (see Note 7).

Note 4. Reserve for Credit Losses

The Reserve for Credit Losses is for Residential Real Estate Loans held-for-investment and is reflected as a component of Earning Assets on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets. The following table summarizes the activity in the Reserve for Credit Losses.

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands)

Balance at beginning of period $ 8,271 $ 5,199

Provision for credit losses 1,756 282

Charge-offs 31 —

Balance at end of period $ 9,996 $ 5,481
Note 5. Interest Rate Agreements

We generally attempt to structure our balance sheet to address many of the interest rate risks inherent in our specific assets and liabilities. We may enter into certain Interest
Rate Agreements from time to time with the objective of matching the interest rate characteristics of our assets and liabilities. We report our Interest Rate Agreements at fair
value. As of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, the fair value of our Interest Rate Agreements was negative $4.0 million and negative $3.8 million respectively, and is
included in Other Assets and Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

We may enter into Interest Rate Agreements consisting of interest rate caps, interest rate floors, interest rate futures, and options on interest rate futures, interest rate swaps,
and other types of hedging instruments.
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Currently, we may designate these as economic hedges or cash flow hedges. Cash flow hedges arise when we are hedging our variable interest rate debt payments associated
with certain existing and/or future liabilities.

Interest Rate Options purchased, which include caps and call corridors (Options), are agreements that transfer, modify, or reduce interest rate risk in exchange for the
payment of a premium when a contract is initiated. Purchased interest rate cap agreements provide cash flows to us to the extent that a specific interest rate index exceeds a fixed
rate. Purchased interest rate corridor agreements provide cash flows to us to the extent that a specific interest rate falls between two fixed rates. Our credit risk on the purchased
Options is limited to the carrying value of the Option agreements.

Interest Rate Swaps (Swaps) are agreements in which a series of interest rate flows are exchanged over a prescribed period. The notional amount on which the interest
payments are based is not exchanged. Most of our Swaps involve the exchange of one fixed interest payment for a floating interest payment based on a different index. Most of
the swaps require that we provide collateral, such as mortgage securities or cash, to the counterparty. Should the counterparty fail to return the collateral, we would be at risk for
the fair market value of that asset.

Interest Rate Futures are contracts for the delivery of securities or cash in which the seller agrees to deliver on a specified future date, a specified instrument or cash
equivalent, at a specified price or yield. Under these agreements, if we have sold (bought) the futures, we will generally receive additional cash flows if interest rates rise (fall).
Conversely, we will generally pay additional cash flows if interest rates fall (rise). The credit risk on futures is limited by the requirement that the exchange and its members
make good on obligations of any member that fails to perform.

Prior to the fourth quarter of 2002, we treated all of our hedges as trading instruments and recorded any changes in market values through Net Unrealized and Realized
Market Value Gains (Losses) on our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Beginning with the fourth quarter of 2002, certain of the hedges we enter into may be deemed
economic hedges and will be accounted for as trading instruments. During the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, we did not recognize any net market value gains or
losses on these hedges.

The hedging instruments we owned as of March 31, 2003, which are accounted for as trading instruments, are described in more detail below.

As of March 31, 2003, we did not have any interest rate caps outstanding. At December 31, 2002, we had one interest rate cap with a strike rate based on the one-month
London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) interest rate of 7.00% expiring in 2003. At December 31, 2002, the notional amount of the interest rate cap totalled $5 million.

We had a pair of generally offsetting interest rate swaps between Redwood Trust, Sequoia, and a third party financial institution that had gross notional amounts of
$365 million as of March 31, 2003 and $378 million as of December 31, 2002.

As of March 31, 2003, we had no Five-Year Treasury Futures contracts outstanding. At December 31, 2002, we had sold twelve Five-Year Treasury Futures contracts with
gross notional amounts of $1.2 million. All Five-Year Treasury Futures contracts had expiration dates in 2003 as of December 31, 2002.

In the fourth quarter of 2002, we began electing cash flow hedge accounting under SFAS No. 133 for certain of our Interest Rate Agreements. The critical terms of the cash
flow hedging instruments are similar to the hedged transactions. The changes in value of the derivatives are intended to offset the changes in variable rate debt payments for up
to ten years. Accordingly, specific instruments are accounted for as cash flow hedges, are recorded at their estimated fair market value, and changes in their fair value are
generally reported in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Any ineffective portions of the cash flow hedges are included in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations. For the three months
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ended March 31, 2003, we recorded a minimal amount of ineffectiveness in these hedges, which is included in Interest Expense in our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

For our cash flow hedges we include in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income on our Consolidated Balance Sheets the changes in fair value of these hedges until the
hedge transaction occurs. When the hedge transaction occurs we reclassify the related gain or loss on the cash flow hedge to revenue or expense. In the event the underlying
hedge transaction does not occur, we reclassify the gain or loss on the related cash flow hedge from our Consolidated Balance Sheets to our Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

In March 2003, a portion of our three-month Eurodollar futures contracts expired and the effective period for the hedged transactions commenced. This caused a portion of
our Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income to be reclassified to our Consolidated Statements of Operations. For the three months ended March 31, 2003, we reclassified
$0.1 million from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income on our Consolidated Balance Sheets to Interest Expense on Long-Term Debt in our Consolidated Statements of
Operations. As of March 31, 2003, the balance of Other Comprehensive Income related to net unrealized and realized market value losses on our Interest Rate Agreements was
$4.2 million, of which $0.5 million related to expired Eurodollar futures contracts. The $0.5 million related to these futures contracts will be reclassified to Interest Expense on
Long-Term Debt on our Consolidated Statements of Operations during the second quarter of 2003, as that is the period hedged. We did not have any cash flow hedges that
expired or matured during the year ended December 31, 2002. Consequently, at December 31, 2002, there was no existing portion of the balance in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income that was scheduled to be amortized into income or expense.

The following tables depict the activity for the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 and balances as of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 for hedges
accounted for under SFAS No. 133.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Other Comprehensive Income

March 31, 2003 December 31, 2002

(In thousands)
Realized — Closed Transactions:

Realized net gain (loss) included in other comprehensive income $ (546) —
Recognized but Unrealized — Open Transactions:
Unrealized gain (loss) remaining in other comprehensive income (3,659) $ (3,082)

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
March 31, 2003 March 31, 2002
Net Unrealized Net Unrealized
and Realized and Realized
Interest Market Value Interest Market Value
Expense Gains (Losses) Expense Gains (Losses)

(In thousands)
Realized — Closed Transactions:

Realized net gain (loss) reclassified from other comprehensive income $ (84 — — —
Net ineffective portion of hedges — $ 8) — _
Recognized but Unrealized — Open Transactions:

Net ineffective portion of hedges 2) — — _

The hedging instruments we owned as of March 31, 2003, which are accounted for as cash flow hedging instruments, are described in more detail below.
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As of March 31, 2003, we had three interest rate corridors with strike rates based on the one-month and six-month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) interest rate of
11.175%, 11.216%, and 11.231%. These corridors are effective for LIBOR interest rates at or below 12.05%, 12.09%, and 12.11%, and all had expiration dates in 2008. The
notional balance of these interest rate corridors was $2.0 billion as of March 31, 2003. At December 31, 2002, we had one interest rate corridor with a strike rate based on the
one-month LIBOR interest rate of 11.175%. This corridor was effective for LIBOR interest rates at or below 12.05%, and had an expiration date in 2008. The notional balance
of the interest rate corridor was $1.1 billion at December 31, 2002. If the one-month LIBOR interest rate rises above the strike rate, the interest rate corridors allow Redwood
Trust to receive cash payments on the notional balance on the difference between the current interest rate and the strike rate up to the maximum interest rate.

As of March 31, 2003, we had nine interest rate swap agreements with third party financial institutions; in these agreements we pay a fixed interest rate and receive three-
month LIBOR. These nine interest rate swap agreements had notional amounts totalling $155 million as of March 31, 2003, and had maturities ranging from two to ten years.
At December 31, 2002, we had six interest rate swap agreements with third party financial institutions; in these agreements Redwood Trust pays a fixed interest rate and
receives three-month LIBOR. These six interest rate swap agreements had notional amounts totaling $148 million at December 31, 2002, and had maturities ranging from two
to ten years.

As of March 31, 2003, we had sold 2,000 three-month Eurodollar futures contracts with gross notional amounts of $2.0 billion. As of March 31, 2003, all futures contracts
had expiration dates in 2003. As of December 31, 2002, we had sold 1,000 three-month Eurodollar futures contracts with gross notional amounts of $1.0 billion. As of
December 31, 2002, all futures contracts had expiration dates in 2003.

The following table summarizes the aggregate notional amounts of all of our Interest Rate Agreements as well as the credit exposure related to these instruments as of
March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002. The credit exposure reflects the fair market value of any cash and collateral of Redwood Trust held by counterparties. As of March 31,
2003 and December 31, 2002, the swaps between Redwood Trust and various third party financial institutions required Redwood Trust to provide collateral in the form of cash
of $7.3 million and $6.6 million, respectively. Sequoia did not hold collateral of the third party financial institution for its swap as of March 31, 2003 or December 31, 2002.
The cash and collateral held by counterparties are included in Restricted Cash on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Notional Amounts Credit Exposure

March 31, December 31, March 31, December 31,
2003 2002 2003 2002

(In thousands)

Interest Rate Caps Purchased — $ 5,000 — —
Interest Rate Corridors Purchased $ 2,010,287 1,096,899 — —
Eurodollar Futures Sold (2,000,000) (1,000,000) $ 1,716 $ 876
Treasury Futures Sold — (1,200) — 28
Interest Rate Swaps 520,369 525,971 7,251 6,600

In general, we incur credit risk to the extent that the counterparties to the Interest Rate Agreements do not perform their obligations under the Interest Rate Agreements. If
one of the counterparties does not perform, we may not receive the cash to which we would otherwise be entitled under the Interest Rate Agreement. In order to mitigate this
risk, we only enter into Interest Rate Agreements that are either a) transacted on a national exchange or b) transacted with counterparties that are either i) designated by the
U.S. Department of the Treasury as a primary government dealer, ii) affiliates of primary government dealers, or iii) rated BBB or higher. Furthermore, we generally enter into
Interest Rate Agreements with several different counterparties in order to diversify our credit risk exposure.
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Note 6. Short-Term Debt

We enter into repurchase agreements, bank borrowings, and other forms of collateralized short-term borrowings (collectively Short-Term Debt) to finance a portion of our
Earning Assets.

As of March 31, 2003, we had $476 million of Short-Term Debt outstanding with a weighted-average borrowing rate of 1.96% and a weighted-average remaining maturity
of 154 days. This debt was collateralized with $452 million of Residential Real Estate Loans and $41 million of Securities Portfolio securities. At December 31, 2002, we had
$100 million of Short-Term Debt outstanding with a weighted-average borrowing rate of 1.94% and a weighted-average remaining maturity of 162 days. This debt was
collateralized with $103 million of Residential Real Estate Loans.

As of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, the Short-Term Debt had the following remaining maturities:

March 31, December 31,
2003 2002

(In thousands)

Within 30 days $ 3,054 —
31 to 90 days 40,700 $ 5,645
Over 90 days 431,963 94,069
Total Short-Term Debt $475,717 $ 99,714

For the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, the average balance of Short-Term Debt was $0.4 billion and $0.9 billion, respectively, with a weighted-average
interest cost of 1.94% and 2.12%, respectively. The maximum balance outstanding for the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 was $0.8 billion and $1.1 billion,
respectively. Through March 31, 2003, we were in compliance with all of our debt covenants for all of our short-term borrowing arrangements and credit facilities.

At both March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, we had uncommitted facilities with credit lines in excess of $4 billion for financing AAA and AA-rated residential real
estate securities. It is our intention to renew committed and uncommitted facilities as needed, as well as pursue additional facilities and other types of financings.

At both March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, we had short-term facilities with three Wall Street Firms totaling $1.4 billion to fund Residential Real Estate Loans. As of
March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, we had borrowings under these facilities of $436 million and $100 million, respectively. Borrowings under these facilities bear interest
based on a specified margin over the one-month LIBOR interest rate. As of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, the weighted average borrowing rate under these facilities
was 1.84% and 1.94%, respectively. These facilities expire between June 2003 and April 2004. We will likely seek to renew these facilities and do not anticipate any problems
in doing so at this time.

In January 2003, we entered into a Warehouse Agreement and an Engagement Letter with a Wall Street firm designed to enable us to pursue the issuance of a collateralized
debt obligation (CDO). This agreement expired in May 2003 upon the issuance of a CDO.

As of March 31, 2003, we had four master repurchase agreements with one bank and two Wall Street firms totaling $170 million. At December 31, 2002, we had five
master repurchase agreements with two banks and two Wall Street firms totaling $200 million. These facilities are intended to finance residential securities with lower-than-
investment-grade ratings. In addition to these committed facilities, we may also finance securities with lower-than-investment-grade ratings through non-committed borrowing
arrangements. As of both March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, we had no borrowings under these committed and non-committed facilities. Borrowings under these
facilities bear interest based on a specified margin over the one-
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month LIBOR interest rate. Two of the committed facilities expire in September and October 2003. A third committed facility has a six-month term that is extended every six
months. Unless either party provides notice, the expiration on this third facility remains at six months. The termination date for the fourth committed facility is in November
2003; however, certain funding transactions could have termination dates after this date. We may not seek to renew all of these facilities as they expire.

Note 7. Long-Term Debt

Through securitizations we issue Residential Long-Term Debt in the form of collateralized mortgage-backed securities secured by Residential Real Estate Loans
(Residential Bond Collateral). The Residential Bond Collateral consists primarily of adjustable-rate and hybrid, conventional, 25 or 30-year residential mortgage loans secured
by first liens on one to four-family residential properties. All Residential Bond Collateral is pledged to secure repayment of the related Residential Long-Term Debt obligation.
As required by the governing documents relating to the Residential Long-Term Debt, the Residential Bond Collateral is held in the custody of trustees. Trustees collect principal
and interest payments (less servicing and related fees) on the Residential Bond Collateral and make corresponding principal and interest payments on the Residential Long-Term
Debt. Obligations under the Residential Long-Term Debt are payable solely from the Residential Bond Collateral and are otherwise non-recourse to Redwood Trust.

Each series of Residential Long-Term Debt consists of various classes of securities at variable rates of interest. The maturity of each class is directly affected by the rate of
principal prepayments on the related Residential Bond Collateral. Each series is also subject to redemption according to the specific terms of the respective governing
documents. As a result, the actual maturity of any class of a Residential Long-Term Debt series is likely to occur earlier than its stated maturity. During the three months ended
March 31, 2003, we issued $1.0 billion in Residential Long-Term Debt through Sequoia to fund Residential Real Estate Loans. During the three months ended March 31, 2002,
we did not issue any Residential Long-Term Debt through Sequoia to fund Residential Real Estate Loans.

As of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, we had $455 million and $473 million, respectively, of Long-Term Debt secured by residential real estate loan securities
and other asset-backed securities with stated maturities between 2018 and 2039. The maturity of this Long-Term Debt is directly affected by the rate of principal prepayments
on the related Residential Mortgage Securities. As a result, the actual maturity of any class of this Long-Term Debt is likely to occur earlier than its stated maturity.

As of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, our Commercial Long-Term Debt is secured by one adjustable-rate Commercial Real Estate Loan with a maturity date in
2003, which is secured by a first lien on the related commercial real estate property reported on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as Real Estate Loans held-for-investment.

Our exposure to loss on the Residential Bond Collateral and the Commercial Loan Collateral is limited to our net investment, as the Residential and Commercial Long-
Term Debt are non-recourse to Redwood Trust.
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The components of the collateral for our Long-Term Debt are summarized as follows:

March 31, December 31,
2003 2002

(In thousands)
Residential Real Estate Loans:

Residential Real Estate Loans held-for-sale $ 97 $ 174
Residential Real Estate Loans held-for-investment 6,867,050 6,065,582
Residential Real Estate Loan Securities available-for-sale 436,487 454,965
Restricted cash 1,706 3,118
Accrued interest receivable 18,723 15,900
Total Residential Collateral $7,324,063 $6,539,739
Commercial Real Estate Loans held-for-investment $ 9,643 $ 9,662
Total Long-Term Debt Collateral $7,333,706 $6,549,401
I I

The components of the Long-Term Debt as of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 along with other selected information are summarized below:

March 31, December 31,
2003 2002

(In thousands)

Residential Long-Term Debt $ 7,179,644 $ 6,404,720
Commercial Long-Term Debt 8,267 8,283
Unamortized premium on Long-Term Debt 4,722 5,184
Deferred bond issuance costs (21,942) (21,167)
Total Long-Term Debt $ 7,170,691 $ 6,397,020
Range of weighted-average interest rates, by series — residential 1.61% to 5.77% 1.74% to0 5.73%
Stated residential maturities 2018-2039 2018-2039
Number of residential series 14 14
Weighted-average interest rates — commercial 8.63% 8.63%
Stated commercial maturities 2003 2003
Number of commercial series 1 1

For the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, the average balance of Residential Long-Term Debt was $6.6 billion and $1.3 billion, respectively. For the three
months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, the average effective interest cost for Residential Long-Term Debt (as adjusted for the amortization of bond premium, deferred bond
issuance costs, and other related expenses) was 2.10% and 3.30%, respectively. At both March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, accrued interest payable on Residential Long-
Term Debt was $5.0 million, and is reflected as a component of Accrued Interest Payable on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

For the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, the average balance of Commercial Long-Term Debt was $8 million and $20 million, respectively. For the three
months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, the average effective interest cost for Commercial Long-Term Debt (as adjusted for the amortization of bond premium, deferred bond
issuance costs, and other related expenses) was 9.40% and 5.51%, respectively. At both March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, accrued interest payable on Commercial Long-
Term Debt was $0.1 million, and is reflected as a component of Accrued Interest Payable on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Note 8. Taxes

As a REIT, Redwood Trust can deduct dividends paid from taxable REIT income and thus, effectively, may not be subject to income taxes. However, a REIT can retain up
to 10% of its taxable income and still maintain its REIT status. We plan to retain up to 10% of our 2003 taxable REIT income, and will therefore be subject to corporate level
taxes on this retained income for the 2003 calendar tax year. The current provision for corporate income taxes for Redwood Trust for the three months ended March 31, 2003
was $1.2 million. For the three months ended March 31, 2002, we did not have a provision for corporate income taxes because we did not retain any income for the 2002
calendar year. As of March 31, 2003, accrued income tax payable was $1.2 million, and is reflected as a component of Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Due to the uncertainty of the realization of our net deferred tax assets, as well as the uncertainty of any future decision to retain future income, no deferred tax benefit has
been recorded. Furthermore, a valuation allowance of $1 million has been provided to offset our deferred tax assets related to future temporary deductions at March 31, 2003
and December 31, 2002.

Holdings, Redwood Trust’s taxable subsidiary, is subject to corporate income taxes on 100% of its income. The current provision for income taxes for Holdings for the
three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 was $80,000 and $3,200, respectively. California Revenue and Tax Code Section 24416.3 caused the deduction for California net
operating loss (NOL) carryovers to be suspended for the tax years 2002 and 2003. In addition, this regulation states that for any California carryover of a NOL for which a
deduction is denied by reason of the suspension, the carryover period is extended for one year for losses sustained in taxable years in 2002, and two years for NOLs sustained in
taxable years beginning before 2002. No additional Federal tax provision for Holdings was recorded for the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, as taxable income
reported for these periods was offset by Federal net operating loss carryforwards from prior years.

Due to the uncertainty of realization of net operating losses, no deferred tax benefit has been recorded. A valuation allowance has been provided to offset the deferred tax
assets related to the net operating loss carryforwards, and other future temporary deductions as of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002. As of March 31, 2003 and
December 31, 2002, Holdings had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $22.7 million and $23.8 million for Federal tax purposes, respectively, and approximately
$15.1 million and $15.8 million for state tax purposes. The Federal loss carryforwards and a portion of the state loss carryforwards expire between 2018 and 2021, while most of
the state loss carryforwards expire between 2008 and 2011.

To the extent a REIT’s distributions declared before calendar year-end and paid on or before January 31 of the following calendar year are less than 85% of its taxable
REIT income in the calendar year plus 100% of the undistributed taxable REIT income from prior calendar years, a REIT incurs a 4% excise tax on this shortfall. We met this
85% distribution requirement in all years prior to and including 2001, and thus had not been subject to excise taxes. For the 2002 tax year, our distributions declared before
calendar year-end and distributed on or before January 31, 2003 were less than 85% of taxable REIT income in the 2002 calendar year requiring us to incur a 4% excise tax
provision on the shortfall. For the 2003 tax year, our distributions declared before calendar year-end and distributed on or before January 31, 2004 may be less than 85% of
taxable REIT income in the 2003 calendar year requiring us to incur a 4% excise tax provision on the shortfall. For the three months ended March 31, 2003, we incurred a
provision for excise tax of $0.9 million to be paid in 2004. As of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, accrued excise tax payable was $0.9 million and $1.0 million,
respectively, and is reflected as a component of Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Note 9. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table presents the carrying values and estimated fair values of our financial instruments as of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002.

March 31, 2003 December 31, 2002

Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

(In thousands)

Assets
Real Estate Loans
Residential: held-for-sale $ 824 $ 824 $ 906 $ 906
Residential: held-for-investment 7,320,215 7,342,422 6,214,273 6,227,385
Commercial: held-for-sale 18,211 18,211 18,242 18,242
Commercial: held-for-investment 13,003 13,116 11,028 11,111
Real Estate Loan Securities
Credit Enhancement Portfolio: available-for-sale 373,162 373,162 352,479 352,479
Securities Portfolio: available-for-sale 366,307 366,307 335,697 335,697
Interest Rate Agreements (4,000) (4,000) (3,770) (3,770)
Liabilities
Short-Term Debt 475,717 475,717 99,714 99,714
Long-Term Debt 7,170,691 7,200,218 6,397,020 6,390,988

The carrying values of all other balance sheet accounts as reflected in the financial statements approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of these accounts.

Note 10. Stockholders’ Equity
Class B 9.74% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock

On August 8, 1996, we issued 1,006,250 shares of Class B Preferred Stock (Preferred Stock). The Preferred Stock pays a dividend equal to the greater of (i) $0.755 per
share, per quarter or (ii) an amount equal to the quarterly dividend declared on the number of shares of the Common Stock into which the Preferred Stock is convertible. The
Preferred Stock ranks senior to the Redwood Trust Common Stock as to the payment of dividends and liquidation rights. The liquidation preference entitles the holders of the
Preferred Stock to receive $31.00 per share plus any accrued dividends before any distribution is made on the Common Stock.

Each share of the Preferred Stock is convertible at the option of the holder at any time into one share of Common Stock. As of both March 31, 2003 and December 31,
2002, 96,732 shares of the Preferred Stock had been converted into 96,732 shares of Common Stock. Effective October 1, 1999, we can redeem the Preferred Stock (i) for one
share of Common Stock, plus accumulated, accrued and unpaid dividends through the end of the prior dividend period, provided that for 20 trading days within a period of 30
consecutive trading days, the closing price of the Common Stock equals or exceeds the Conversion Price of $31.00 per share or (ii) for cash at a redemption price of $31.00 per

share, plus any accumulated, accrued and unpaid dividends through the date of redemption. On May 2, 2003, we redeemed all outstanding shares of Preferred Stock by
converting those shares into shares of Common Stock.
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Stock Option Plan

In March 2002, Redwood Trust adopted an Incentive Stock Plan (the Plan) for executive officers, employees, and non-employee directors that was approved by the
Redwood Trust shareholders in May 2002. The Plan authorizes the Board of Directors (or a committee appointed by the Board of Directors) to grant incentive stock options as
defined under Section 422 of the Code (ISOs), options not so qualified (NQSOs), deferred stock, restricted stock, performance shares, stock appreciation rights, limited stock
appreciation rights (Awards), and dividend equivalent rights (DERs) to such eligible recipients other than non-employee directors. ISOs and NQSOs awarded to employees
have a maximum term of ten years and generally vest ratably over a four-year period. NQSOs awarded to Non-employee directors have a maximum term of ten years and
generally vest immediately or ratably over a three or four year period. Non-employee directors are automatically provided annual grants of NQSOs under the Plan. The Plan has
been designed to permit the Redwood Trust compensation committee to grant and certify awards that qualify as performance-based and otherwise satisfy the requirements of
Section 162(m) of the Code; however, not all awards may so qualify. This plan replaced our prior stock option plan. As of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, 400,177
and 431,296 shares of Common Stock, respectively, were available for grant.

Of shares of Common Stock available for grant, no more than 963,637 shares of Common Stock are cumulatively available for grant as ISOs. As of March 31, 2003 and
December 31, 2002, 536,497 and 535,297 ISOs had been granted, respectively. The exercise price for ISOs granted under the Plan may not be less than the fair market value of
shares of Common Stock at the time the ISO is granted.

As of both March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, 28,000 shares of restricted stock had been granted to two officers of Redwood Trust. As of March 31, 2003 and
December 31, 2002, restrictions on 14,000 and 12,250 of these shares had lapsed. The restrictions on the remaining 14,000 shares lapse in equal increments on the first day of
each calendar quarter from April 1, 2003 through January 1, 2005. No other restricted shares had been awarded.

Redwood Trust has granted certain stock options that accrue and pay stock and cash DERs. This feature results in current expenses being incurred that relate to long-term
incentive grants made in the past. To the extent we increase our taxable REIT income, and thus our REIT dividend distribution requirement, stock and cash DER expenses may
increase. For the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, we accrued cash and stock DER expenses of $2.7 million and $1.2 million, respectively. Stock and cash DERs
are included in Operating Expenses in our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Stock DERs represent shares of stock, which are issuable when the holders exercise the underlying stock options and are considered to be variable stock awards under the
provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. In addition to the stock DER expense on these options, for the three
months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, we recognized variable stock option expense of $0.9 million and $0.5 million, respectively. This expense is included in Variable Stock
Option Expense on our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Stock DERs are accrued based on an estimate of our common stock dividend requirements. As of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, there were 197,660 and
192,445 unexercised options with stock DERs under the Plan, respectively. Cash DERs are accrued based on an estimate of our common stock dividend requirements. As of
March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, there were 1,530,101 and 1,529,051 unexercised options with cash DERs under the Plan, respectively. As of March 31, 2003 and
December 31, 2002, there were 146,410 and 148,286 unexercised options with no DERs under the Plan, respectively.
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A summary of the status of the Plan as of March 31, 2003 and changes during the quarter ending on that date is presented below.

March 31, 2003

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Shares Price
(In thousands,
except share data)

Outstanding options at January 1 1,869,782 $22.87
Options granted 1,200 $29.01
Options exercised (2,026) $17.57
Options forfeited — _
Dividend equivalent rights earned 5,215 —
Outstanding options at March 31 1,874,171 $22.82

Deferred Compensation Plan

In May 2002, the Redwood Trust Board of Directors approved the Deferred Compensation Plan. The Deferred Compensation Plan allows eligible officers and directors to
defer the payment of current salary and certain other forms of compensation and invest the deferrals with Redwood Trust. As of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002,
$0.7 million and $0.5 million, respectively, had been deferred under the Deferred Compensation Plan. The Deferred Compensation Plan allows for the investment of deferrals in
either an interest crediting account or deferred stock units. As of March 31, 2003, 25,417 deferred stock units had been granted. At December 31, 2002, there were no deferrals
invested in deferred stock units.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In May 2002, Redwood Trust’s common shareholders approved the 2002 Redwood Trust, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP). The purpose of the ESPP is to give
the employees of Redwood Trust an opportunity to acquire an equity interest in the Company through the purchase of shares of Common Stock at a discount. A maximum of
100,000 shares of Common Stock may be purchased under the ESPP. Effective July 1, 2002, the ESPP allows eligible employees to have up to 15% of their annual gross
compensation (including base salary, bonus, and cash DERs) withheld to purchase Common Stock at 85% of its market value. The maximum gross compensation any
participant can contribute to the ESPP in any calendar quarter is $6,250. Market value under the ESPP is the lesser of the closing market price of the Common Stock as of the
start of an Offering Period in the ESPP or the closing market price on the quarterly purchase date. For 2002, the Offering Period started on July 1st and consisted of two
quarterly purchase periods. For 2003 and beyond, the Offering Period starts on January 1st of each calendar year and consists of four quarterly purchase periods. For the three
months ended March 31, 2003, employees acquired an aggregate of 1,896 shares of common stock at an average purchase price of $23.55 per share under this Plan. As of
March 31, 2003, there remained a negligible amount of uninvested employee contributions in the ESPP.

Common Stock Repurchases
The Board of Directors approved the repurchase of a total of 7,455,000 shares of Redwood Trust’s Common Stock. A total of 6,455,000 shares were repurchased in 1998
and 1999. We did not repurchase any shares of Common Stock during the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002. As of March 31, 2003, there remained

1,000,000 shares available under the authorization for repurchase. Repurchased shares have been returned to the authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock.
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Common Stock Issuances

For the three months ended March 31, 2003, we issued 324,415 shares of common stock through our Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan for net
proceeds of $9.2 million. For the three months ended March 31, 2002, we issued 239,119 shares of common stock through our Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend
Reinvestment Plan for net proceeds of $5.9 million and completed a secondary offering of 1,725,000 shares of Common Stock for net proceeds of $40.3 million.

Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies

In January 2003, we entered into a Warehouse Agreement with a Wall Street firm to facilitate the accumulation of securities for a future CDO. As of March 31, 2003, we
had agreed to buy residential real estate loan securities and other asset-backed securities with a fair market value of $133 million.

As of March 31, 2003, we had entered into commitments to sell $4 million of securities and purchase $46 million of Residential Real Estate Loans for settlement in April
2003.

As of March 31, 2003, Redwood Trust was obligated under non-cancelable operating leases with expiration dates through 2013. The total future minimum lease payments
under these non-cancelable leases are $9.4 million and are expected to be paid as follows: 2003 — $0.9 million; 2004 — $1.2 million; 2005 — $1.3 million; 2006 —
$0.9 million; 2007 — $0.7 million; 2008 — $0.7 million; 2009 — $0.8 million; 2010 — $0.8 million; 2011 — $0.9 million; 2012 — $0.9 million; 2013 — $0.3 million. The
majority of the future lease payments are related to a new operating lease for our executive offices that we plan to move into later in 2003.

Note 12. Subsequent Events

In April 2003, we issued $0.8 billion in face value of Long-Term Debt through Sequoia Mortgage Trust 2003-2, a trust established by Sequoia. This debt is collateralized
by a pool of adjustable-rate residential real estate loans. The proceeds received from this issuance were used to pay down a portion of our Short-Term Debt.

In May 2003, we redeemed all outstanding shares of Preferred Stock by converting them into an equal number of shares of Common Stock.

In May 2003, the Redwood Trust Board of Directors declared a regular cash dividend for common shareholders of $0.65 per share for the second quarter of 2003. The
common cash dividends are payable on July 21, 2003 to shareholders of record on June 30, 2003. These second quarter dividends are considered distributions of our 2002
taxable REIT income.

In May 2003, we issued $284 million of Long-Term Debt secured by residential real estate loan securities and other asset-backed securities with stated maturities of 2023
and 2038. This Long-Term Debt was issued as a CDO through our Acacia program.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes.

Safe Harbor Statement

“Safe Harbor” Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995: Certain matters discussed in this Form 10-K may constitute forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws that inherently include certain risks and uncertainties. Throughout this Form 10-Q and other Company documents,
the words “believe”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “aim”, “will”, and similar words identify “forward-looking” statements. Actual results and the timing of certain events
could differ materially from those projected in, or contemplated by, the forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including, among other things, changes in
interest rates and market values on our earning assets and borrowings, changes in prepayment rates on our mortgage assets, general economic conditions, particularly as they
affect the price of earning assets and the credit status of borrowers, and the level of liquidity in the capital markets as it affects our ability to finance our mortgage asset portfolio,
and other risk factors outlined in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002. Other factors not presently identified may also cause actual results to
differ. Future results and changes in expectations of future results could lead to adverse changes in our dividend rate. We continuously update and revise our estimates based on
actual conditions experienced. It is not practical to publish all such revisions and, as a result, no one should assume that results or trends projected in or contemplated by the
forward-looking statements included herein will prove to be accurate in the future.

This Form 10-Q contains statistics and other data that in some cases have been obtained from, or compiled from, information made available by servicing entities and
information service providers. In addition, some of the historical presentations contained herein have been restated to conform to current formats.

Summary and Outlook

Redwood Trust invests in real estate loans, both in whole loan and in securitized form. In the first quarter of 2003, we made new investments of $1.3 billion in high-quality
residential real estate mortgage loans, $2 million in commercial real estate loans, $37 million in residential loan credit enhancement securities, and $43 million in other types of
real estate loan securities. These investments were funded with the issuance of $1 billion of non-recourse long-term debt through a securitization transaction, additional short-
term borrowings, new equity sourced through our Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Program, and cash flow from our existing portfolios.

Our largest investment is in high-quality residential real estate loans and securities. In addition, we continue to invest in commercial real estate loans and diverse types of
residential and commercial real estate loan securities. We continue to increase our staff and make material investments in building our operating capabilities and expertise.
While our operating expenses are increasing, we believe our operations have become both more capable and more productive.

Our declared dividends for common shareholders in the first quarter of 2003 totaled $10.8 million, or $0.65 per share. Our earnings continue to exceed our dividend
payments. If our taxable REIT income continues to exceed our regular common dividend distributions, our current plan is to defer distribution of a portion of our 2003 taxable
REIT income into 2004 (thus incurring excise taxes) and to retain on a permanent basis up to 10% of our taxable REIT income (thus incurring income taxes). We would expect
that retained income may increase our earnings and dividend-paying potential over time.

Our GAAP earnings were $14.9 million, or $0.88 per share for the first quarter of 2003 — a 10% increase from the $0.80 per share we reported in the first quarter of 2002.
GAAP earnings were $0.88 per share for the fourth quarter 2002.
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Our core earnings totaled $15.0 million, or $0.88 per share in the first quarter of 2003 — a 14% increase over the $0.77 per share we earned in the first quarter of 2002 and
a 10% increase over the $0.80 per share we earned in the fourth quarter of 2002.

Core earnings is not a measure of earnings in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Core earnings is calculated as GAAP earnings from
ongoing operations less mark-to-market adjustments (which include realized and unrealized gains and losses on certain assets, hedges, and variable stock options). We believe
that core earnings provides relevant and useful information regarding our results of operations in addition to GAAP measures of performance. This is, in part, because market
valuation adjustments on only a portion of our assets and stock options and none of our liabilities are recognized through our income statement under GAAP and thus GAAP
valuation adjustments may not be fully indicative of changes in market values on our balance sheet as a whole or a reliable guide to our current operating performance.
Furthermore, gains or losses realized upon sales of assets vary based on portfolio management decisions; a sale of an asset for a gain or a loss may or may not affect our on-
going earnings from operations. Because all companies and analysts do not calculate non-GAAP measures such as core earnings in the same fashion, core earnings as calculated
by us may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies. See Table 1 below for a detailed reconciliation of GAAP earnings and core earnings.

Our estimated taxable REIT income after preferred dividends for the first quarter of 2003 was $27.0 million, or $1.59 per common share. Our taxable REIT income after
preferred dividends for the year 2002 was $76.9 million, or $4.91 per common share. See the discussion on taxable income and dividends below for more information on
taxable REIT income.

Net interest income as a percentage of average total equity was 19.8% in the first quarter of 2003, 18.5% in the fourth quarter of 2002, and 17.7% in the first quarter of
2002. Net interest income as a percentage of average core equity is, in our opinion, a good measure of the profitability rate of our real estate loan portfolios. This measure was
23.3% in the first quarter of 2003, 20.9% in the fourth quarter of 2002, and 18.1% in the first quarter of 2002. Our portfolio profitability is rising due to increases in yields from
our residential loan credit-enhancement portfolio (as a result of excellent credit results and faster prepayment rates) and by continued favorable changes in asset mix and capital
utilization (a result of increased growth in our loan portfolios). Average balances are determined based on daily averages of our equity base. Total equity and core equity are
reconciled below in Table 2.

Core equity is calculated as GAAP equity less unrealized gains and losses on certain assets and hedges. We believe measurements based on core equity provide relevant
useful information regarding our results of operations in addition to GAAP measures of performance. This is, in part, because market valuation adjustments reflected in our
GAAP equity represent unrealized gains and losses on a portion of our balance sheet only and may not be reflective of the equity we are have available to invest in our
operations. Because all companies and analysts do not calculate non-GAAP measures in the same fashion, core equity and ratios using core equity as calculated by us may not
be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.

Operating expense as a percentage of average total equity was 5.3% in the first quarter of 2003, 5.3% in the fourth quarter of 2002, and 4.2% in the first quarter of 2002.
Operating expenses as a percentage of average core equity and operating expenses as a percentage of net interest income are, in our opinion, good measures of operating cost
efficiency for our company. These operating expense measures vary from quarter to quarter due to factors such as equity offerings and variable compensation expense accruals
tied to earnings and dividends. Operating expense as a percentage of core equity was 6.2% in the first quarter of 2003, 6.0% in the fourth quarter of 2002, and 4.3% in the first
quarter of 2002. Operating expense as a percentage of net interest income was 27% in the first quarter of 2003, 29% in the fourth quarter of 2002, and 23% in the first quarter of
2002. Over the past year we have increased our overall capabilities, supported new products initiatives, and increased performance-based variable compensation payments due
to favorable results.

Our reported return on equity (GAAP earnings as a percentage of average GAAP common equity) was 12.9% in the first quarter of 2003, 13.7% in the fourth quarter of
2002, and 14.2% in the first quarter of 2002.
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Our core return on equity (core earnings as a percentage of average core common equity) was 15.4% in the first quarter of 2003, 14.2% in the fourth quarter of 2002, and 14.2%
in the first quarter of 2002.

We believe the key longer-term trends for our business are the strength of our credit results and the strength of our competitive market position. Although we recognize that
the U.S. economy is weak and is potentially vulnerable to external shocks, overall we believe the long-term outlook for our business remains favorable.

Our annual credit losses remained under one basis point (0.01%) of our residential real estate loan portfolios. Our loan delinquency ratios have been steady. In addition, our
risk of future credit loss for portions of our residential portfolios may be reduced somewhat as a result of continued increases in housing prices in many parts of the country. As
a result of these favorable credit trends (and faster prepayments), we are recognizing more income under the effective yield method from our residential loan credit-
enhancement securities portfolio. We calculate yields for our assets using long-term assumptions about prepayments, future credit losses over the life of the loans, and the
timing of credit losses. For many of our more seasoned assets, we have increased the yield we are recognizing, as — relative to prior assumptions — current estimates of the
likely long-term prepayment rates have increased, estimates of total life-of-the-mortgage credit losses have decreased, and/or estimates of the likely timing of credit losses have
been extended to later years. See the discussion on our use of effective yield methods below under Critical Accounting Policies. If favorable credit results, risk reduction
through increasing housing prices, and faster prepayment rates continue, estimates of the long-term cash flows we will receive from our assets will increase and will recognize
increased yields on our credit-enhancement portfolio and reduced credit provision expense rates on our loan portfolios. However, the economy is still weak, deflationary forces
are still evident, and many observers believe that housing prices are vulnerable. A reversal of our current favorable credit trends remains a real possibility. If this occurs, the
asset yields we recognize into income may decline and/or we may incur a mark-to-market expenses. We monitor relevant market trends continuously, and revise, as appropriate,
the assumptions that go into our yield calculations and credit provisions.

Recently, we have noted an increase in competition in the form of increased demand for residential whole loans from banks and increased demand for residential loan
credit-enhancement securities from specialized investors and for investment-grade real estate securities from a variety of capital market participants. This increased demand for
assets has increased prices for some of the assets we seek to acquire. Prices generally decreased towards the end of 2002 as a result of a strong supply of newly originated
mortgage assets and an uncertain economy. We have seen prices for assets we seek to buy increase during the first quarter of 2003 and expect this trend to continue. Any such
price increases will not affect cash flows from our current assets. Given what we believe to be our strong competitive position, we believe we will continue to be able to invest
in new real estate loans and securities on an attractive basis should prices rise. Our rate of acquisition, however, may slow. In addition, the rate of return we earn in the long
term on new investments is unlikely, in our opinion, to equal the relatively high returns we are currently earning from our existing assets.

Our short-term earnings can vary from quarter to quarter due to fluctuations in interest rates, prepayment rates, redemptions, asset market values, and other factors;
however, we believe we are well balanced from an asset/liability management perspective and we believe that it is unlikely that fluctuations in these short-term factors will alter
the returns we can generate over the long-term.

Our primary goal in managing Redwood’s operations is to do our best to make sure that our regular dividend rate for common shareholders remains sustainable in the long
run from the cash flows generated by our assets. We believe that our regular quarterly dividend rate of $0.65 per common share is likely to be sustainable for the near future,
given our current expectations for cash flow generation and other factors.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of certain assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of certain revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The critical accounting policies, and how changes in estimates might
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affect our financial results and statements, are discussed below. Management discusses the ongoing development and selection of these critical accounting policies with the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, and the Audit Committee has reviewed the disclosures provided in this Form 10-Q.

Establishing Valuations

We estimate the fair value of our assets and hedges using available market information and other appropriate valuation methodologies. Valuations of our loans are
generally done on a pool basis, while valuations of all other assets are done on an individual basis. We believe the estimates we use accurately reflect the values we may be able
to receive should we choose to sell them. Our estimates are inherently subjective in nature and involve matters of uncertainty and judgment to interpret relevant market and other
data. Many factors are necessary to estimate market values, including, but not limited to interest rates, prepayment rates, amount and timing of credit losses, supply and
demand, liquidity, and other market factors.

In addition to our valuation processes, we are active acquirers, and occasional sellers, of the assets and hedges we own. Thus, we have the ability to understand and
determine changes in assumptions that are taking place in the market place, and make appropriate changes in our assumptions for valuing assets in our portfolio. In addition, we
generally use third party sources to assist in developing our estimates.

Real estate loans held for investment are carried at their unpaid principal balance adjusted for net unamortized premium or discounts and net of any allowance for credit
losses. All other assets, including securities and interest rate agreements, are reported on our balance sheet at market value. For the most part, changes in market value of the
assets we currently own are reported through our balance sheet. However, as discussed herein, some of the changes in market value may be recorded through the income
statement to the extent assets are classified as trading instruments, there are writedowns required under the provisions of EITF 99-20, or there are loan impairments.

Changes in perceptions regarding future events can have a material impact on the value of our assets. Should such changes, or other factors, result in significant changes in
the market values, our income and/or book value could be adversely affected.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue on our assets using the effective yield method. The use of this method requires us to project cash flow over the remaining life of each asset. Such
projections include assumptions about interest rates, prepayment rates, timing and amount of credit losses, when certain tests will be met that may allow for changes in
payments made under the structure of securities, estimates regarding the likelihood and timing of calls of securities at par, and other factors. There can be no assurance that our
assumptions used to generate future cash flows, or the current period’s yield for each asset, will prove to be accurate. Our current period earnings may not accurately reflect the
yield to be earned on that asset for the remaining life of the asset.

Under the effective yield method, credit losses lower than (or later than) anticipated by the credit loss assumptions (credit reserve) imbedded in our cash flow forecasts
could result in increasing yields being recognized from our current portfolio of residential loan credit enhancement securities. In addition, faster than anticipated prepayment
rates also tend to increase realized yields. Credit losses higher than (or earlier than) anticipated by our designated credit reserve and/or slower than anticipated prepayment rates
could result in lower yields being recognized under the effective yield method. Furthermore, adverse changes in cash flows projected may require us to take market value
adjustments through our income statement under EITF 99-20. Yield and EITF 99-20 adjustments are applied on an asset-specific basis. Thus, we may take EITF 99-20 charges
even during a period when most of our assets perform better than anticipated and our overall portfolio is increasing.

We review our cash flow projections on an ongoing basis. We monitor the critical performance factors for each loan and security. Our expectations of future asset cash flow
performance are shaped by input and analyses received from external sources, internal models, and our own judgment and experience. We constantly review our existing
assumptions relative to our and the market’s expectations of future events and
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make adjustments to the cash flows which may change our market values and yields. Changes in market values and yields are monitored on each asset to assure they are each
accounted for according to the provisions of EITF 99-20 or other applicable accounting principle.

Credit Reserves

The method that we use to account for future credit losses depends upon the type of asset that we own. For our credit-enhancement securities, we establish a credit reserve
upon the acquisition of such assets under the effective yield method of accounting. For our residential and commercial mortgage loans, we currently establish a credit reserve
based on an estimate of current losses by taking credit provisions through our income statement. For our commercial mortgage loans, we evaluate the need to establish a credit
reserve or mark the value of the loan to realized value when a loan becomes delinquent. Many of the assets in our securities portfolio benefit from material forms of credit-
enhancement, and, thus, no credit reserves have been established to date for these assets. For securities portfolio assets where credit losses are anticipated, we establish an
appropriate reserve given the credit trends and market outlook for that asset.

As noted, one of the many significant assumptions used in projecting cash flows on many of our assets, and thus our current yield, is the level and timing of credit losses
that we expect to incur over the lives of these assets. We establish the level of future estimated credit losses as a credit reserve. The reserve is based upon our assessment of
various factors affecting our assets, including economic conditions, characteristics of the underlying loans, delinquency status, and external credit protection. We use a variety
of internal and external credit risk, cash flow modeling, and portfolio analytical tools to assist us in our assessment. Our actual credit losses, and the timing of these losses, may
differ from those estimates used to establish the reserve. Such differences will result in different yields over the life of the asset than we may be currently reporting. If such
differences are adverse, and the market value of our assets declines below our carrying value, we may need to take current period mark-to-market charges through our income
statement. If such differences are favorable, then the current yield we are now recognizing on these assets could be materially less than the yield we will earn over the life of the
asset.

We continually review and update, as appropriate, all of our assumptions. Despite this continual review, there can be no assurance that our assumptions used to estimate
cash flows, fair values, and effective yields will prove to be correct as interest rates, economic conditions, real estate conditions, and the market’s perception of the future
constantly change.

Results of Operations

Our GAAP earnings were $14.9 million, or $0.88 per share for the first quarter of 2003 — which equaled the $0.88 per share we reported in the fourth quarter of 2002 and
was a 10% increase from the $0.80 per share we reported in the first quarter of 2002. Our core earnings totaled $15.0 million, or $0.88 per share in the first quarter of 2003 — a
10% increase over the $0.80 per share we earned in the fourth quarter of 2002, and a 14% increase over the $0.77 per share we earned in the first quarter of 2002.
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The table below reconciles GAAP earnings to core earnings.
Table 1

GAAP Earnings and Core Earnings
(all dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Variable GAAP Core

Stock Earnings/ Earnings/

Asset Option Average Average Average

Mark-to- Mark-to- Diluted GAAP Core Common Common
GAAP Market Market Core Shares Earnings Earnings Equity Core Equity
Earnings Adjustments Adjustments Earnings Outstanding Per Share Per Share (annualized) (annualized)
Q1: 2002 $11,219 $ 875 $ (543) $10,887 14,077,405 $ 080 $ 077 14.2% 14.2%
Q2: 2002 13,802 2,045 (789) 12,546 15,747,048 0.88 0.80 15.4% 14.5%
Q3: 2002 14,306 730 745 12,831 16,240,194 0.88 0.79 14.1% 14.3%
Q4: 2002 14,566 1,461 (78) 13,183 16,529,075 0.88 0.80 13.7% 14.2%
Q1: 2003 14,932 918 (948) 14,962 16,983,513 0.88 0.88 12.9% 15.4%
2001 $30,163 $ (836) $ 911) $31,910 10,474,764 $ 288 $ 3.05 13.3% 14.3%
2002 53,893 5,111 (665) 49,447 15,658,623 3.44 3.16 14.3% 14.3%

For reasons noted in our discussions above, we believe that core earnings and core equity are relevant and useful additional measures of our results of operations in addition
to GAAP measures.

Table 2

Total Equity and Core Equity
(all dollars in thousands)

End of Average
Period Average Mark-to- Average
End of Asset End of Total Market Core
Period Mark-to- Period Equity Adjustments Equity
Total Market Core During During During
Equity Adjustments Equity Period Period Period
Q1: 2002 $364,444 $ 11,015 $353,429 $341,766 $ 8,360 $333,406
Q2: 2002 417,930 35,826 382,104 385,887 14,213 371,674
Q3:2002 445,728 54,148 391,580 432,310 47,705 384,605
Q4: 2002 473,033 69,146 403,887 450,464 52,200 398,264
Q1:2003 485,402 68,077 417,325 489,086 74,231 414,855
2001 $307,773 $ 2,701 $305,072 $254,021 $ 4922 $249,099
2002 473,033 69,146 403,887 402,986 30,786 372,200
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Net Interest Income

Net interest income after credit expenses was $24.2 million in the first quarter of 2003, $20.8 million in the fourth quarter of 2002, and $15.1 million in the first quarter of
2002. Net interest income growth has generally tracked growth in our net employed equity capital. In addition, we continue to benefit from an improved asset mix, fast
prepayment rates on the underlying loans in our residential loan credit-enhancement securities, and our continued strong credit results. Net interest income as a percentage of
average core equity has increased to 23.3% in the first quarter of 2003, from 20.9% in the fourth quarter of 2002, and 18.1% in the first quarter of 2002.

Table 3

Net Interest Income After Credit Expenses
(all dollars in thousands)

Net Interest Interest Net Net
Interest Interest Rate Rate Interest Interest
Income Income Spread Margin Income/ Income/
After After Earning Cost After After Average Average
Credit Interest Credit Asset of Credit Credit Total Core
Expenses Expense Expenses Yield Funds Expenses Expenses Equity Equity
Q1: 2002 $ 30,716 $(15,602) $15,114 4.92% 2.82% 2.10% 2.36% 17.7% 18.1%
Q2: 2002 36,252 (18,489) 17,763 4.71% 2.69% 2.02% 2.25% 18.4% 19.1%
Q3: 2002 42,093 (24,291) 17,802 4.07% 2.57% 1.50% 1.68% 16.5% 18.5%
Q4: 2002 54,155 (33,323) 20,832 3.59% 2.35% 1.24% 1.35% 18.5% 20.9%
Q1: 2003 61,125 (36,933) 24,192 3.31% 2.10% 1.21% 1.28% 19.8% 23.3%
2001 $144,539 $(98,069) $46,470 6.71% 5.04% 1.67% 2.09% 18.3% 18.7%
2002 163,216 (91,705) 71,511 4.13% 2.54% 1.59% 1.77% 17.7% 19.2%

Interest rate spread (yield on assets less cost of borrowed funds) and interest rate margin (net interest income divided by average assets) are profitability measures often
tracked by analysts of financial institutions. We believe that trends in these asset-based measures for Redwood are not likely to be representative of trends in our true economic
margins. Recent changes in these measures for Redwood have been primarily a result of changes in our asset mix between loans and securities and of the different methods of
presentation for these assets. We believe that equity-based margin ratios, such as net interest income as a percentage of equity, are useful economic measures for Redwood’s
operations. As shown above in Table 3, our margins as measured relative to our reported asset base have been declining (due to changes in asset mix) while our margins as
measured relative to our equity base have been increasing.
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Long-term debt that is non-recourse to Redwood is reported on our balance sheet, as are the assets that have been sold to the non-recourse securitization trusts. Only our
net investments in the equity of these trusts constitute “at-risk” assets to us. If we had used different terms or forms of securitization these transactions may have been accounted
for as sales. With sales accounting, our reported balance sheet (both assets and liabilities) would be substantially smaller (although the economics of the transaction and our
exposure to risks would be unchanged). If we structured the securitizations differently and therefore accounted for them as sales rather than financings, our asset-based margins
would have been different and, in some respects, reported on a basis that is more comparable to some other financial institutions. Our interest rate spread and our interest rate
margin would have been higher and would show a positive trend in recent quarters. Our reported debt-to-equity ratio would have been substantially lower. Table 4 below
presents our interest income and interest expense as if we had structured our securitizations to obtain sales accounting treatment rather than financing accounting treatment;
effectively, on an “at-risk” basis for assets and on a recourse basis for liabilities. Please also see the discussion under “Financial Condition, Liquidity, and Capital Resources —
Balance Sheet Leverage” below for further information.

Table 4

Net Interest Income on an “At-Risk” Assets and Recourse Liabilities Basis
(all dollars in thousands)

Q1: 2002
Q2: 2002
Q3: 2002
Q4: 2002
Q1: 2003

2001
2002

Net Interest Interest Net
Interest Interest Interest Rate Rate Interest
Income Expense Income Spread Margin Income/
On “At- On On “At- Earning Cost After After Average
Risk” Recourse Risk” Asset of Credit Credit Core
Assets Liabilities Basis Yield Funds Expenses Expenses Equity
$20,055 $ (4,941) $15,114 6.30% 2.12% 4.18% 4.75% 18.1%
23,358 (5,595) 17,763 7.02% 2.37% 4.65% 5.34% 19.1%
23,200 (5,398) 17,802 7.03% 2.43% 4.60% 5.39% 18.5%
25,210 (4,378) 20,832 9.07% 2.65% 6.42% 7.49% 20.9%
26,132 (1,940) 24,192 11.77% 1.94% 9.83% 10.89% 23.3%
$86,871 $(40,401) $46,470 7.59% 4.53% 3.06% 4.06% 18.7%
91,823 (20,312) 71,511 7.29% 2.37% 4.92% 6.24% 19.2%
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The table below reconciles reported interest income and interest expense to the interest income and expense on “at-risk” assets and recourse liabilities discussed above.

Table 5

Reconciliation of GAAP Interest Income and Interest Expense to Interest Income and Interest Expense on “At Risk” Assets and Recourse Liabilities
(all dollars in thousands)

Less:
Less: Interest Interest Interest Interest
Income On Income Expense On Expense
Reported Assets In On Reported Liabilities In On
Interest Securitization “At-Risk” Interest Securitization Recourse
Income Trusts* Assets Expense Trusts Liabilities
Q1: 2002 $ 30,716 $ 10,661 $20,055 $(15,602) $ (10,661) $ (4,941)
Q2: 2002 36,252 12,894 23,358 (18,489) (12,894) (5,595)
Q3:2002 42,093 18,893 23,200 (24,291) (18,893) (5,398)
Q4: 2002 54,155 28,945 25,210 (33,323) (28,945) (4,378)
Q1:2003 61,125 34,993 26,132 (36,933) (34,993) (1,940)
2001 $144,539 $ 57,668 $86,871 $(98,069) $ (57,668) $(40,401)
2002 163,216 71,393 91,823 (91,705) (71,393) (20,312)

*  This represents a portion of the interest income from our securitization trusts. It does not include the interest income attributed to our “at-risk” investments in these trusts.

Interest Income After Credit Expenses

Our total interest income in the first quarter of 2003 was $61.1 million, an increase from the $54.2 million earned in the fourth quarter of 2002, and $30.7 million in the first
quarter of 2002. The increase from 2002 to 2003 was the result of asset growth sufficient to offset lower asset yields. Asset yields have fallen as most of our assets have variable
interest rates and have adjusted to falling interest rates over the past several quarters.

Table 6

Total Interest Income and Yields
(all dollars in thousands)

Net

Average Premium Credit Total Earning

Earning Interest Amortization Provision Interest Asset

Assets Income Expense Expense Income Yield
Q1: 2002 $2,498,565 $ 33,977 $ (2,979) $ (282) $ 30,716 4.92%
Q2: 2002 3,080,165 37,267 (543) (472) 36,252 4.71%
Q3:2002 4,131,870 44,819 (1,832) (894) 42,093 4.07%
Q4: 2002 6,042,042 58,295 (2,480) (1,660) 54,155 3.59%
Q1:2003 7,393,566 63,489 (608) (1,756) 61,125 3.31%
2001 $2,152,965 $154,891 $ (9,585) $ (767) $144,539 6.71%
2002 3,948,399 174,358 (7,834) (3,308) 163,216 4.13%

To provide a greater level of detail on our interest income trends, we review interest income by product line below. Each of our product lines is a component of our single
business segment of real estate loan investing.
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Residential Real Estate Loans

Our residential real estate loan portfolio continued to grow in the first quarter of 2003, increasing from $6.2 billion at the beginning of the quarter to $7.3 billion at the end

of the quarter. We acquired $1.3 billion residential mortgage loans during the first quarter of 2003. These loan investments were all adjustable-rate loans and were made

pursuant to flow purchase agreements. We plan to continue to expand our relationships with originators and continue to invest in high-quality jumbo adjustable-rate residential

real estate loans.

Table 7

Residential Real Estate Loans — Activity

(all dollars in thousands)

Start of Period Balances

Acquisitions
Sales

Principal Payments
Amortization Expense

Credit Provisions

Net Charge-Offs (Recoveries)

Mark-To-Market (Income Statement)

End of Period Balances

Q12003 Q42002 Q32002 Q22002 Q12002

$6,215,179 $4,761,893 $2,803,556 $1,794,260 $1,474,862

1,338,920 1,616,400 2,075,296 1,146,621 417,276

(73,137) 0 (2,960) (46,683) 0
(152,768) (155,915) (109,896) (89,582) (95,924)
(6,156) (5,754) (3,502) (1,060) (1,672)
(1,756) (1,660) (894) A7) (282)

31 0 236 0 0

726 215 57 472 0
$7,321,039 $6,215,179 $4,761,893 $2,803,556 $1,794,260

Most of our residential loans have coupon rates that adjust each month or each six months as a function of the one or six-month LIBOR interest rate. Generally, short-term
interest rates have been adjusting lower over the past few years. Through the first quarter of 2003, the coupon rates on our variable rate loans continued to reset downwards,
reflecting a lagged response to the decline in short-term interest rates.

Table 8

Residential Real Estate Loans — Interest Income and Yields

(all dollars in thousands)

Principal
Paydowns/
Average Average Net
Average Net Average Principal Premium Credit Total
Principal Premium Credit Balance Interest Amortization Provision Interest
Balance Balance Reserve (annualized) Income Expense Expense Income Yield
Q1: 2002 $1,541,136 $ 9,130 $(5,342) 25% $ 16,079 $ (1,672) $ (282) $14,125 3.66%
Q2: 2002 2,195,570 11,489 (5,675) 16% 21,133 (1,060) (472) 19,601 3.56%
Q3: 2002 3,253,528 15,097 (6,163) 14% 28,843 (3,502) (894) 24,447 3.00%
Q4: 2002 5,295,254 31,079 (7,423) 12% 44,678 (5,754) (1,660) 37,264 2.80%
Q1: 2003 6,603,149 31,651 (9,261) 9% 50,225 (6,155) (1,756) 42,314 2.55%
2001 $1,138,482 $12,646 $(4,991) 28% $ 72,499 $ (6,720) $ (767) $65,012 5.67%
2002 3,082,156 16,755 (6,156) 15% 110,733 (11,988) (3,308) 95,437 3.09%

Our credit losses remained at an annualized rate of less than one basis point (0.01%) of our loan portfolio. Our residential loan portfolio delinquencies declined from
$4.1 million at December 31, 2002 to $1.2 million at March 31, 2003. This decline in delinquencies was due to the cure of delinquent loans and the sale of some delinquent

loans in conjunction with the call of Sequoia long-term debt collateralized by these loans. Delinquencies include loans delinquent more than 90 days, in bankruptcy, in

foreclosure, and real estate owned. As a percentage of our loan portfolio, delinquencies remained at low levels relative to the U.S. residential real estate loans as a whole and
stood at 0.02% of our current loan balances at March 31, 2003.
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Trends in our delinquency ratios have been favorable due to the acquisition of new performing loans and the credit performance of our seasoned loans. Our credit reserve has
been established based on historical loss rates, changes in the composition and volume of loans, and estimated losses due to the current weak economy. We anticipate that
delinquencies and losses on our current residential loans will increase from current levels as our loans season. At March 31, 2003, our residential real estate loan credit reserve
was $10.0 million, equal to 0.14% of the current balance of this portfolio.

Table 9

Residential Real Estate Loans — Credit Results
(all dollars in thousands)

Loss Severity Annualized

On Realized Credit Losses Ending

Ending Delinquent Delinquent Liquidated Credit As % of Credit

Balance Loans Loan % Loans Losses Loans Reserve

Q1: 2002 $1,794,260 $ 4,926 0.27% 0% $§ 0 0.00% $5,481
Q2: 2002 2,803,556 3,257 0.12% 0% 0 0.00% 5,953
Q3: 2002 4,761,893 1,387 0.03% 22% (236) 0.01% 6,611
Q4: 2002 6,215,179 4,127 0.07% 0% 0 0.00% 8,271
Q1: 2003 7,321,039 1,159 0.02% 40% 31) 0.01% 9,996
2001 $1,474,862 $ 5,069 0.34% 42% $(382) 0.03% $5,199
2002 6,215,179 4,127 0.07% 22% (236) 0.01% 8,271

The characteristics of our residential real estate loan portfolio continue to show its high-quality nature. At March 31, 2003, we owned 19,805 residential loans with a total
value of $7.3 billion. These were all “A” quality loans at origination. Substantially all these loans (99%) were adjustable rate loans and the rest (1%) were hybrid loans (fixed
rate for 3 to 7 years, then adjustable). The average loan size was $369,656. Northern California loans were 13% of the total and Southern California loans were 12% of the total.
Loans originated in 2003 were 11% of the total loans in our portfolio, loans originated in 2002 were 72% of the total, loans originated in 2001 were 11% of the total, and loans
originated in 2000 or earlier were 6% of the total. On average, our residential real estate loans had 11 months of seasoning at March 31, 2003. Loans where the original loan
balance exceeded 80% loan-to-value (LTV) made up 12% of loan balances; we benefit from mortgage insurance or additional pledged collateral on all of these loans, serving to
substantially lower the effective LTV on these loans. The average effective LTV at origination for all of our residential real estate loans (including the effect of mortgage
insurance, pledged collateral, and other credit enhancements) was 66%. Given housing appreciation and loan amortization, we believe the current effective LTV of our
residential real estate loans at March 31, 2003 was lower than 66%.

The characteristics of the loans that we purchase and retain continued to illustrate the high-quality nature of the loans. The average FICO credit score of borrowers on these
residential mortgage loans (for those loans where a FICO score was obtained) was 732. Borrowers with FICO scores over 720 comprised 61% of this portfolio, those with
scores between 680 and 720 comprised 25%, those with scores between 620 and 680 comprised 12%, and those with scores below 620 comprised 2%. In general, loans in our
portfolio with lower FICO scores have strong compensating factors that may serve to mitigate the apparent higher level of risk generally associated with a borrower that has a
lower FICO score.
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Table 10

Residential Real Estate Loan Characteristics
(at period end, all dollars in thousands)

Mar. 2003 Dec. 2002 Sep. 2002 Jun. 2002 Mar. 2002
Principal Value (Face Value) $7,297,515 $6,190,674 $4,736,646 $2,795,628 $1,790,239
Internal Credit Reserves (9,996) (8,271) (6,611) (5,953) (5,481)
Premium (Discount) to be Amortized 33,520 32,776 31,858 13,881 9,502
Retained Residential Loans $7,321,039 $6,215,179 $4,761,893 $2,803,556 $1,794,260
Number of loans 19,805 16,669 12,580 7,394 4914
Average loan size $ 370 $ 373 $ 379 $ 379 $ 365
Adjustable % 99% 99% 98% 96% 100%
Hybrid % 1% 1% 2% 4% 0%
Fixed % 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Northern California 13% 12% 12% 13% 12%
Southern California 12% 12% 12% 12% 11%
Florida 12% 12% 11% 13% 12%
Georgia 7% 8% 8% 9% 7%
New York 5% 6% 6% 6% 7%
New Jersey 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
Illinois 4% 4% 3% 3% 3%
Other states (none greater than 3%) 42% 41% 43% 39% 43%
Year 2003 origination 11% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Year 2002 origination 72% 78% 70% 47% 17%
Year 2001 origination 11% 13% 18% 31% 42%
Year 2000 origination 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Year 1999 origination 2% 2% 3% 5% 9%
Year 1998 origination or earlier 4% 7% 9% 17% 32%
% balance in loans> $1mm per loan 14% 14% 15% 15% 16%

We intend to permanently fund all our residential real estate loan investments with the issuance of long-term debt through our special purpose subsidiaries, Sequoia
Mortgage Funding Corporation and Sequoia Residential Funding Inc. (Sequoia). This type of financing is non-recourse to Redwood Trust. Our exposure to our $6.9 billion of
long-term financed loans is limited to our investment in Sequoia, which at March 31, 2003 was $139 million or 2.2% of the Sequoia loan balances. Short-term funded residential
real estate loans at March 31, 2003 were $0.5 billion. In the first quarter of 2003, we issued $1.0 billion in long-term debt, completing Sequoia 2003-01. In April 2003, we
completed Sequoia 2003-02 and issued an additional $0.8 billion of long-term debt.

Our investment in Sequoia of $139 million at March 31, 2003 consists of classes of subordinated securities and interest-only securities retained from these securitizations.
Our retained Sequoia credit enhancement securities are the first, second, and third loss pieces of the securitizations, bear the credit risk of the Sequoia loans, and are the same
types of assets that we acquire from third-party securitizations and hold in our residential loan credit enhancement securities portfolio. For our retained subordinated credit-
enhancement securities at March 31, 2003, the principal value was $58 million (0.9% of Sequoia loan balances) and an effective carrying value was $25 million (0.4% of
Sequoia loan balances). The interest-only securities we have retained from our Sequoia securitizations capture the spread between the coupon rates on the underlying loans and
our cost of funds on the securitized debt issued from Sequoia. These securities are rated AAA and thus
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have minimal credit risk. Our adjusted basis on Sequoia loans at March 31, 2003 was 100.32% of principal value; faster prepayment rates on the underlying Sequoia loans
would generally lead to lower realized yields on our retained interest-only securities. Our Sequoia interest-only securities had an effective carrying value of $77 million and
represented 1.1% of Sequoia loan balances at March 31, 2003. We also retain some investment-grade subordinated securities from our Sequoia transactions that we include as
collateral for our Acacia CDO debt issuance. At March 31, 2003, our investment-grade subordinated Sequoia securities had an effective carrying value of $37 million (0.5% of
Sequoia loan balances).

Residential Loan Credit-Enhancement Securities

At March 31, 2003, we owned $373 million market value of residential loan credit-enhancement securities, a 6% increase from the $352 million owned at December 31,
2002. These securities generally have below-investment-grade credit ratings and represent subordinated interests in pools of high-quality jumbo residential mortgage loans. We
intend to continue to invest in these securities.

Total loans underlying our residential real estate credit-enhancement securities increased from $59 billion to $61 billion (representing approximately 5% of the jumbo
residential real estate loans in the U.S.).

Table 11

Residential Loan Credit-Enhancement Securities — Activity
(all dollars in thousands)

Q12003 Q42002 Q32002 Q22002 Q12002
Start of Period Balances $352,479 $324,130 $284,759 $249,832 $190,813
Acquisitions 37,077 13,442 28,983 25,849 59,157
Sales 0 0 0 (898) (5,037)
Principal Payments (23,212) (13,573) (9,437) (15,801) (4,270)
Amortization Income 5,545 3,275 2,722 1,767 366
Mark-To-Market (Balance Sheet) 998 25,205 17,351 21,795 8,758
Mark-To-Market (Income Statement) 275 0 (248) 2,215 45
End of Period Balances $373,162 $352,479 $324,130 $284,759 $249,832

Our residential loan credit-enhancement securities are generally first loss, second loss, or third loss interests of residential real estate loan pools securitized by others. First
loss interests are allocated initial credit losses on the entire underlying pool of loans up to a maximum of the principal amount of the first loss interest. Our ownership of first
loss interests provides credit-enhancement principal protection from the initial losses in the underlying pool for the second loss, third loss, and more senior interests. Similarly,
any first loss interests that are owned by others and that are junior to our second and third loss interests provide our interests with some principal protection from losses (they
serve as external credit-enhancement to us).

We account for these securities as available for sale and thus report them on our balance sheet at their estimated fair value. Current period unrealized gains are reported as
market valuation adjustments on the balance sheet. Over the past several quarters, the fair value of the securities in this portfolio has increased due to strong credit and
prepayment performance, lower interest rates, and other market factors.

Our credit-enhancement interests can be called away from us under certain circumstances. This is usually beneficial for us, as we receive a payment for the full principal
value of an asset that, in general, we have acquired at a discount to the principal value. We realized a gain of $0.9 million from such redemptions in the first quarter of 2003,
which is included in Net Unrealized and Realized Market Value Gains (Losses) in our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

At March 31, 2003, we owned $614 million principal (face) value of residential loan credit-enhancement securities that had an adjusted cost basis on our books of
$295 million. After mark-to-market adjustments, our net investment in these assets was reported on our balance sheet at a value of $373 million. Over the life of the underlying
mortgage loans, we expect to receive $614 million in principal payments from these securities less
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credit losses. We receive interest payments each month on the outstanding principal amount. Of the $241 million difference between principal value and reported value,
$234 million was designated as an internal credit reserve (reflecting our estimate of future credit losses over the life of the underlying mortgages), $85 million was designated
as purchase discount to be accreted into income over time, and there was $78 million in cumulative positive balance sheet market valuation adjustments.

Table 12

Residential Loan Credit-Enhancement Securities — Net Book Value
(at period end, all dollars in thousands)

Mar. 2003 Dec. 2002 Sep. 2002 Jun. 2002 Mar. 2002
Total principal value (face value) $ 614,111 $ 559,186 $ 542,669 $ 492,642 $ 460,035
Internal designated credit reserves (234,060) (224,891) (220,735) (206,343) (194,556)
Discount to be amortized (84,648) (58,578) (49,360) (35,745) (28,058)
Net investment 295,403 275,717 272,574 250,554 237,421
Market valuation adjustments 77,759 76,762 51,556 34,205 12,411
Net reported value $ 373,162 $ 352,479 $ 324,130 $ 284,759 $ 249,832
First loss position, principal value $ 236,122 $ 215,046 $ 206,062 $ 181,179 $ 173,990
Second loss position, principal value 176,864 163,428 152,433 139,290 127,930
Third loss position, principal value 201,125 180,712 184,174 172,173 158,115
Total principal value $ 614,111 $ 559,186 $ 542,669 $ 492,642 $ 460,035
First loss position, reported value $ 63,675 $ 65,292 $ 52,595 $ 46,979 $ 42,760
Second loss position, reported value 130,415 121,491 104,928 90,878 79,969
Third loss position, reported value 179,072 165,696 166,607 146,902 127,103
Total reported value $ 373,162 $ 352,479 $ 324,130 $ 284,759 $ 249,832

Total interest income from our residential loan credit-enhancement securities increased to $13.7 million in the first quarter of 2003 from $11.3 million in the fourth quarter
0f 2002 and $6.7 million in the first quarter of 2002. An increase in our net investment in these securities plus an increase in realized yields accounted for this increase in interest
income.

The yield on our investment in residential loan credit-enhancement securities was 19.68% during the first quarter of 2003, an increase from the 16.65% yield earned in the
fourth quarter of 2002 and 13.29% in the first quarter of 2002. Over the past several quarters, as a result of strong historical and anticipated performance (lower delinquencies,
lower and delayed credit losses, and faster prepayments) better than previously projected, we have continued to increase our estimates of the present value of the cash flows we
will receive from these securities. As a result, the yields we recognize under the effective yield method of accounting have increased for these securities over the past several
quarters.

The yield we estimate and recognize under the effective yield method for each of our assets is subject to change as we constantly review performance data and our
assumptions about the future and adjust cash flows for specific assets accordingly. Under the effective yield method, credit losses lower than (or later than) anticipated by the
credit loss assumptions (credit reserve) imbedded in our cash flow forecasts could result in increasing yields being recognized from our current portfolio. In addition, faster than
anticipated prepayment rates also tend to increase realized yields. Credit losses higher than (or earlier than) anticipated by our designated credit reserve and/or slower than
anticipated prepayment rates could result in lower yields being recognized under the effective yield method and/or require us to take market value adjustments through our
income statement under EITF 99-20. Yield and EITF 99-20 adjustments are applied on an asset-specific basis. Thus, we may take EITF 99-20 charges even during a period
when most of our assets perform better than anticipated and our overall portfolio is increasing. Our EITF 99-20 mark-to-market charges in the first quarter of 2003 were
negative $0.6 million.
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Table 13

Residential Loan Credit-Enhancement Securities — Interest Income and Yields

(all dollars in thousands)

Q1: 2002
Q2: 2002
Q3: 2002
Q4: 2002
Q1: 2003

2001
2002

Average Average Net

Average Designated Net Discount Total

Principal Credit Discount Average Coupon Amortization Interest

Value Reserve Balance Basis Income Income Income Yield
$389,798 $(164,995) $(23,263) $201,540 $ 6,329 $ 366 $ 6,695 13.29%
467,108 (198,564) (30,262) 238,282 7,239 1,767 9,006 15.12%
510,712 (211,094) (41,774) 257,844 7,721 2,722 10,443 16.20%
546,239 (222,377) (52,846) 271,016 8,008 3,275 11,283 16.65%
573,266 (229,476) (65,451) 278,339 8,148 5,545 13,693 19.68%
$236,947 $ (74,763) $(24,907) $137,277 $16,402 § 281 $16,683 12.15%
478,981 (199,447) (37,130) 242,404 29,297 8,130 37,427 15.44%

Credit losses for the residential loans that we credit enhanced through our ownership of residential loan credit-enhancement securities totaled $0.7 million in the first
quarter of 2003. The annualized rate of credit loss was less than 1 basis point (0.01%) of the $61 billion of underlying loans we credit enhanced at March 31, 2003. Some of our
credit-enhancement securities benefit from first or second loss interest held by others (external credit-enhancement). Of the $1.1 million total credit losses to the underlying
loans in the first quarter of 2003, $0.4 million was borne by external credit enhancement; the remainder, $0.7 million in credit losses, was borne by us .

Delinquencies (over 90 days, foreclosure, bankruptcy, and REO) in our credit-enhancement loans increased slightly, but remained at low levels. They were 0.27% of
current balances at March 31, 2003 and 0.25% at December 31, 2003. We expect delinquencies and losses for our existing residential loan credit-enhancement securities to
increase from their current modest levels, given a weaker economy and the natural seasoning pattern of these loans. However, in periods where we have significant increases in
the size of our credit-enhanced loan amounts through the acquisition of credit-enhancement securities on performing loan pools (as occurred over the past several quarters),

delinquencies as a percent of the underlying pool balances may decline due to the addition of performing loans to the denominator of this ratio.

Table 14

Residential Loan Credit-Enhancement Securities — Credit Results

(all dollars in thousands)

Q1: 2002
Q2: 2002
Q3: 2002
Q4: 2002
Q1: 2003

2001
2002

Redwood’s Total Credit
Share of Losses To Losses as

Underlying Credit External Total % of

Mortgage Delinquent Delinquent (Losses) Credit Credit Loans
Loans Loans Loan % Recoveries Enhancement Losses (annualized)
$64,826,605 $129,849 0.20% $ 166 § (618) $ (452) 0.01%
66,061,159 149,960 0.23% 74 (189) (115) 0.01%
68,483,359 151,507 0.22% 47) (103) (150) 0.01%
58,659,110 146,226 0.25% (214) (163) 377) 0.01%
60,748,216 161,498 0.27% (684) (456) (1,140) 0.01%
$51,720,856 $124,812 0.24% $ (764) $ (2,352) $(3,116) 0.01%
58,659,110 146,226 0.25% 21) (1,073) (1,094) 0.01%

At March 31, 2003, we had $62 million of external credit enhancement protection reserves and $234 million of internal designated credit reserves for this portfolio.
External credit reserves serve to protect us from credit losses on a specific asset basis and represent the principal value of interests that are junior to us and are owned by others.
Total reserves of $296 million represented 49 basis points (0.49%) of our credit-enhancement portfolio of $61 billion. Reserves, credit protection, and risks are specific to each

credit-
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enhancement interest. We establish the level of future estimated credit losses as a credit reserve. The reserve is based upon our assessment of various factors affecting our
assets, including economic conditions, characteristics of the underlying loans, delinquency status, and external credit protection. We use a variety of internal and external credit
risk, cash flow modeling, portfolio management, and other analytical tools to assist us in our assessments. Since many of the loans in our portfolio are recently originated, and
we have had a relatively strong economy over the past several years, we would not expect to have significant losses to date relative to what is anticipated over the lives of these
loans.

Table 15

Residential Loan Credit-Enhancement Securities — Credit Protection
(at period end, all dollars in thousands)

Mar. 2003 Dec. 2002 Sep. 2002 Jun. 2002 Mar. 2002
Internal Designated Credit Reserves $234,060 $224,891 $220,735 $206,343 $194,556
External Credit Enhancement 61,814 63,179 64,147 65,102 79,924
Total Credit Protection $295,874 $288,070 $284,882 $271,445 $274,480
As % of Total Portfolio 0.49% 0.49% 0.42% 0.41% 0.42%

Our credit-enhancement securities are rated by the credit rating agencies. For the 574 separate residential loan credit enhancement securities we owned at March 31, 2003,
66 have received an upgrade since our acquisition of the security (28 of these received upgrades of two or more levels) and two received downgrades (one of which was
downgraded by more than one level).

The following provides a summary of the characteristics of the underlying loans in the pools represented by interest we own in our credit-enhancement portfolio. This
information is based on the most recent loan level detail available for each pool. At March 31, 2003, we credit enhanced 138,327 loans. Of the total loans of $61 billion, 34%
were fixed-rate loans, 39% were hybrid loans (loans that are initially fixed and become adjustable 3 to 10 years after origination), and 27% were adjustable-rate loans. The
average size of the loans that we credit-enhanced was $439,164. Loans we credit-enhanced with principal balances in excess of $1 million had an average size of $1.3 million
and a total loan balance of $6.0 billion. These loans over $1 million were 3% of the total number of loans and 10% of the total balance of loans that we credit-enhanced at
March 31, 2003.

On average, our credit-enhancement portfolio loans had 24 months of seasoning at March 31, 2003. Generally, the credit risk for seasoned loans is reduced as property
values appreciate and the loan balances amortize. The current LTV ratio for seasoned loans is often much reduced from the LTV ratio at origination.

Loans with LTV’s at origination in excess of 80% made up 4% of loan balances. We benefit from mortgage insurance or additional pledged collateral on 99% of these
loans, serving to substantially reduce their effective LTV ratios. The average effective LTV at origination for all the loans we credit enhance (including the effect of mortgage
insurance, pledged collateral, and other credit enhancements) was 67%. Given housing appreciation and loan amortization, we believe the average current effective LTV for
these loans at March 31, 2003 was lower than 67%.

The characteristics of the loans that we credit enhanced continued to illustrate the high-quality nature of the loans. The average FICO credit score of borrowers on these
residential mortgage loans (for those loans where a FICO score was obtained) was 729. Borrowers with FICO scores over 720 comprised 61% of this portfolio, those with
scores between 680 and 720 comprised 25%, those with scores between 620 and 680 comprised 13%, and those with scores below 620 comprised 1%. In general, loans with
lower FICO scores have strong compensating factors that may serve to mitigate the apparent higher level of risk generally associated with a borrower that has a lower FICO
score.

44




Table of Contents

Table 16

Residential Loan Credit-Enhancement Securities — Underlying Collateral Characteristics
(all dollars in thousands)

Mar. 2003 Dec. 2002 Sep. 2002 Jun. 2002 Mar. 2002

Underlying Residential Real Estate

Loans $60,748,216 $58,659,110 $68,483,359 $66,061,159 $64,826,605
Number of credit-enhanced loans 138,327 135,196 160,695 165,515 162,502
Average loan size $ 439 $ 434 $ 426 $ 399 $ 398
Adjustable % 27% 20% 20% 19% 19%
Hybrid % 39% 37% 28% 20% 14%
Fixed % 34% 43% 52% 61% 67%
Northern California 26% 27% 27% 25% 25%
Southern California 24% 25% 24% 24% 25%
New York 5% 5% 4% 5% 5%
Florida 4% 3% 3% 3% 3%
Texas 3% 3% 3% 4% 4%
New Jersey 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
Other states (none greater than

3%) 35% 34% 36% 36% 35%
Year 2003 origination 2% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Year 2002 origination 41% 28% 25% 11% 1%
Year 2001 origination 31% 40% 43% 49% 55%
Year 2000 origination 4% 5% 5% 6% 8%
Year 1999 origination 9% 11% 11% 16% 17%
Year 1998 or earlier origination 13% 16% 16% 18% 19%
% balance in loans> $1mm per

loan 10% 8% 6% 5% 4%

The geographic dispersion of our credit-enhancement portfolio generally mirrors that of the jumbo residential market as a whole, with approximately half of our credit-
enhanced loans concentrated in California.

For the loans that we credit enhanced where the home was located in Northern California (26% of the total portfolio), at March 31, 2003, the average loan balance was
$481,591, the average FICO score was 733, and the average LTV at origination was 65%. On average, these Northern California loans had 21 months of seasoning, with 2%
originated in year 2003, 48% in year 2002, 27% in year 2001, and 23% in years 2000 or earlier. At quarter end, loans with principal balances in excess of $1 million had an
average size of $1.3 million and a total loan balance of $1.8 billion. They represented 4% of the total number of Northern California loans and 12% of the total balance of
Northern California loans. Delinquencies in our Northern California residential loan credit-enhancement portfolio at March 31, 2003 were 0.19% of current loan balances.

For the loans that we credit enhanced where the home was located in Southern California (24% of the total portfolio), at March 31, 2003, the average loan balance was
$462,720, the average FICO score was 729, and the average LTV at origination was 67%. On average, these Southern California loans had 31 months of seasoning, with 2%
originated in year 2003, 40% in year 2002, 24% in year 2001, and 34% in years 2000 or earlier. At quarter end, loans with principal balances in excess of $1 million had an
average size of $1.3 million and a total loan balance of $1.7 billion. They represented 4% of the total number of Southern California loans and 12% of the total balance of
Southern California loans. Delinquencies in our Southern California residential loan credit-enhancement portfolio at March 31, 2003 were 0.21% of current loan balances.
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Combined Residential Loan Portfolios

The tables below summarize our residential real estate loan portfolio and our residential loan credit-enhancement loan portfolio on a combined basis. The tables summarize
the credit protection and credit performance on all the residential loans for which we are providing some form of credit enhancement.

Table 17

Residential Portfolios — Credit Protection
(all dollars in thousands)

Total
Redwood’s Credit
Total Residential External Total Protection
Residential Credit Credit Credit As % of
Loans Reserve Enhancement Protection Loans
Q1: 2002 $66,620,865 $200,037 $ 79,924 $279,961 0.42%
Q2: 2002 68,864,715 212,296 65,102 277,398 0.40%
Q3: 2002 73,245,252 227,346 64,147 291,493 0.40%
Q4: 2002 64,874,289 233,162 63,179 296,341 0.46%
Q1: 2003 68,069,255 244,056 61,814 305,870 0.45%
2001 $53,195,718 $145,610 $ 90,224 $235,834 0.44%
2002 64,874,289 233,162 63,179 296,341 0.46%
Table 18
Residential Portfolios — Credit Performance
(all dollars in thousands)
Delinquencies Redwood’s
As % of Share of Losses To Total Credit
Total Net Credit External Total Losses as %
Residential (Losses) Credit Credit of Loans
Delinquencies Loans Recoveries Enhancement Losses (annualized)
Q1: 2002 $ 134,775 0.20% $ 166 $ (618) $ (452) 0.01%
Q2: 2002 153,217 0.22% 74 (189) (115) 0.01%
Q3:2002 152,894 0.21% (283) (103) (386) 0.01%
Q4: 2002 150,353 0.23% (214) (163) (377) 0.01%
Q1: 2003 162,657 0.24% (715) (456) (1,171) 0.01%
2001 $ 129,881 0.24% $(1,146) $ (2,352) $(3,498) 0.01%
2002 150,353 0.23% (257) (1,073) (1,330) 0.01%

Commercial Real Estate Loans

Our commercial real estate loan portfolio increased from $29 million at December 31, 2002 to $31 million at March 31, 2003. We structured and acquired three
commercial loan participations totaling $2 million during the first quarter of 2003. We plan to continue to invest in more commercial loans and commercial loan participations
in the future.
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Table 19

Commercial Real Estate Loans — Activity
(all dollars in thousands)

Start of Period Balances

Acquisitions

Sales

Principal Payments

Amortization Income
Mark-To-Market (Balance Sheet)
Mark-To-Market (Income Statement)

End of Period Balances

Q12003 Q42002 Q32002 Q22002 Q12002
$29,270 $ 50,664 $49,798 $49,380 $51,084
2,011 0 919 470 140
0 0 0 0 0

(68) (21,068) (54) (53) (1,873)
0 24 0 0 28
0 0 0 0 0
1 (350) 1 1 1
$31,214 $ 29,270 $50,664 $49,798 $49,380

All our adjustable-rate commercial real estate loans have interest rate floors. Our yield during the first quarter of 2003 was higher than the yield during the previous quarter
due to the payoff of two lower-yielding loans during the fourth quarter 2002, and investments in higher-yielding participations during the first quarter of 2003.

Table 20

Commercial Real Estate Loans — Interest Income and Yields

(all dollars in thousands)

Q1: 2002
Q2: 2002
Q3: 2002
Q4: 2002
Q1: 2003

2001
2002

Average
Average Net Discount Credit Total
Principal Discount Coupon Amortization Provision Interest
Value Balance Income Income Expense Income Yield
$50,872 $(702) $1,247 $ 27 $ 0 $1,274 10.15%
50,036 (667) 1,233 0 0 1,233 9.99%
50,754 (652) 1,280 0 0 1,280 10.22%
48,590 (655) 1,189 24 0 1,213 10.12%
31,886 (998) 816 0 0 816 10.57%
$68,715 $(851) $7,256 $ 224 $ 0 $7,480 11.02%
50,059 (669) 4,949 51 0 5,000 10.12%

We have been investing in commercial real estate loans since 1998. We had our first commercial real estate loan default in the fourth quarter of 2002. We estimated that
the net realizable value of the property underlying this $1 million loan was approximately $650,000. We wrote down the loan and recognized a $350,000 loss through our
income statement in the fourth quarter of 2002. We anticipate liquidating this asset during 2003. In addition to this loan, a slowing economy — as well as factors particular to
each of our other loans — could cause credit concerns and issues on other loans in our portfolio in the future. If this occurs, we may need to provide for future losses on our

commercial loans held for investment or reduce the reported value for commercial loans held for sale. Other factors may also affect the market value of these loans.
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Table 21

Commercial Real Estate Loans — Characteristics
(at period end, all dollars in thousands)

Mar. 2003 Dec. 2002 Sep. 2002 Jun. 2002 Mar. 2002
Commercial Mortgage Loans $31,214 $29,270 $50,664 $49,978 $49,380
Number of Loans 10 7 9 8 7
Average Loan Size $ 3,121 $ 4,181 $ 5,629 $ 6,247 $ 7,054
Serious Delinquency $ 650 $ 650 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Realized Credit losses $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
California % 40% 36% 62% 61% 61%

Our goal is to secure long-term non-recourse debt for our commercial mortgage loans. At March 31, 2003, one of our commercial loans, totaling $9.7 million of principal,
was financed through long-term debt in the form of a commercial loan participation. In the first quarter of 2003, we acquired subordinated participations in three commercial
mortgage loans originated by others. Our loan participations and our remaining commercial mortgage loans are currently financed with equity.

Securities Portfolio

Our securities portfolio consists of all the securities that we own with the exception of residential loan credit-enhancement securities (discussed above) and cash-equivalent
securities. We account for our securities portfolio assets as available for sale and thus report them on our balance sheet at their estimated fair value. Current period unrealized
gains are reported as market valuation adjustments on the balance sheet.

For several years, we have been shifting the asset mix of our securities portfolio. We have increased our investment in residential and commercial real estate loan securities
(primarily rated AA, A, and BBB) that can be funded efficiently through the issuance of securitized long-term non-recourse debt and we have sold our Fannie Mae, Freddie
Mac, and other AAA-rated securities that require the use of short-term recourse funding (“repo”). Repo debt is subject to various liquidity risks, including rollover risk and
collateral margin calls. We sold the last of our securities that require repo funding during the fourth quarter of 2002, thus completing this shift in asset mix and significantly
strengthening our balance sheet. We continue to invest in diverse real estate loan securities that are suitable for long-term funding.

At March 31, 2003, our securities portfolio consisted of $366 million of real estate loan securities, including prime residential, sub-prime residential, manufactured
housing, second-lien residential, diverse commercial real estate, and real estate Collateralized Debt Obligation (CDO) securities. As investors in these generally investment-
grade securities, we are exposed to the credit risk of the underlying mortgage loans but we also benefit from a significant degree of credit-enhancement that the rating agencies
require in order to give these securities an investment-grade rating. We also own equity in real estate-oriented CDOs. We have also recently made initial investments in below-
investment grade commercial real estate credit-enhancement securities and in investment-grade corporate debt issued by REITSs that own commercial real estate properties.

A portion of our securities portfolio was financed through long-term debt through two resecuritizations completed in 2002. One of these was our first issuance of CDO debt
through our Acacia CDO program. We are planning additional similar long-term debt issuances in the future (we issued $284 million of additional CDO debt in our Acacia 2
securitization transaction in May 2003). Long-term debt associated with our securities portfolio totaled $336 million at March 31, 2003; a slight decrease from the long-term
debt of $344 million at December 31, 2002. Short-term debt associated with our securities portfolio increased from $0 at December 31, 2002 to $40 million at March 31, 2003.
The increase in short-term debt during the first quarter of 2003 was the result of funding some securities on a short-term basis as we accumulated these securities in anticipation
of a long-term debt securitization. We plan to continue to use short-term debt to finance the accumulation of securities prior to long-term debt securitizations.
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All assets in our securities portfolio are reported on our balance sheet at their estimated fair value. Changes in the market value in the securities we currently own are
generally reported in the balance sheet in Accumulated Other Compensation Income. Nearly all of our existing securities fall under the provisions of EITF 99-20 and adverse
changes in cash flows may result in market valuation adjustments to be taken through our income statement. The market value of some securities may fall below our reported
value, as a result of changes in interest rates or market spreads. In these instances, negative changes in market value continue to be reported in our balance sheet. Conversely,
positive changes in projected cash flows may increase the market value of the assets and this increase in value will be reflected in our balance sheet; additionally, positive
valuation trends may result in our recognizing a higher yield on the asset over its remaining life.

Table 22

Securities Portfolio — Activity
(all dollars in thousands)

Start of Period Balances

Acquisitions

Sales

Principal Payments

Amortization Income (Expense)
Mark-To-Market (Balance Sheet)
Mark-To-Market (Income Statement)

End of Period Balances

Q42002 Q32002 Q22002 Q1 2002
$335,697 $ 491,756 $512,490 $609,432 $683,482
196,279 6,811 23,026 76,701
(315,308) 0 (56,802) (89,395)
(31,009) (31,830) (65,617) (60,040)
(24) (1,052) (1,249) (1,701)
(7,128) 970 3,017 (444)
1,131 4367 683 829
$366,307 $ 335,697 $491,756 $512,490 $609,432

Total interest income from our securities portfolio was $4.2 million in the first quarter of 2003, an increase from $3.9 million in the fourth quarter of 2002, and a decrease
from the $8.5 million in the first quarter of 2002. These changes were the result of changes in average balances and lower yields.

Yields for our securities portfolio decreased during the first quarter as compared to the fourth quarter 2002 as the coupon rates on our variable rate securities continued to
reset downwards, reflecting a lagged response to the decline in short-term interest rates. The yield during the first quarter of 2003 was 4.66%, a decrease from the 4.93% in the

fourth quarter of 2002, and 5.03% in the first quarter of 2002.
Table 23

Securities Portfolio — Interest Income and Yields
(all dollars in thousands)

Average Net
Average Net Premium Total
Principal Premium Interest Amortization Interest
Value Balance Income Expense Income Yield

Q1: 2002 $666,570 $10,122 $10,215 $ (1,701) $ 8,514 5.03%
Q2: 2002 520,844 8,999 7,471 (1,249) 6,222 4.70%
Q3:2002 486,095 7,902 6,770 (1,051) 5,719 4.63%
Q4: 2002 316,385 3,769 3,973 24) 3,949 4.93%
Q1:2003 359,075 1,009 4,189 3 4,192 4.66%
2001 $758,844 $12,092 $57,626 $ (3,369) $54,257 7.04%
2002 496,483 7,918 28,429 (4,025) 24,404 4.84%
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The table below presents our securities portfolio at March 31, 2003 by asset type and current credit rating.
Table 24

Securities Portfolio — Characteristics at March 31, 2003
(all dollars in thousands)

Rating:
Securities Total AAA AA A BBB BB B Unrated
Commercial Real Estate $ 45,282 $ 4,549 $ 0 $ 12,196 $ 24,678 $ 0 $3,859 $ 0
Residential Prime 106,527 41,932 40,282 14,462 9,851 0 0 0
Residential Subprime 101,282 0 19,159 47,147 34,976 0 0 0
Residential Second Lien 35,122 1,570 16,094 13,333 4,125 0 0 0
Manufactured Housing 13,927 2,942 5,125 5,860 0 0 0 0
Corporate REIT Debt 31,583 0 0 7,164 24,419 0 0 0
Real Estate CDOs 32,584 0 4,865 10,403 13,854 0 0 3,462
Total Securities Portfolio $366,307 $50,993 $85,525 $110,565 $111,903 $ 0 $3,859 $3,462

Interest Expense

Our reported cost of borrowed funds continued to fall as the interest rates on our borrowings adjusted to the decrease in short term interest rates with a lag. Our total
reported cost of funds was 2.10% during the first quarter of 2003, a decrease from 2.35% in the fourth quarter of 2002 and 2.82% in the first quarter of 2002. Our greater
utilization of more costly long-term debt was more than offset by a decrease in the short-term interest rate indices that determine the cost of our adjustable-rate debt.

Our average reported debt levels continued to rise as we acquired residential loans, issued non-recourse long-term debt to fund these acquisitions, and accounted for these
securitizations as financings. Our average reported borrowings were $7.0 billion during the first quarter of 2003, an increase from $5.7 billion in the fourth quarter of 2002 and
$2.2 billion in the first quarter of 2002.

Total reported interest expense was $36.9 million in the first quarter of 2003, as compared to $33.3 million in the fourth quarter of 2002 and $15.6 million in the first quarter
of 2002.

Table 25

Interest Expense
(all dollars in thousands)

Long Long Short Short
Term Term Term Term Total
Debt Debt Average Debt Debt Total Cost
Average Long Interest Cost of Short Term Interest Cost of Interest of
Term Debt Expense Funds Debt Expense Funds Expense Funds
Q1: 2002 $1,280,503 $10,661 3.33% $931,424 $ 4,941 2.12% $15,602 2.82%
Q2: 2002 1,806,884 12,894 2.85% 945,331 5,595 2.37% 18,489 2.69%
Q3: 2002 2,893,682 18,893 2.61% 888,035 5,398 2.43% 24,291 2.57%
Q4: 2002 5,018,353 28,945 2.31% 661,885 4,378 2.65% 33,323 2.35%
Q1: 2003 6,637,053 34,993 2.11% 399,130 1,940 1.94% 36,933 2.10%
2001 $1,054,135 $57,668 5.47% $891,251 $40,401 4.53% $98,069 5.04%
2002 2,760,490 71,393 2.58% 856,016 20,312 2.37% 91,705 2.54%

On a recourse basis (assuming we had structured our non-recourse securitizations to obtain sales accounting treatment rather than financing accounting treatment) our cost
of borrowed funds fell to 1.94% in the first quarter of 2003 from 2.65% in the fourth quarter in 2002 and 2.12% in the first quarter of 2002. In the first quarter of 2003, however,
our cost of recourse debt decreased as our mix of securities and loans we funded
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with short-term debt was more heavily weighted towards assets that were less expensive to borrow against and as short-term interest rates continued to fall. Our recourse debt
balances have declined from $0.9 billion during the first quarter of 2002 to $0.7 billion during the fourth quarter of 2002 to $0.4 billion during the first quarter of 2003 as we

reduced short-term debt balances by securitizing some assets and selling others. As a result of lower interest rates and lower recourse debt balances, our interest expense on a
recourse basis declined from $4.9 million in the first quarter of 2002 to $4.4 million in the fourth quarter of 2002 and $1.9 million in the first quarter of 2003.
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We continue to issue long-term debt to finance our residential loans, commercial loans, and securities. The tables below lists our long-term debt issuance through
March 31, 2003. The principal balance of each of these long-term debt issuances pays down as a function of the principal payouts received on the underlying real estate loans or
securities.

Table 26
Long-Term Debt Characteristics

Residential Mortgage Loans — Sequoia
(all dollars in thousands)

Principal Interest
Original Estimated Outstanding Rate At
Sequoia Debt Issue Issue Stated Callable At Mar. 31, Mar. 31,
Long Term Debt Issue Rating Date Amount Index Maturity Date 2003 2003
Sequoia 1 Al AAA 7/29/97 $ 334,347 Im LIBOR 2/15/28 Called $ 0 NM
Sequoia 1 A2 AAA 7/29/97 200,000 Fed Funds 2/15/28 Called 0 NM
Sequoia 2 Al AAA 11/6/97 592,560 1y Treasury 3/30/29 2004 182,689 2.97%
Sequoia 2 A2 AAA 11/6/97 156,600 Im LIBOR 3/30/29 2004 48,281 1.65%
Sequoia 3 Al AAA 6/26/98 225,459 Fixed to 12/02 5/31/28 Retired 0 NM
Sequoia 3 A2 AAA 6/26/98 95,000 Fixed to 12/02 5/31/28 Retired 0 NM
Sequoia 3 A3 AAA 6/26/98 164,200 Fixed to 12/02 5/31/28 Retired 0 NM
Sequoia 3 A4 AAA 6/26/98 121,923 Im LIBOR 5/31/28 Called 0 NM
Sequoia 3 M1 AA/AAA 6/26/98 16,127 Im LIBOR 5/31/28 Called 0 NM
Sequoia 3 M2 A/AA 6/26/98 7,741 Im LIBOR 5/31/28 Called 0 NM
Sequoia 3 M3 BBB/A 6/26/98 4,838 Im LIBOR 5/31/28 Called 0 NM
Sequoia 1A Al AAA 5/4/99 157,266 Im LIBOR 2/15/28 Called 0 NM
Sequoia 4 A AAA 3/21/00 377,119 Im LIBOR 8/31/24 2006 197,422 1.66%
Sequoia 5 A AAA 10/29/01 496,667 Im LIBOR 10/29/26 2008 424,278 1.63%
Sequoia 5 B1 AA 10/29/01 5,918 Im LIBOR 10/29/26 2008 5,918 2.08%
Sequoia 5 B2 A 10/29/01 5,146 Im LIBOR 10/29/26 2008 5,146 2.08%
Sequoia 5 B3 BBB 10/29/01 2,316 Im LIBOR 10/29/26 2008 2,316 2.08%
Sequoia 6A AAA 4/26/02 496,378 Im LIBOR 4/26/27 2008 449,610 1.60%
Sequoia 6B1 AA 4/26/02 5,915 Im LIBOR 4/26/27 2008 5,915 1.98%
Sequoia 7A AAA 5/29/02 554,686 Im LIBOR 5/29/32 2008 505,768 1.62%
Sequoia 7B1 AA 5/29/02 8,080 Im LIBOR 5/29/32 2008 8,080 2.03%
Sequoia 8 1A-1 AAA 7/30/02 50,000 Im LIBOR 8/20/32 2008 14,040 1.41%
Sequoia 8 1A-2 AAA 7/30/02 61,468 Fixed to 12/04 8/20/32 2008 61,468 3.46%
Sequoia 8 2A AAA 7/30/02 463,097 Im LIBOR 8/20/32 2008 434,819 1.58%
Sequoia 8 3A AAA 7/30/02 49,973 6m LIBOR 8/20/32 2008 46,434 3.32%
Sequoia 8 B1 AA 7/30/02 9,069 Im LIBOR 8/20/32 2008 9,069 1.96%
Sequoia 9 1A AAA 8/28/02 381,689 Im LIBOR 9/20/32 2010 369,490 1.63%
Sequoia 9 2A AAA 8/28/02 168,875 Im LIBOR 9/20/32 2010 151,945 3.00%
Sequoia 9 B1 AA 8/28/02 7,702 Im LIBOR 9/20/32 2010 7,702 2.03%
Sequoia 10 1A AAA 9/26/02 822,375 Im LIBOR 10/20/27 2010 797,232 1.68%
Sequoia 10 2A-1 AAA 9/26/02 190,000 Im LIBOR 10/20/27 2010 185,348 1.66%
Sequoia 10 2A-2 AAA 9/26/02 3,500 Im LIBOR 10/20/27 2010 3,500 1.96%
Sequoia 10 B1 AA 9/26/02 12,600 Im LIBOR 10/20/27 2010 12,600 2.08%
Sequoia 10 B2 A 9/26/02 8,400 Im LIBOR 10/20/27 2010 8,400 2.08%
Sequoia 10 B3 BBB 9/26/02 4,725 Im LIBOR 10/20/27 2010 4,725 2.68%
Sequoia 11 A AAA 10/30/02 695,210 Im LIBOR 12/21/32 2011 675,601 1.73%
Sequoia 11 B1 AA 10/30/02 9,726 Im LIBOR 12/21/32 2011 9,726 2.25%
Sequoia 12 A AAA 12/19/02 1,080,076 Im LIBOR 1/21/33 2011 1,064,445 1.73%
Sequoia 12 B1 AA 12/19/02 16,815 Im LIBOR 1/21/33 2011 16,815 2.13%
Sequoia 2003-1 1A AAA 2/27/03 798,206 Im LIBOR 4/20/33 2009 796,110 1.66%
Sequoia 2003-1 2A AAA 2/27/03 190,000 6m LIBOR 4/20/33 2009 189,318 1.74%
Sequoia 2003-1 B1 AA 2/27/03 15,905 Im LIBOR 4/20/33 2009 15,905 2.16%
Sequoia 2003-1 B2 A 2/27/03 8,210 Pass Through 4/20/33 2009 8,210 2.86%
Total Sequoia Issuance $9,075,907 $ 6,718,325 1.77%
I I —
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Table 27

Long-Term Debt Characteristics
Commercial Real Estate Loans
(all dollars in thousands)

Principal Interest
Original Estimated Outstanding Rate At
Commercial Debt Issue Issue Stated Callable At Mar. 31, Mar. 31,
Long Term Debt Issue Rating Date Amount Index Maturity Date 2003 2003
Commercial 1 NR 3/30/01 $ 9,010 1m LIBOR 11/1/02 Paid Off $ 0 NM
Commercial 2 NR 3/30/01 8,320 Im LIBOR 10/1/03 Paid Off 0 NM
Commercial 3 NR 3/1/02 8,318 1m LIBOR 7/1/03 NC 8,267 8.63%
Total Commercial Issuance $25,648 $ 8,267 8.63%
Table 28
Long-Term Debt Characteristics
Collateralized Debt Obligations and Other Resecuritizations — Acacia and SMFC
(all dollars in thousands)
Principal Interest
Original Estimated Outstanding Rate At
Resecuritizations Debt Issue Issue Stated Callable At Mar. 31, Mar. 31,
Long Term Debt Issue Rating Date Amount Index Maturity Date 2003 2003
SMFC 2002A Al AAA 4/30/02 $ 64,761 Im LIBOR 4/30/30 2008 $ 42,151 1.91%
SMFC 2002A A2 AAA 4/30/02 15,861 1m LIBOR 8/30/29 2008 12,736 2.06%
Acacia CDO 1 A AAA 12/10/02 224,250 3m LIBOR 12/4/18 2010 224,247 2.00%
AcaciaCDO 1B AA 12/10/02 45,000 3m LIBOR 12/4/37 2010 45,000 2.72%
AcaciaCDO1C BBB 12/10/02 15,750 3m LIBOR 12/4/37 2010 15,750 4.12%
SMFC 2002B I A1 AA 12/19/02 16,855 Fixed 8/28/31 2006 16,693 5.43%
SMFC 2002B I A2 A 12/19/02 18,274 Fixed 8/28/31 2006 18,099 5.68%
SMFC 2002B I A3 BBB 12/19/02 17,221 Fixed 8/28/31 2006 17,054 6.38%
SMFC 2002B I A4 BB 12/19/02 25,133 Fixed 8/28/31 2006 24,890 6.75%
SMFC 2002B IT A1 AA 12/19/02 15,517 Fixed 12/29/39 2006 12,126 4.82%
SMEFC 2002B II A2 A 12/19/02 18,345 Fixed 12/29/39 2006 14,336 4.92%
SMFC 2002B IT A3 BBB 12/19/02 14,989 Fixed 12/29/39 2006 11,714 5.35%
SMEFC 2002B II A4 BB 12/19/02 8,347 Fixed 12/29/39 2006 6,523 6.00%
Total Resecuritizations $500,303 $461,319 3.13%

Interest Rate Agreements

We enter into interest rate agreements from time to time to assist in the management of interest rate risk. Through September 30, 2002, we had not elected to obtain hedge
accounting treatment under FAS 133 on any of our interest rate agreements. Thus, prior to the fourth quarter of 2002, all our interest rate agreements were reported at fair value
with any changes in values reported through our income statement under realized and unrealized mark-to-market adjustments.

Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2002, due to asset growth, changes in our balance sheet, and other factors, we expanded our use of interest rate agreements. We use these
interest rate agreements in an effort to reduce earnings volatility that arises from our future and existing variable rate liabilities. We are able to obtain cash flow hedge
accounting treatment for many of our interest rate agreements under FAS 133. Under this accounting treatment, the interest rate agreements are reported at fair market value
through the balance sheet, with any ineffective portion of the hedges reflected in our income statement, either through interest expense or through our unrealized or realized
mark-to-market valuation adjustments. We recognized a minimal amount of ineffectiveness in these hedges during the first quarter of 2003. As of March 31, 2003, the balance
of Other
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Comprehensive Income related to net unrealized and realized market value losses on our Interest Rate Agreements was $4.2 million, of which $0.5 million related to expired
Eurodollar futures contracts. The $0.5 million related to these futures contracts will be reclassified to interest expense on long-term debt on the Consolidated Statements of
Operations during the second quarter of 2003, as that was the hedged period.

Operating Expenses

Operating expense as a percentage of equity and operating expense as a percentage of net interest income are, in our opinion, good measures of operating cost efficiency for
our company. Although these measures vary from year to year and quarter to quarter, the general trend has been towards greater productivity, especially from a fixed cost
perspective. However, since a large portion of our operating expenses include variable compensation accruals tied to earnings and dividends, our improved performance over
the past few years (especially the increase in our taxable REIT income which has caused increases in associated accruals for future DER payments) has increased our variable
compensation expenses. Operating expense as a percentage of average total equity increased over the last few quarters, from 4.2% in the first quarter of 2002 to 5.3% in the
fourth quarter of 2002 and in the first quarter of 2003. Operating expense as a percentage of average core equity increased over the last few quarters, from 4.3% in the first
quarter of 2002 to 6.0% in the fourth quarter of 2002 and 6.2% in the first quarter of 2003. Operating expenses as a percentage of net interest income increased over the last year
from 23% in the first quarter of 2002 to 29% in the fourth quarter of 2002 and 27% in the first quarter of 2003. If we continue to increase the scale of our business, we generally
expect to benefit from fixed-cost operating leverage — we expect growth in our fixed operating expenses to be restrained relative to growth in equity and net interest income.
Variable operating expenses will track trends in our financial operating performance.

Table 29

Operating Expenses
(all dollars in thousands)

Fixed
Efficiency
Efficiency Ratio:
Variable Operating Operating Ratio: Fixed
(Performance Expenses/ Expenses/ Operating Operating
Total Fixed Based) Average Average Expenses/ Expenses/
Operating Operating Operating Total Core Net Interest Net Interest
Expenses Expenses Expenses Equity Equity Income Income
Q1: 2002 $ 3,546 $ 1,758 § 1,788 4.2% 4.3% 23% 12%
Q2: 2002 4,536 2,081 2,455 4.7% 4.9% 26% 12%
Q3:2002 4,290 2,101 2,189 4.0% 4.5% 24% 12%
Q4: 2002 6,009 2,230 3,779 5.3% 6.0% 29% 11%
Q1:2003 6,472 2,663 3,809 5.3% 6.2% 27% 11%
2001 $11,836 $ 6,282 $ 5,554 4.7% 4.8% 25% 14%
2002 18,381 8,170 10,211 4.6% 4.9% 26% 11%

Stock Options Expenses

We currently recognize the cost of stock options issuance in our GAAP financial statements in two ways. First, in accordance with GAAP, we recognize in our per-share
calculations the potential dilutive effect of all of our outstanding options that are in the money (those that have an option strike price less than the current Redwood share price).
Our GAAP earnings per share, which is calculated on a diluted share basis, was $0.88 in the first quarter of 2003. Without this calculation of potential dilution, reported GAAP
earnings (per basic share) was $0.91 per share. For the first quarter of 2003, the difference between our average shares outstanding and average diluted shares outstanding
(incorporating the potential dilutive effect of options) was 570,646 shares, or 3.5% of our average shares outstanding.
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Second, we include in GAAP income stock options expenses associated with a portion of our stock options that require variable accounting treatment under GAAP. This
GAAP expense represents the change in the in-the-money amount (stock price less strike price, times number of options outstanding) of a portion of our outstanding stock
options. This is not a cash expense. In periods of stock price appreciation we will incur an expense. In the first quarter of 2003 we recognized an expense of $0.9 million, or
$0.06 per diluted share for this period. During periods of stock price decline, this accounting treatment may increase our reported income for the quarter. This expense (or
income) is included in Variable Stock Option Expense on our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Since this expense is based on the market price of our common stock per
share, we exclude it from our core earnings calculations.

We have not adopted the fair value method under FAS 123 as a method of accounting for stock options expenses and related items. However, consistent with the disclosure
requirements of FAS 123 and FAS 148, we calculate the effect to earnings that this accounting treatment would provide and disclose such information elsewhere in our Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. As shown therein, the effect to year 2002 and the first quarter of 2003 earnings of adoption of this method of expensing stock options for
accounting purposes would have reduced our reported earnings by less than 2%.

Net Unrealized And Realized Market Value Gains and Losses

Changes in the market value of certain of our real estate assets and interest rate agreements affect our net income each year. For the first quarter of 2003, positive income
statement mark-to-market adjustments totaled a $0.9 million ($0.05 per diluted share) as compared to $1.5 million ($0.09 per diluted share) in the fourth quarter of 2002 and
$0.9 million ($0.06 per diluted share) in the first quarter of 2002. We also mark-to-market certain assets through our balance sheet; these adjustments affect our reported book
value but not our net income. Net balance sheet adjustments were negative $1.1 million in the first quarter of 2003 ($0.06 per diluted share), a positive $15.0 million in the
fourth quarter of 2002 ($0.91 per diluted share), and a positive $8.3 million in the first quarter of 2002 ($0.59 per diluted share).

Preferred Stock

Our expense for preferred stock dividends was $0.7 million per quarter over the last several years, reflecting a dividend of $0.755 per share on 902,068 shares outstanding.
In April 2003, we announced the conversion of this preferred stock into common stock. On May 2, 2003, each of the 902,068 outstanding shares of preferred stock was
converted into one share of common stock.

Shareholder Wealth

In the 8.5 years since the commencement of Redwood’s operations, cumulative shareholder wealth has grown at a compound rate of 20% per year. We define shareholder
wealth as growth in tangible book value per share, plus dividends paid, plus reinvestment of dividends. In calculating shareholder wealth, we assume that dividends were
reinvested through the purchase of additional shares at the prevailing book value per share. With this assumption, the shareholder wealth we created can be compared to book
value per share growth at a non-REIT company that has retained its earnings and compounded book value within the company. This is a measure of management value-added,
not a measure of actual shareholder returns.

Book value per share was $11.67 in September 1994 when we commenced operations. We increased reported book value to $27.64 per share at March 31, 2003 through the
retention of cash by keeping dividends lower than cash flow, net positive changes in market values of assets, issuance of stock at prices above book value, and repurchases of
stock at prices below book value. Since we mark-to-market many of our assets through our balance sheet, reported book value is a good approximation of tangible value in the
company. Cumulative dividends paid during this period were $13.405 per share, and reinvestment earnings on those dividends were $13.21 per share. Thus, cumulatively,
shareholder wealth has increased from $11.67 per share to $54.25 per share during this 8.5-year period. A company that earned a 20% after-tax return on equity and retained all
its earnings would have shown a similar amount of shareholder wealth growth during this period.
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Table 30

Shareholder Wealth
(dollars per share)

Book Dividends Cumulative
Value Declared Reinvestment Cumulative
Per During Cumulative Earnings on Shareholder
Share Period Dividends Dividends Wealth
Sep. 1994 $11.67 $0.000 $ 0.000 $ 0.00 $ 11.67
Dec. 1994 10.82 0.250 0.250 0.00 11.07
Dec. 1995 12.38 0.960 1.210 0.09 13.68
Dec. 1996 16.50 1.670 2.880 1.07 20.45
Dec. 1997 21.55 2.150 5.030 3.07 29.65
Dec. 1998 20.27 0.280 5.310 2.67 28.25
Dec. 1999 20.88 0.400 5.710 3.07 29.66
Dec. 2000 21.47 1.610 7.320 4.11 32.90
Dec. 2001 22.21 2.550 9.870 6.03 38.11
Dec. 2002 27.43 2.885 12.755 12.43 52.62
Mar. 2003 27.64 0.650 13.405 13.21 54.25

Taxable Income and Dividends

Prior to 2002, we distributed over time as preferred and common stock dividends 100% of our taxable REIT income. However, to maintain our REIT status we need only
distribute 90% of our taxable REIT income. In the future (including in 2003), we may elect to retain (and pay corporate income taxes on) up to 10% of our taxable REIT
income while continuing to maintain our REIT status.

Through 2001, we have declared by the end of each calendar year dividend distributions equal to all undistributed taxable REIT income from the prior year plus at least
85% of the taxable REIT income we have earned in that calendar year. In 2003 (as occurred in 2002), we anticipate that our dividend declarations during the year will be less
than the amount that would result in an 85% distribution of year 2002 taxable REIT income. Thus, we provided for an excise tax expense during the first quarter of 2003 of
$0.9 million, or $0.05 per share. This expense is an estimate of our tax liability and may be revised throughout the course of the year. Retained earnings are available to support
future investments in real estate assets and to support future dividend payments.

Our taxable REIT income usually differs materially from our core earnings and reported GAAP income as GAAP and tax income calculation methods differ. Also, we
conduct a portion of our real estate loan investment business in taxable subsidiaries; taxable income earned in these subsidiaries is part of GAAP and core earnings but is not
part of our taxable REIT income and is not subject to minimum dividend distribution requirements. We may elect to transfer a larger portion of our business to our taxable
subsidiaries, which would likely have the effect of raising our tax liabilities (after any net tax operating losses in these subsidiaries were utilized) and reducing our minimum
dividend distribution requirements, but increasing retained earnings over time. Our goal in taking any such actions to retain income would be to increase the sustainability of
our current regular dividend. To the extent we retain earnings, special dividend payments in the future may be reduced.

Our Board of Directors sets our common stock dividend policy and distributions. Generally, distributions depend on our taxable REIT income, GAAP earnings, core
income, cash flows, overall financial condition, maintenance of REIT status, and such other factors as the Board of Directors deems relevant. The Board of Directors may
reduce our regular dividend rate when it believes it may be in the long-term interest of Redwood Trust and its shareholders to do so. No dividends will be paid or set apart for
payment on shares of our common stock unless full cumulative dividends have been paid on our Class B 9.74% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock. As of March 31,
2003, full cumulative dividends have been paid on this Preferred
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Stock. On April 1, 2003, we announced the redemption of this preferred by converting all the shares into common shares. Thus, starting with the second quarter of 2003, we will
no longer have any preferred dividend expense, but we will have additional outstanding common shares.

Under current policy, the Board sets our regular dividend for common shareholders at a rate that it believes is more likely than not to be sustainable, given current
expectations for cash flow generation and other factors. In years when our minimum dividend distribution requirement under the REIT rules exceeds what we believe to be our
sustainable dividend rate, the Board may declare one or more special quarterly cash dividends, or chose to defer payment of the dividends and pay an excise tax on a portion of
the deferred distributions, or retain a portion of the income and pay income taxes on the retained portion.

Distributions to our shareholders will generally be subject to tax as ordinary income, although a portion of such distributions may be designated as capital gain or may
constitute a tax-free return of capital. We furnish annually to each shareholder a statement setting forth distributions paid during the preceding year and their characterization as
ordinary income, capital gains or return of capital. For a discussion of the Federal income tax treatment of our distributions, see “Federal Income Tax Considerations —
Taxation of Holders of Redwood Trust’s Common Stock” elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Our Board of Directors may elect to maintain a steady dividend rate during periods of fluctuating REIT taxable income. In such event, the Board may choose to declare
dividends that include a return of capital for tax purposes.

We will generally attempt to avoid acquiring assets or structuring financings or sales at the REIT corporate level that may generate distributions of unrelated business
taxable income (UBTI) or excess inclusion income to our shareholders or prohibited transaction taxes on the REIT; there can be no assurance that we will be successful in
doing so.

Our estimated taxable REIT income per common share was $27.0 million, or $1.59 per common share during the first quarter of 2003.

Table 31

Differences Between GAAP Income and Estimated REIT Taxable Income
(all dollars in thousands, except per share)

Q1: 2003 2002 2001
GAAP Income $14,932 $53,893 $30,163
(Earnings)/losses from taxable subsidiaries (1,050) (628) (1,024)
Amortization and credit expenses 9,583 22,399 (4,543)
Operating expenses 3,818 5,232 4,150
Provision for excise tax 862 959 0
Mark-to-market adjustments (1,175) (4,942) 666
Taxable REIT income for common shareholders 26,970 76,913 29,412

We will distribute in the first three quarters of 2003 the $35 million of taxable REIT income that we earned but did not distribute in 2002. Once we distribute the
$35 million, we will begin distributing our taxable REIT income from 2003. The timing of the distributions of this income is dependent on the Board of Director’s decisions
regarding the amount and timing of dividend declarations and the number of common and preferred shares outstanding at the various record dates. We intend to maintain our
REIT status and meet all the distribution requirements necessary to do so. We currently intend to retain a portion of our taxable REIT income (up to 10%) and pay corporate
income taxes on this retained income. Thus, we provided for an income tax expense during the first quarter of 2003 of $1.2 million, or $0.07 per share. This expense is an
estimate of our tax liability and may be revised throughout the course of the year. Retained earnings are available to support future investments in real estate assets and to
support future dividend payments. This will increase our permanent equity base and should, we believe, help to support continued dividend stability.
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Financial Condition, Liquidity, and Capital Resources

Short-Term Borrowings and Liquidity

Our $476 million of short-term borrowings at March 31, 2003 had maturities of less than one year and had interest rates that changed monthly to a margin over the one
month LIBOR interest rate.

Some of our short-term borrowing facilities are committed but most are uncommitted. These committed facilities are generally for a term of up to one year, although
certain assets maybe funded for periods of up to three years. These committed facilities have restrictions on pledged asset types and debt covenant tests; we continue to meet
these requirements.

At March 31, 2003, we had over a dozen uncommitted facilities for short-term collateralized debt to fund higher-rated securities, with credit approval in excess of $4 billion
of borrowings. We have had no difficulty securing short-term borrowings on favorable terms for these securities. We had no outstanding borrowings under these agreements at
March 31, 2003. The amount of short-term borrowings collateralized with securities will fluctuate from month to month as our acquisition and securitization programs continue.

At March 31, 2003, we also had three short-term facilities totaling $1.4 billion available to fund the residential mortgage loans that we acquire in anticipation of
securitization transactions. The amount we have outstanding at any quarter end is a function of the pace of our acquisitions relative to the timing of our securitizations. We had
$436 million short-term borrowings collateralized by residential mortgages outstanding at March 31, 2003, an increase from $100 million at December 31, 2002. We completed
a securitization in February 2003 (Sequoia 2003-01) and another securitization in April 2003 (Sequoia 2003-02) and used the proceeds from the long-term debt issued in these
securitizations to pay down a portion of our short-term borrowings. The amount of short-term borrowings collateralized with residential mortgage loans will fluctuate from
quarter to quarter, and could be significantly different than the $436 million we had at March 31, 2003, as our acquisition and securitization programs continue.

We had four borrowing facilities for residential loan credit-enhancement securities totaling $170 million outstanding at March 31, 2003. In addition to these committed
facilities, we may also finance certain of these assets through non-committed borrowing arrangements. We had no outstanding borrowings under all these agreements at
March 31, 2003, or December 31, 2002. The amount of short-term borrowings collateralized with our residential loan credit enhancement securities will fluctuate from quarter
to quarter as our acquisition and securitization programs continue.

Our general plan is to replace short-term debt funding with long-term debt funding for the bulk of our assets. We generally intend to fund the bulk of our BB-rated credit-
enhancement securities portfolio with equity or the issuance of long-term debt in the form of CDOs, re-REMICS, or other forms of resecuritizations. We completed our first
CDO through our Acacia program (Acacia 1) in the fourth quarter of 2002. We also completed a resecuritization of several of our residential loan credit-enhancement securities
in the fourth quarter of 2002 (SMFC 2002-B). Our other credit-enhancement securities, those rated B or below, we generally fund with equity.

At March 31, 2003, we had one warehousing facility in place to assist us in accumulating real estate securities for our Acacia 2 CDO debt issuance. Under this warehouse
agreement we had $40 million of short-term borrowings collateralized by $41 million of our securities. In addition, the warehouse has accumulated $133 million of assets
which do not appear on our balance sheet as of March 31, 2003. Under the terms of the warehouse agreement, we will be able to acquire these assets to place into our Acacia
CDO program. The market value of these assets at March 31, 2003 was $133 million and under the warehouse agreement, our purchase price for these assets was $133 million.
In May 2003, we issued long-term debt of $284 million through our Acacia CDO program (Acacia 2) and acquired all assets on the warehouse facility at settlement of the CDO
with a portion of the long-term debt proceeds. We will enter into other forms of warehousing and borrowing agreements that may facilitate the accumulation and eventual
securitization of loans and securities.
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Our total levels of short-term debt will vary from quarter to quarter based on the timing of our asset accumulation and securitization activities. We believe our short-term
debt balances are most likely to remain between $0 and $1.5 billion.

At this time, we see no material negative trends that we believe would affect our access to long-term borrowings, short-term borrowings, or bank credit lines sufficient to
maintain safe operations, or that would suggest that our liquidity reserves would be called upon, or that would likely cause us to be in danger of a debt covenant default. Our
covenants generally relate to our tangible net worth, liquidity reserves, and leverage requirements. We have not had, nor do we currently anticipate having, any problems in
meeting these covenants. However, many factors, including ones external to us, may affect our ability to meet these covenants and may affect our liquidity in the future. There
can be no assurance that we will be able to find or retain sufficient borrowing agreements to fund our current operations or our potential acquisition opportunities.

Under our internal risk-adjusted capital system, we maintain liquidity reserves in the form of cash and unpledged liquid assets. These liquidity reserves may be needed for a
variety of reasons, including a decline in the market value or a change in the acceptability to lenders of the collateral we pledge to secure short-term borrowings. We continue to
maintain liquidity reserves at or in excess of our policy levels. At March 31, 2003, we had $43 million of unrestricted cash and highly liquid (unpledged) assets available to
meet potential liquidity needs. Thus, total available liquidity equaled 9% of our short-term debt balances. At December 31, 2002, we had $39 million of liquid assets, equaling
39% of our short-term debt balances. The decrease in this ratio in 2003 was primarily the result of the timing of our securitizations; we completed securitizations in December
2002, February 2003, and April 2003. While we anticipate having a strong liquidity position at all times, our ratio of liquid assets to short-term debt will fluctuate from quarter
to quarter as we continue to fund our residential real estate loans and other securities with short-term borrowings prior to securitization.

Long-Term Debt

All of the $7.2 billion of long-term debt on our March 31, 2003 consolidated balance sheet was non-recourse debt. Substantially all this debt ($6.7 billion) was issued
through our special purpose financing subsidiaries (our Sequoia and Acacia programs) and was collateralized by residential real estate loans and real estate securities. The
holders of our long-term debt can look for repayment only from the cash flows from the real estate specifically collateralizing the debt; the debt is non-recourse to Redwood. By
using this source of financing, our liquidity risks are limited. Our special purpose financing subsidiaries that issue debt have no call on Redwood’s general liquidity reserves, and
there is no debt rollover risk as the loans are financed to maturity. The market for AAA-rated long-term debt of the type that we issue to fund residential loans through Sequoia
is a large global market that has been relatively stable for many years. At this time, we believe we could issue more of this debt on reasonable terms if we should choose to do
so. In April 2003, we issued $0.8 billion of long-term debt through Sequoia 2003-2. We plan to continue issuing more long-term debt through our Sequoia program.

Of the remaining long-term debt, $8 million was backed by one commercial loan and was created through the sale of a senior commercial real estate loan participation. The
market for senior participations on commercial loans of the types in our portfolio is limited and there can be no assurance that we will be able to sell future participations.

During 2002, we issued long-term debt through two resecuritizations of our securities. One was for a portion of our AAA and AA rated residential real estate securities
portfolio and the other was for a portion of our residential loan credit-enhancement securities portfolio. At March 31, 2003, the outstanding long-term non-recourse debt on
these resecuritizations totaled $173 million.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, we initiated our CDO program (“Acacia”). We issued $285 million securitized long-term non-recourse debt collateralized by a diverse
$300 million pool of residential and commercial real estate securities, some of which we have owned for years and others that we acquired for the purpose of completing the
collateral pool for this Acacia 1 transaction. Our retained subordinated interest in Acacia 1 totals $15 million. At March 31, 2003, the outstanding long-term non-recourse debt
on this
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securitization totaled $282 million. In May 2003, we issued an additional $284 million of CDO debt (Acacia 2) to fund newly acquired securities and portions of our existing
securities portfolio.

The Acacia debt issuance program helps us accomplish several objectives. It is a method of permanent non-recourse funding for our portfolio of BB-rated residential loan
credit-enhancement securities we have accumulated over the years. This method of funding lowers our liquidity risks and increases our capital efficiency relative to the short-
term debt funding we used in the past for this portfolio. With greater capital efficiency, Acacia 1 — together with the re-securitization of other securities mentioned earlier —
freed up capital under our risk-adjusted capital guidelines, making this capital available to support future investment growth. If we complete additional Acacia transactions and
other resecuritizations in 2003 and are thus able to refinance additional portions of our existing high-quality residential loan credit-enhancement securities portfolio, we should
free additional capital to support future growth. Our Acacia CDO issuance program also supports our objective of increasing our investments in commercial real estate loan
assets: we are acquiring commercial real estate and REIT debt securities that we are now able to permanently finance through CDO debt issuance transactions. Acacia also
allows us to make additional investments in a broad range of residential real estate loan securities. Since we now have a means to permanently fund assorted real estate
securities, we have started retaining many of the A rated and BBB rated securities we create in our Sequoia securitizations. We are also acquiring similarly rated securities from
the third-party securitizations we credit-enhance. In addition, since we have developed this new form of financing, we have been increasing our investment in securities backed
by residential real estate loans of less-than-prime quality: home equity loans, second liens, manufactured housing loans, sub-prime, and Alt-A loans. The credit ratings for these
securities are generally investment-grade (AAA to BBB). Although the real estate loans underlying these securities are lower quality than the loans we acquire for our retained
loan portfolio and the loans we credit-enhance through the acquisition of residential loan credit-enhancement securities, the amount of external credit support in our favor within
these securitization structures is substantial. We believe the likelihood of credit loss on these investment-grade rated securities is no higher than on the bulk of other securities
we own that are backed by higher quality loans but are lower-rated and thus have lesser amounts of credit-enhancement.

Pursuing a CDO issuance program entails a number of risks, including assuming the credit risks of diverse types of underlying real estate loan collateral, certain hedging
and asset/liability management risks, and the risk of not being able to complete a debt issuance at favorable levels after having accumulated a collateral pool. Other risks are
reduced through our Acacia CDO debt issuance program. For instance, significant liquidity risks are reduced through securing long-term non-recourse financing for assets we
formerly financed on short-term recourse debt basis. Our Acacia CDO program increases and diversifies our real estate investment opportunities while, on the whole, increasing
our credit risk while generally decreasing or diversifying other risks. We intend to continue to create and retain attractive long-term assets through our Acacia CDO program.

Equity Capital and Risk-Adjusted Capital Guidelines

In addition to short-term reported debt and long-term securitized debt, we are capitalized by common and preferred equity capital. Our equity base increased 3%, from
$473 million to $485 million in the first quarter of 2003, as a result of $4 million in retention of earnings and $9 million in stock issuance through our direct stock purchase and
dividend reinvestment program offset by a $1 million decrease in the values of certain assets marked-to-market through our balance sheet. We will seek to raise additional
equity capital in the future when opportunities to expand our business are attractive and when we believe such issuance is likely to benefit long-term earnings and dividends per
share.

The amount of assets that can be supported with a given capital base is limited by our internal risk-adjusted capital policies. Our risk-adjusted capital policy guideline
amounts are expressed in terms of an equity-to-assets ratio and vary with market conditions and asset characteristics. Our risk-adjusted capital guideline is further discussed
under “Capital Risks” below. At March 31, 2003, our aggregate equity capital guidelines were: 100% of our residential loan credit-enhancement securities; 100% of net
retained interests in our residential loan portfolio after long-term debt issuance (Sequoia equity); 8% of our short-term debt funded residential mortgage loans under
accumulation for securitization; 100% of net retained interests in our
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resecuritizations and CDOs, 10% to 30% of our short-term debt funded securities portfolio under accumulation for securitization; and 100% of our commercial real estate loan
portfolio.

Our total risk-adjusted capital guideline amount for assets on our balance sheet was $439 million at March 31, 2003. Capital required for outstanding commitments at
March 31, 2003 for asset purchases settling in the second quarter of 2003 was $4 million. Thus, at March 31, 2003, our total capital committed was $443 million, our total
capital available was $485 million, and our excess capital to support growth for the remainder of 2003 was $42 million. We intend to support most of our planned growth in the
next several quarters using this excess capital plus capital freed up through additional long-term debt issuance. We intend to continue additional equity issuance at modest levels
through our direct stock purchase and dividend reinvestment program. If investment opportunities remain attractive and we anticipate achieving material balance sheet growth,
we may seek to issue stock through an underwritten offering during 2003 or 2004.

Balance Sheet Leverage

We believe our balance sheet is strong, given the favorable liquidity and risk-limiting characteristics of our non-recourse securitized long-term debt, our very low levels of
leverage on a recourse basis, and the quality of our assets.

As reported on our balance sheet of March 31, 2003, our equity-to-reported-assets ratio was 6% and our reported debt-to-equity ratio was 15.8 times. However, a majority
of our debt is non-recourse debt. Holders of non-recourse debt can look only to the pledged assets — and not to Redwood — for repayment. Therefore, another useful measure
of the leverage we employ is to compute leverage ratios comparing our equity base to our recourse debt levels and to our “at-risk” assets (our assets excluding those assets
pledged to non-recourse debt). These adjustments generally conform our balance sheet to what would be reported if we accounted for our securitizations as sales rather than as
financings. Total reported assets at March 31, 2003 were $8.2 billion; of these, $7.2 billion were pledged to non-recourse debt and $1.0 billion were “at-risk”. Total reported
liabilities at March 31, 2003 were $7.7 billion; non-recourse debt was $7.2 billion and recourse debt was $0.5 billion. On a recourse-only basis, our ratio of equity-to-at-risk-
assets was 51% and our ratio of recourse-debt-to-equity was 1.0 times. Please also see “Net Interest Income” above for a discussion of our income statement as reformatted to a
recourse basis.

We believe our primary use of short-term debt will be to fund the accumulation of residential loans for securitization in our Sequoia program and the accumulation of
diverse real estate securities for securitization in our Acacia CDO program. Depending on the rate of accumulation and the timing of securitizations, short-term debt levels will
vary (most likely, we believe, between $0 and $1.5 billion). Average short-term debt balances may be materially different from the $476 million of short-term debt we had at
March 31, 2003.

As we continue to accumulate and securitize assets (and account for these securitizations as financings rather than as sales), the apparent leverage on our reported balance
sheet will likely increase. On a recourse basis, however, we believe our leverage is likely to remain at levels that we believe are modest for a financial institution. Unlike most
financial institutions, Redwood’s risk with respect to its investments in loans and securities is limited (after securitization) to the amount of capital Redwood initially contributes
to each securitization transaction. Although we assume credit risk on over $68 billion of real estate loans, our maximum loss (with respect to our assets that have been
securitized) is capped at a level that is less than our total capital base.
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Table 32

Leverage Ratios — Equity to Assets
(all dollars in thousands)

Non- Equity to Equity to
Reported Recourse Recourse Recourse Reported
Assets Assets Assets Equity Assets Assets
Q1: 2002 $2,739,838 $(1,252,881) $1,486,957 $364,444 25% 13%
Q2: 2002 3,689,782 (2,266,849) 1,422,933 417,930 29% 11%
Q3: 2002 5,674,302 (4,394,493) 1,279,809 445,728 35% 8%
Q4: 2002 7,007,772 (6,435,025) 572,747 473,033 83% 7%
Q1: 2003 8,172,063 (7,210,944) 961,119 485,402 51% 6%
2001 $2,435,644 $(1,331,060) $1,104,584 $307,773 28% 13%
2002 7,007,772 (6,435,025) 572,747 473,033 83% 7%
Table 33
Leverage Ratios — Debt to Equity
(all dollars in thousands)
Non- Recourse Reported
Reported Recourse Recourse Debt to Debt to
Debt Debt Debt Equity Equity Equity
Q1: 2002 $2,356,972 $(1,234,459) $1,122,513 $364,444 3.1 6.5
Q2: 2002 3,246,603 (2,241,600) 1,005,003 417,930 2.4 7.8
Q3:2002 5,199,362 (4,365,281) 834,081 445,728 1.9 11.7
Q4: 2002 6,496,734 (6,397,020) 99,714 473,033 0.2 13.7
Q1:2003 7,646,408 (7,170,691) 475,717 485,402 1.0 15.8
2001 $2,110,526 $(1,313,715) $§ 796,811 $307,773 2.6 6.9
2002 6,496,734 (6,397,020) 99,714 473,033 0.2 13.7

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualititative Disclosures About Market Risk

We seek to manage the risks inherent in our business — including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, prepayment risk, market value risks, reinvestment risk, and
capital risks — in a prudent manner designed to insure Redwood’s longevity. At the same time, we endeavor to provide our shareholders an opportunity to realize a steady and
rising dividend and an attractive total rate of return through stock ownership in our company. In general, we seek, to the best of our ability, to assume risks that can be
quantified from historical experience, to actively manage such risks, to earn sufficient compensation to justify the taking of such risks, and to maintain capital levels consistent
with the risks we do take.

Credit Risk

The majority of our credit risk comes from high-quality residential real estate loans. This includes residential real estate loans we own and loans we effectively “guarantee”
or “insure” through acquisitions of credit-enhancement securities. We are exposed to credit risks in our commercial real estate loan portfolio. Our securities portfolio is also
exposed to credit risk and we have credit risk with counter-parties with whom we do business.

The establishment of a credit reserve for loans and our future credit loss assumptions for securities to calculate long-term yields under the effective yield method under
GAAP accounting does not reduce our taxable income or our dividend payment obligations as a REIT. For taxable income, many of our credit expenses will be recognized only
as incurred. Thus, the timing and recognition of credit losses for GAAP and tax, and for our earnings and our dividends, may differ. Credit losses may not affect our GAAP
income due to
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our anticipation of such losses and our credit reserves but could materially reduce our dividend payment obligations. Conversely, our dividend payment obligations may remain
high even during periods when future credit losses are expected but have not yet been realized.

The method that we use to account for future credit losses depends upon the type of asset that we own. For our credit-enhancement securities, we designate a portion of the
purchased discount as a credit reserve upon the acquisition of such assets under the effective yield method of accounting. In addition, first loss and other credit-enhancement
interests that we do not own (that are junior to our positions) act as a form of external credit reserve for us on a specific asset basis for some of our assets; these interests junior
to ours absorb credit losses in specific pools of underlying real estate loans before our interest in that pool of loans will experience losses. For our residential real estate loans,
we currently establish a credit reserve based on an estimate of current losses by taking credit provisions through our income statement. For our commercial real estate loans, we
establish a credit reserve or mark the loan to estimated realizable value when a loan becomes delinquent. Many of the assets in our securities portfolio benefit from material
forms of credit-enhancement, and, thus, no credit reserves have been established to date for these assets. For securities portfolio assets where credit losses are anticipated, we
establish an appropriate reserve given the credit trends and market outlook for that asset.

Liquidity Risk

Our primary form of financing is the issuance (through bankruptcy-remote securitization trusts) of long-term non-recourse debt that very closely matches the interest rate,
prepayment rate, and maturities of our assets that we sell to the trusts and that secure the debt issued from these trusts. Once the trusts issue this debt, Redwood’s recourse
exposure to the underlying assets is limited to our net investment in the trusts after debt issuance. We believe this is a secure and robust form of financing that effectively
eliminates liquidity risk for this portion of our balance sheet, materially limits our credit risk exposure to the amount we have invested, and eliminates a variety of other
potential risks as well. As a part of our long-term planning, we generally intend to keep our short-term recourse debt at reasonable levels consistent with our plan using short-
term debt to fund our accumulation of assets for securitization and then replacing this short-term debt with non-recourse debt through the securitization transaction.

Our primary liquidity risk arises when we finance long-maturity mortgage assets with short-term debt during the accumulation period. Even if the interest rate adjustments
of these assets and liabilities are well matched, maturities may not be matched. Trends in the liquidity of the capital markets in general may affect our ability to rollover short-
term debt. At March 31, 2003, we had $476 million of short-term debt collateralized by assets. All this debt was collateralized by high-quality residential real estate loans under
accumulation for future securitizations. If our short-term debt was called, or we could not renew borrowing facilities, or we could not complete a securitization or the credit
quality of the assets deteriorated rapidly, we may need to sell assets in a potentially unfavorable environment. There can be no assurance that such sales would satisfy our
liabilities.
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The table below presents our contractual obligations as of March 31, 2003. The debt appears on our balance sheet. The operating leases are commitments that are expensed
as per terms of the contracts. Additional information on these obligations is presented in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Table 34

Contractual Obligations as of March 31, 2003
(all dollars in thousands)

Stated

Total Maturities Comments
Short-term debt $ 475,717 2003 Weighted average maturity is 154 days
Long-term debt, residential $7,162,440 2018-2033 Non-recourse debt amortizes as residential collateral pays down
Long-term debt, commercial $ 8,251 2003 Non-recourse debt amortizes as commercial collateral pays down
Asset purchase commitments $ 46,463 2003 Acquisitions were completed in April 2003
Asset sales commitments $ 4,390 2003 Sales were completed in April 2003
Operating leases $ 9,391 2003-2013 Office rent and software licenses
Other commitments $ 133,181 2003 Assets in CDO Warehouse Agreement — purchased in May 2003

Interest Rate Risk

Our strategy is to maintain an asset/liability posture that is effectively match-funded so that the achievement of our long-term goals is unlikely to be affected by changes in
interest rates, yield curves, or loan prepayment rates. At March 31, 2003, the interest rate characteristics of our debt, as adjusted for outstanding interest rate agreements, closely
matched the interest rate characteristics of our assets that were funded with debt. We had $7.4 billion of adjustable-rate debt funding adjustable-rate assets. We had $0.3 billion
of fixed/hybrid debt funding a portion of our fixed/hybrid assets. The remainder of our assets (mostly hybrid and fixed-rate assets, but also a portion of our variable-rate assets)
were funded with our $0.5 billion of equity.

As a part of our current asset/liability strategy, we have been maintaining a slight mismatch between the interest rate adjustment periods of our adjustable-rate debt and our
adjustable-rate assets. We have been reducing the amount of this mismatch over time through hedging and through issuing long-term debt with longer adjustment frequencies
and we may further reduce the amount of this mismatch during 2003. Primarily this mismatch arises because we own six-month LIBOR assets funded with one-month LIBOR
debt ($2.7 billion of our assets and liabilities were so situated at March 31, 2003: see Table 35 below). The interest rate on this debt adjusts each month to the current one-month
LIBOR interest rate plus a margin. The interest rate on the six-month LIBOR assets adjusts more slowly to market conditions; each month the coupon rate on approximately
one-sixth of these assets adjusts to the current six-month LIBOR interest rate plus a margin. Any single change in short-term interest rates could thus have some short-term
effect on our earnings (generally, for the next several quarters). To the extent that this mismatch remains on our balance sheet, we would expect that the spread between our
asset yields and our cost of borrowed funds would be more favorable in a falling short-term interest rate environment than in a rising short-term interest rate environment. This
trend may be partially or fully offset over time by the equity-funded portion of our balance sheet, which would generally have increasing net interest income (and perhaps better
credit results) in a rising rate environment.

In the last few years, we have generally been able to achieve our desired asset/liability mix on-balance sheet without significant use of derivatives. As the table below
shows, our variable-rate assets are generally funded with variable-rate debt and our unhedged fixed-rate assets are generally funded with equity. We believe that our use of
interest rate derivative agreements as part of our asset/liability strategy is likely to increase in the future as we expand our portfolios, develop our CDO long-term debt issuance
program, and acquire more fixed-rate and hybrid assets that may need to be hedged prior to securitization. A detailed discussion of our interest rate agreements is provided
above and in our Notes to Consolidated Financial
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Statements. In combination with a like amount of variable rate debt, these agreements effectively create fixed rate debt or extend effective maturity of adjustable-rate debt (e.g.,
from a one-month liability to a six-month liability). Net payments or receipts on our interest rate agreements are included in interest expense in our consolidated statement of
operations.

During 2002, we reduced the amount of net fixed rate assets we own (fixed rate or hybrid assets that are not hedged or funded with fixed rate debt) relative to the size of
our equity base. This reduction in net fixed rate assets diminishes current period income, but also should allow — relative to the net fixed rate exposure we had at the beginning
of the year — for increased earnings and more stable book value in a rising interest rate environment. Unlike many financial institutions, we have not owned — nor do we plan
to own — fixed or hybrid assets funded with short-term floating rate debt. Net fixed assets equaled 29% of equity at December 31, 2002 and 31% of equity at March 31, 2003.

Table 35

Asset/ Liability Matching as of March 31, 2003
(all dollars in thousands)

Non
One- Month Six- Month One- Year Fixed/ Interest Total
Asset LIBOR LIBOR Treasury Hybrid Bearing Liabilities

Asset Type Amount Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities Equity And Equity
Cash (unrestricted) $ 42,882 $ 42,882 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 42,882
One Month LIBOR 2,166,938 2,166,938 0 0 0 0 0 2,166,938
Six Month LIBOR 5,354,716 2,654,597 2,345,838 138,280 0 0 216,001 5,354,716
Other ARM 17,342 0 0 17,342 0 0 0 17,342
One Year Treasury 27,067 0 0 27,067 0 0 0 27,067
Fixed/ Hybrid< 1 Yr* 117,515 0 0 0 0 0 117,515 117,515
Fixed> 1 Yr 263,200 0 0 0 198,405 0 64,795 263,200
Hybrid> 1 Yr 144,944 0 0 0 55,059 0 89,885 144,944
Non-Earning Assets 37,459 0 0 0 0 40,253 (2,794) 37,459
Total $8,172,063 $ 4,864,417 $2,345,838 $ 182,689 $253,464 $ 40,253 $485,402 $8,172,063

*  Projected principal receipts on fixed-rate and hybrid assets over the next twelve months.

Changes in interest rates can have many effects on our business aside from those discussed in this section, including effects on our liquidity, market values, and loan
prepayment rates.

Prepayment Risk

We seek to maintain an asset/liability posture that mitigates the effects loan prepayment trends may have on our ability to achieve our long-term objectives. For the
development of our business, there are both positive and negative aspects to both slower prepayment rate environments and to faster prepayment rate environments.

Prepayments affect earnings in the near-term primarily through amortization of purchase premium and discount. Although we have roughly equal amounts of premium and
discount, amortization income from discount assets may not necessarily offset amortization expenses from premium assets. Variations in current and projected prepayment
rates for individual assets and changes in short-term interest rates (as they effect projected coupons on adjustable rate mortgages, and thus change effective yield calculations)
may cause net premium amortization expense or net discount amortization income to vary substantially from quarter to quarter.

In general, current prepayment trends (slow prepayments on adjustable-rate loans and fast prepayments on fixed rate loans) are highly favorable for generating economic
returns from our existing assets. In general, we anticipate higher long-term interest rates (leading to slower fixed rate loan prepayments) and/or a flatter
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or inverted yield curve (short-term interest rates rising relative to long-term rates, leading to faster adjustable-rate loan prepayments) would be less favorable for economic
returns from our existing assets.

In the longer-term, prepayments affect reinvestment risk and opportunity. We spend considerable effort acquiring and creating new real estate loan assets for Redwood.
These assets support the long-term stability of our common stock dividend payments. Most of our retained assets are structured to be long-term (typically 5 to 10 year) assets
even if the underlying loan collateral prepays quickly. Nevertheless, if fast prepayment rates persist over long periods of time, we will have more capital returned to us sooner
than would otherwise be the case. We will then need to reinvest this capital, and the assets we acquire and create at that time may be more or less attractive than the assets that
generated the principal repayments.

Table 36

Unamortized Premium and Discount Balances*
(all dollars in thousands)

Net

Unamortized Amortization

Unamortized Unamortized Net (Expense)

Gross Gross Premium/ During

Premium Discount (Discount) Period

Q1: 2002 $ 23,036 $ (32,053) $ (9,017) $ (3,201)
Q2: 2002 31,155 (40,301) (9,146) (793)
Q3:2002 57,951 (58,397) (446) (2,148)
Q4: 2002 60,478 (70,140) (9,662) (3,083)
Q1:2003 62,812 (96,131) (33,319) (2,098)
2001 $ 26,518 $ (30,562) $ (4,044) $ (10,225)
2002 60,478 (70,140) 9,662) 9,225)

* Includes deferred bond issuance costs and net premium on Long-Term Debt.

Market Value Risk

At March 31, 2003, we owned $0.7 billion of assets that were marked-to-market through our balance sheet but not through our income statement. Of these assets, 41% had
adjustable-rate coupons, 23% were hybrid loans, and the remaining 36% had fixed-rate coupons. Market value fluctuations of these assets can affect the reported value of our
stockholders’ equity base.

At March 31, 2003, we owned real estate loans totaling $19 million that we account for on a mark-to-market basis (in the case of mortgage loans, on a lower-of-cost-or-
market basis) for purposes of determining reported earnings. All these assets had adjustable-rate coupons.

Market value fluctuations for our assets not only affect our reported earnings and book value, but also can affect our liquidity — especially to the extent these assets are
funded with short-term borrowings.

Recently, we have been increasing the amount of interest rate agreements we own. Please see our discussion above under “Interest Rate Risk” and in our Notes to our
Consolidated Financial Statements for a more detailed description of our interest rate agreements. Our interest rate agreements are reported at market value with any periodic
changes reported through either our income statement or in our balance sheet. Adverse changes in the market values of our interest rate agreements (which would generally be
caused by falling interest rates) may require us to devote substantial amounts of cash to collateral calls.

Capital Risk

Our capital levels, and thus our access to borrowings and liquidity, may be tested, particularly if market values of our assets that secure our short-term borrowings decline
or the market for short-term borrowings changes in an adverse manner.
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Through our risk-adjusted capital policy, we assign a guideline capital adequacy amount — expressed as a guideline equity-to-assets ratio — to each of our real estate loan
assets. For short-term funded assets, this ratio may fluctuate over time, based on changes in that asset’s credit quality, liquidity characteristics, potential for market value
fluctuation, interest rate risk, prepayment risk, and the over-collateralization requirements for that asset set by our collateralized short-term lenders. Capital requirements for
securities rated below AA, residential loan credit-enhancement interests, retained interests from our Sequoia and Acacia securitizations, commercial real estate whole loans, and
retained commercial real estate junior loan participants are generally higher than for higher-rated securities and residential whole loans. Capital requirements for less-liquid
assets depend chiefly on our access to funding for these assets, the number of sources of such funding, the funding terms, and the amount of extra capital we decide to hold on
hand to protect against possible liquidity events with these assets. Capital requirements for our retained interests in our long-term debt securitizations generally equal our net
investment. The sum of the capital adequacy amounts for all of our mortgage assets is our aggregate capital adequacy guideline amount.

We do not expect that our actual capital levels will always exceed the guideline amount. If interest rates were to rise in a significant manner, our capital guideline amount
may rise, as the potential interest rate risk of our short-term debt-funded assets would increase, at least on a temporary basis, due to periodic and life caps and slowing
prepayment rates for real estate assets. We measure all of our assets funded with short-term debt at estimated market value for the purpose of making risk-adjusted capital
calculations. Our actual capital levels, as determined for our risk-adjusted capital policy, would likely fall as rates increase and as the market values of our assets, net of any
mark-to-market gains on hedges, decrease. Such market value declines may be temporary, as future coupon adjustments on adjustable-rate real estate loans may help to restore
some of the lost market value.

In this circumstance, or any other circumstance in which our actual capital levels decreased below our capital adequacy guideline amount, we would generally cease the
acquisition of new assets until capital balance was restored through prepayments, interest rate changes, or other means. In certain cases prior to a planned equity offering or
other circumstances, our Board of Directors may authorize management to acquire assets in a limited amount beyond the usual constraints of our risk-adjusted capital policy.

Inflation Risk

Virtually all of our assets and liabilities are financial in nature. As a result, interest rates, changes in interest rates, and other factors drive our performance far more than
does inflation. Changes in interest rates do not necessarily correlate with inflation rates or changes in inflation rates.

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP and, as a REIT, our dividends must equal at least 90% of our net taxable REIT income as calculated for
tax purposes. In each case, our activities and balance sheet are measured with reference to historical cost or fair market value without considering inflation.
Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk

For a discussion on the quantitative disclosures about market risk, please refer to our Risk Management presentation in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations above. We believe our quantitative risk has not materially changed from our disclosures under Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer conclude that Redwood’s disclosure controls and
procedures are effective based on their evaluation of these controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days of the filing date of this report.
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(b) Changes in Internal Controls. There have been no significant changes in Redwood’s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls
subsequent to the date of the evaluation of these controls by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of Redwood.

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

At March 31, 2003, there were no pending material legal proceedings to which the Company was a party or of which any of its property was subject.

Item 2. Changes in Securities
Not applicable.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
Not applicable.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

Pursuant to Section 202 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Company’s Audit Committee has approved all auditing and non-audit services performed to date and
currently planned to be provided in 2003 by the Company’s auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. The services include the annual audit, quarterly reviews, loan document
review services, issuances of consents related to SEC-filings, and certain tax compliance services.

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) Exhibits

Exhibit 10.10.1
Exhibit 10.11.1
Exhibit 11.1
Exhibit 99.1
Exhibit 99.2

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

None.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, George E. Bull IIT

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, Douglas B. Hansen

Computation of Earnings Per Share for the three months ended March 31, 2003 and March 31, 2002.
Certificate of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certificate of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.

REDWOOD TRUST, INC.

Dated: May 15, 2003
By: /s/ DOUGLAS B. HANSEN

Douglas B. Hansen
President

(authorized officer of registrant)

Dated: May 15, 2003
By: /s/ HAROLD F. ZAGUNIS

Harold F. Zagunis
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
Secretary and Treasurer
(principal financial officer)

Dated: May 15, 2003
By: /s/ MICHAEL S. CHURCHILL

Michael S. Churchill
Assistant Vice President, Controller
(principal accounting officer)
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CERTIFICATION
I, GEORGE E. BULL, certify that:

1. T have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Redwood Trust, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this quarterly report (the
“Evaluation Date”); and

¢) Presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation
Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

material weaknesses.

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this quarterly report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors
that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and

Dated: May 15, 2003

/s/ GEORGE E. BULL

George E. Bull
Chief Executive Olfficer
(Principal Executive Officer)
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CERTIFICATION
I, HAROLD F. ZAGUNIS, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Redwood Trust, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this quarterly report (the
“Evaluation Date”); and

¢) Presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation
Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this quarterly report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors

that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses.

Dated: May 15, 2003
/s HAROLD F. ZAGUNIS

Harold F. Zagunis
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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EXHIBIT 10.10.1
AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement"),
effective as of the 7th day of April, 2003 (the "Effective Date"), is entered
into by and between GEORGE E. BULL, III (the "Executive") and REDWOOD TRUST,
INC., a Maryland corporation (the "Company").

The Company desires to establish its right to the continued services
of the Executive, in the capacity, on the terms and conditions, and subject to
the rights of termination hereinafter set forth, and the Executive is willing to
accept such employment in such capacity, on such terms and conditions, and
subject to such rights of termination. As of the Effective Date, this Agreement
wholly supersedes the Employment Agreement between the Executive and the Company
that was effective as of August 19, 1994.

In consideration of the mutual agreements hereinafter set forth, the
Executive and the Company have agreed and do hereby agree as follows:

1. EMPLOYMENT AS CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF
THE COMPANY. The Company does hereby employ, engage and hire the Executive as
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and the
Executive does hereby accept and agree to such hiring, engagement, and
employment. The Executive's duties as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer shall be such executive and managerial duties as the Board of Directors
of the Company shall from time to time prescribe and as provided in the Bylaws
of the Company. The Executive shall devote such time, energy and skill to the
performance of his duties for the Company and for the benefit of the Company as
may be necessary or required for the effective conduct and operation of the
Company's business. Furthermore, the Executive shall exercise due diligence and
care in the performance of his duties to the Company under this Agreement.

2. TERM OF AGREEMENT. The term of this Agreement (the "Term") shall
commence on the Effective Date and shall continue through December 31, 2005;
provided, however, that (i) on January 1, 2006 and each succeeding January 1,
the Term shall automatically be extended for one additional year unless, not
later than three months prior to any such January 1, either party shall have
given written notice to the other that it does not wish to extend the Term and
(ii) such one year extensions of the Term shall not occur on and after the
January 1 of the year in which the Executive will attain age sixty-five (65) but
instead the Term shall be extended only until the date of the Executive's
sixty-fifth (65th) birthday.

3. COMPENSATION.

(a) BASE SALARY. The Company shall pay the Executive, and the
Executive agrees to accept from the Company, in payment for his services to the
Company a base salary at the rate of $410,000 per year ("Base Salary"), payable
in equal biweekly installments or at such other time or times as the Executive
and Company shall agree. Base Salary shall be subject to such adjustments as the
Company and the Executive shall agree.

1.

(b) PERFORMANCE BONUS - BOARD OF DIRECTORS DISCRETION. The
Executive shall be eligible to receive an annual bonus. The Compensation
Committee of the Company's Board of Directors (the "Compensation Committee") in
its discretion will determine whether such annual bonus will be paid, the amount
of such bonus and its form of payment. The Executive's target annual bonus
amount is 108% of his Base Salary (the "Target Bonus"). If the Compensation
Committee determines in its discretion that the Executive's performance meets or
exceeds the criteria established by the Compensation Committee for the award of
a Target Bonus, it may award Executive the Target Bonus or a higher amount.
Likewise, if the Executive's performance does not meet the criteria, the
Committee may award a lesser amount or no bonus may be awarded.

(c) EQUITY INCENTIVE AWARDS. Executive shall be eligible to
receive grants of equity-based long-term incentive awards, including options to
purchase Company stock and Company restricted stock. Such awards shall be
determined in the discretion of the Compensation Committee. In the event of a
Change of Control (as defined in Section 2 (f) of the Redwood Trust, Inc.
Executive Deferred Compensation Plan) in which the surviving or acquiring
corporation does not assume the Executive's outstanding stock options and
equity-related awards (including options and awards granted both before and
after the Effective Date) or substitute similar options and equity-related
awards, such options and equity-related awards shall immediately vest and become
exercisable if the Executive's service with the Company has not terminated
before the effective date of the Change of Control; provided, however, that the
foregoing provision shall only apply if the Company is not the surviving
corporation or if shares of the Company's common stock are converted into or
exchanged for other securities or cash.

(d) ANNUAL REVIEW. The Company's Board of Directors shall, at



least annually, review the Executive's entire compensation package to determine
whether it continues to meet the Company's compensation objectives. Such annual
review will include a determination of (i) whether to increase the Base Salary
in accordance with Section 3(a); (ii) the incentive performance bonus to be
awarded in accordance with Section 3(b); and (iii) the amount and type of any
equity awards granted in accordance with Section 3 (c).

4. FRINGE BENEFITS. The Executive shall be entitled to participate in
any benefit programs adopted from time to time by the Company for the benefit of
its senior executive employees, and the Executive shall be entitled to receive
such other fringe benefits as may be granted to him from time to time by the
Company's Board of Directors.

(a) BENEFIT PLANS. The Executive shall be entitled to participate
in any benefit plans relating to stock options, stock purchases, pension,
thrift, profit sharing, life insurance, medical coverage, education, or other
retirement or employee benefits available to other senior executive employees of
the Company, subject to any restrictions (including waiting periods) specified
in such plans and/or related individual agreements. The Company shall make
commercially reasonable efforts to obtain medical and disability insurance, and
such other forms of insurance as the Board of Directors shall from time to time
determine, for its senior executive employees.

2.
(b) VACATION. The Executive shall be entitled to such number of
weeks of paid vacation per calendar year consistent with Executive's
satisfactory performance of the duties set forth in Section 1.

5. BUSINESS EXPENSES. The Company shall reimburse the Executive for
any and all necessary, customary and usual expenses, properly receipted in
accordance with Company policies, incurred by Executive on behalf of the
Company.

6. TERMINATION OF EXECUTIVE'S EMPLOYMENT.

(a) DEATH. If the Executive dies while employed by the Company,
his employment shall immediately terminate. The Company's obligation to pay the
Executive's Base Salary shall cease as of the date of the Executive's death, and
any unpaid Base Salary shall be paid to the Executive's estate. In addition,
within fifteen (15) days of the Executive's death, the Company shall pay to the
Executive's estate an incentive performance bonus based on Executive's Target
Bonus then in effect, prorated for the number of days of employment completed by
the Executive during the year of his death. Executive's beneficiaries or his
estate shall receive benefits in accordance with the Company's retirement,
insurance and other applicable programs and plans then in effect. All stock
options or other equity-related awards, including restricted stock awards, shall
vest in full and, in the case of stock options, shall be exercisable for such
period as set forth in the applicable award agreement by which such awards are
evidenced.

(b) DISABILITY. If, as a result of the Executive's incapacity due
to physical or mental illness ("Disability"), Executive shall have been absent
from the full-time performance of his duties with the Company for six (6)
consecutive months, and, within thirty (30) days after written notice is
provided to him by the Company, he shall not have returned to the full-time
performance of his duties, the Executive's employment under this Agreement may
be terminated by the Company for Disability. During any period prior to such
termination during which the Executive is absent from the full-time performance
of his duties with the Company due to Disability, the Company shall continue to
pay the Executive his Base Salary at the rate in effect at the commencement of
such period of Disability. Subsequent to such termination, the Executive's
benefits shall be determined under the Company's retirement, insurance and other
compensation programs then in effect in accordance with the terms of such
programs. In addition, within fifteen (15) days of such termination, the Company
shall pay to the Executive an incentive performance bonus based on Executive's
Target Bonus then in effect, prorated for the number of days of employment
completed by the Executive during the year in which his employment terminated.
The Executive, the Executive's beneficiaries or his estate shall receive
benefits in accordance with the Company's retirement, insurance and other
applicable programs and plans then in effect. All stock options or other
equity-related awards, including restricted stock awards, shall vest in full
and, in the case of stock options, shall be exercisable for such period as set
forth in the applicable award agreement by which such awards are evidenced.

(c) TERMINATION BY THE COMPANY FOR CAUSE. The Company may
terminate the Executive's employment under this Agreement for Cause, at any time
prior to expiration of the Term of the Agreement. For purposes of this
Agreement, "Cause" shall mean (i) the Executive's material failure to
substantially perform the reasonable and lawful duties of his



position for the Company, which failure shall continue for thirty (30) days
after notice thereof by the Company to the Executive; (ii) acts or omissions
constituting gross negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct on the part of
the Executive in respect of his fiduciary obligations or otherwise relating to
the business of the Company; or (iii) the Executive's conviction of a felony
involving fraud, misappropriation or embezzlement. In such a case, the
Executive's employment under this Agreement may be terminated, and the Company's
obligation to pay the Executive's Base Salary, any bonus and fringe benefits
shall cease as of the termination date. However, the termination of Executive's
employment shall not be deemed to be for Cause unless and until there has been
delivered to Executive a copy of a resolution duly adopted by the Company's
Board of Directors (after reasonable notice is provided to Executive and
Executive is given an opportunity to be heard by the Company's Board of
Directors), finding that, in the good faith opinion of the Company's Board of
Directors, Executive's conduct met the standard for termination for Cause.

(d) TERMINATION BY THE EXECUTIVE FOR GOOD REASON. The Executive
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for Good Reason. For purposes
of this Agreement, "Good Reason" shall mean the occurrence, without the
Executive's express written consent, of any one or more of the following events:

(i) (A) the Executive's not being either Chairman of the Board
or Chief Executive Officer of the Company, or if the Company is a subsidiary, of
the ultimate parent entity, except in connection with the Company's termination
of the Executive's employment for Cause pursuant to Section 6(c) or as otherwise
expressly contemplated herein; (B) the assignment of duties to the Executive not
consistent with being Chairman of the Board or Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, or if the Company is a subsidiary, of the ultimate parent entity; or
(C) the Executive's not reporting to the Company's Board of Directors, or if the
Company is a subsidiary, of the ultimate parent entity;

(ii) A reduction in the Executive's Base Salary or a material
reduction in the value of the Executive's total compensation package (salary,
bonus opportunity, equity incentive award opportunity and benefits) if such a
reduction is inconsistent with compensation trends for Chairmen of the Board and
Chief Executive Officers at comparable companies, or such reduction is not made
in proportion to an across-the-board reduction for all senior executives of the
Company and a Change of Control (as defined in Section 2(f) of the Redwood
Trust, Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan) has not occurred;

(iii) The relocation of the Executive's principal Company
office to a location more than twenty-five (25) miles from its location as of
the Effective Date or the Company's requiring the Executive to be based anywhere
other than the Company's principal executive offices, except for required travel
on the Company's business to the extent necessary to fulfill the Executive's
obligations under Section 1;

(iv) A failure to re-elect the Executive as a member of the
Company's Board of Directors, or if the Company is a subsidiary, of the Board of
Directors of the ultimate parent entity;

4.
(v) A failure at any time to renew this Agreement for
successive one-year periods pursuant to Section 2;

(vi) The complete liquidation of the Company; or

(vii) In the event of a merger, consolidation, transfer, or
closing of a sale of all or substantially all the assets of the Company with or
to any other individual or entity, the failure of the Company's successor to
affirmatively adopt this Agreement or to otherwise comply with its obligations
pursuant to Section 13 below.

(e) TERMINATION BY THE EXECUTIVE WITHOUT GOOD REASON. The
Executive may at any time during the Term terminate his employment hereunder for
any reason or no reason by giving the Company notice in writing not less than
one hundred twenty (120) days in advance of such termination. The Executive
shall have no further obligations to the Company after the effective date of
termination, as set forth in the notice. In the event of a termination by the
Executive under this Section 6(e), the Company will pay only the portion of Base
Salary or previously awarded bonus unpaid as of the termination date. Fringe
benefits which have accrued and/or vested on the termination date will continue
in effect according to their terms.

7. COMPENSATION UPON TERMINATION BY THE COMPANY OTHER THAN FOR CAUSE
OR BY THE EXECUTIVE FOR GOOD REASON.

(a) If the Executive's employment shall be terminated by the
Company other than for Cause or by the Executive for Good Reason, the Executive
shall be entitled to the following benefits:

(i) PAYMENT OF UNPAID BASE SALARY. The Company shall
immediately pay the Executive any portion of the Executive's Base Salary or



previously awarded bonus not paid prior to the termination date.

(ii) PAYMENT OF BONUS. Within fifteen (15) days of such
termination, the Company shall pay to the Executive his Target Bonus pursuant to
Section 3(b), prorated for the number of days of employment completed by the
Executive during the year in which his employment terminated.

(iii) SEVERANCE PAYMENT. The Company shall provide the
Executive the following: (x) an amount equal to three (3) times Executive's Base
Salary as in effect immediately prior to his termination; (y) an amount equal to
three (3) times the Target Bonus amount in effect immediately prior to his
termination; and (z) with respect to options granted on or before December 31,
2002, the sum of the Dividend Equivalent Rights payments (as defined in the
applicable award agreement by which any such Dividend Equivalent Rights were
granted) that would have been payable to Executive over the three (3) year
period following his termination had he remained employed (taking into
consideration the term of options and Dividend Equivalent Rights and assuming
that the options are fully vested and remain unexercised). Payments pursuant to
this Section with respect to options granted after December 31, 2002 will be
calculated in the same manner, unless such options provide a different formula
for Dividend Equivalent Rights payments if Executive's employment is terminated
by the Company other than for Cause or by the Executive for Good Reason, in
which case the Dividend

5.
Equivalent Rights payments shall be governed by the terms of such options. The
quarterly dividend per share rate that shall be used in this calculation is the
higher of (I) one-fourth (25%) of the sum of common stock dividends declared per
common share in the twelve (12) months prior to the termination date, and (II)
one-twelfth (8.333%) of the sum of common stock dividends declared per common
share in the thirty-six (36) months prior to the termination date. The amounts
set forth in this Section 7(a) (iii) (x), 7(a) (iii) (y) and 7(a) (iii) (z) shall be
payable fifty percent (50%) within fifteen (15) days after the termination date,
and the remaining fifty percent (50%) shall be payable in twelve (12) equal
monthly installments beginning on the date fifteen (15) days after the
termination date and continuing on that same day of each of the eleven (11)
months thereafter.

(iv) STOCK OPTIONS AND OTHER EQUITY-RELATED AWARDS. All stock
options and other equity-related awards, including restricted stock awards, held
by the Executive as of the termination date shall vest in full and, in the case
of stock options, shall be exercisable for such period as set forth in the
applicable award agreements by which such awards are evidenced.

(v) CONTINUATION OF FRINGE BENEFITS. For the three (3) year
period following the termination of the Executive's employment, the Company
shall continue to provide the Executive with all life insurance, disability
insurance and medical coverage fringe benefits set forth in Section 4 as if the
Executive's employment under the Agreement had not been terminated; provided,
however, that such life insurance, disability insurance and medical coverage
shall cease as of the date the Executive receives such coverage from a
subsequent employer. No provision of this Agreement will affect the continuation
coverage rules under Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985
("COBRA"), except that the Company's payment, if any, of applicable insurance
premiums will be credited as payment by the Executive for purposes of the
Executive's payment required under COBRA. Therefore, the period during which the
Executive may elect to continue the Company's medical plan coverage at the
Executive's own expense under COBRA, the length of time during which COBRA
coverage will be made available to the Executive, and all other rights and
obligations of the Executive under COBRA (except the obligation to pay insurance
premiums that the Company pays) will be applied in the same manner that such
rules would apply in the absence of this Agreement. For purposes of this Section
7(a) (v), any applicable insurance premiums that are paid by the Company shall
not include any amounts payable by the Executive under an Internal Revenue Code
Section 125 health care reimbursement plan, which amounts, if any, are the sole
responsibility of the Executive.

(vi) EXCISE TAX GROSS-UP. In the event that the Executive
becomes entitled to the payments and benefits provided under the provisions of
this Section 7 ("Payments and Benefits"), and if any of the Payments and
Benefits will be subject to any excise tax imposed under Section 4999 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time (the "Code"), or
successor sections thereto ("Excise Tax"), the Company shall pay to or for the
benefit of the Executive an additional amount (the "Gross-Up Payment") such that
the net amount retained by the Executive, after deduction of any Excise Tax on
the Payments and Benefits and any federal, state and local income tax and Excise
Tax upon the payments provided for under this Section 7(a) (vi), shall be equal
to the amount of the Payments and Benefits. For purposes of determining whether
any of the Payments and Benefits will be subject to the Excise

6.
Tax and the amount of such Excise Tax, (i) any other payments or benefits
received or to be received by the Executive that are contingent on a transaction



described in Section 280G (b) (2) (A) (i) of the Code or on an event, including
(without limitation) a termination of the Executive's employment that is
materially related to such a transaction (whether pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement or any other plan, arrangement or agreement with the Company, any
person whose actions result in such a transaction, or any person affiliated with
the Company or such person) shall be treated as "parachute payments" within the
meaning of Section 280G (b) (2) of the Code, and all "excess parachute payments"
within the meaning of Section 280G (b) (1) of the Code shall be treated as subject
to the Excise Tax, unless, in the opinion of tax counsel selected by the Company
and reasonably acceptable to the Executive, such other payments or benefits (in
whole or in part) do not constitute parachute payments, including by reason of
Section 280G (b) (4) (A) of the Code, or such excess parachute payments (in whole
or in part) represent reasonable compensation for services actually rendered,
within the meaning of Section 280G (b) (4) (B) of the Code, in excess of the Base
Amount (as defined in Section 280G (b) (3) of the Code) allocable to such
reasonable compensation, or are otherwise not subject to the Excise Tax; (ii)
the amount of the Payments and Benefits which shall be treated as subject to the
Excise Tax shall be equal to the lesser of (A) the total amount of the Payments
and Benefits or (B) the amount of excess parachute payments within the meaning
of Section 280G (b) (1) of the Code (after applying clause (i), above); and (iii)
the value of any non-cash benefits or any deferred payment or benefit shall be
determined by the Company's independent auditors in accordance with the
principles of Sections 280G(d) (3) and (4) of the Code. For purposes of
determining the amount of the Gross-Up Payment, the Executive shall be deemed to
pay federal income taxes at the highest marginal rate of federal income taxation
in the calendar year in which the Gross-Up Payment is to be made and state and
local income taxes at the highest marginal rate of taxation in the state and
locality of the Executive's residence on the termination date of employment, net
of the maximum reduction in federal income taxes which could be obtained from
deduction of such state and local taxes based on the marginal rate referenced
above. In the event that the Excise Tax is subsequently determined to be less
than the amount taken into account hereunder at the termination date, the
Executive shall repay to the Company, at the time that the amount of such
reduction in Excise Tax is finally determined, the portion of the Gross-Up
Payment attributable to such reduction (plus that portion of the Gross-Up
Payment attributable to the Excise Tax and federal, state and local income tax
imposed on the Gross-Up Payment being repaid by the Executive to the extent that
such repayment results in a reduction in Excise Tax and/or a federal, state or
local income tax deduction) plus interest on the amount of such repayment at the
rate provided in Section 1274 (b) (2) (B) of the Code. In the event that the Excise
Tax is determined to exceed the amount taken into account hereunder at the time
of the termination of the Executive's employment (including by reason of any
payment, the existence or amount of which cannot be determined at the time of
the Gross-Up Payment), the Company shall make an additional Gross-Up Payment in
respect of such excess (plus any interest, penalties or additions payable by the
Executive with respect to such excess, but only to the extent that such
interest, penalties or additions would not have been reduced by prompt payment
by the Executive to the appropriate tax authority of the Gross-Up Payments
previously received) at the time that the amount of such excess is finally
determined. The Executive and the Company shall each reasonably cooperate with
the other in connection with any administrative or judicial proceedings
concerning the existence or amount of liability for Excise Tax with respect to
the Payments and Benefits.

7.

(b) NO MITIGATION REQUIRED; NO OTHER ENTITLEMENT TO BENEFITS UNDER
AGREEMENT. The Executive shall not be required in any way to mitigate the amount
of any payment provided for in this Section 7, including, without limitation, by
seeking other employment, nor shall the amount of any payment provided for in
this Section 7 be reduced by any compensation earned by the Executive as the
result of employment with another employer after the termination date of
employment, or otherwise. Except as set forth in this Section 7, following a
termination governed by this Section 7, the Executive shall not be entitled to
any other compensation or benefits set forth in this Agreement, except as may be
separately negotiated by the parties and approved the Company's Board of
Directors in writing in conjunction with the termination of Executive's
employment under this Section 7.

(b) RELEASE AGREEMENT. As a condition of receiving any of the
payments and benefits set forth in this Section 7, the Executive shall be
required to execute a mutual release agreement in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit A or Exhibit B, as appropriate, and such release agreement must have
become effective in accordance with its terms. The Company, in its sole
discretion, may modify the term of the required release agreement to comply with
applicable state law and may incorporate the required release agreement into a
termination agreement or other agreement with the Executive.

8. DISPUTES RELATING TO EXECUTIVE'S TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT FOR
GOOD REASON. If the Executive resigns his employment with the Company alleging
in good faith as the basis for such resignation "Good Reason" as defined in
Section 6(d), and if the Company then disputes the Executive's right to the
payment of benefits under Section 7, the Company shall continue to pay the
Executive the full compensation (including, without limitation, his Base Salary)



in effect at the date the Executive provided written notice of such resignation,
and the Company shall continue the Executive as a participant in all
compensation, benefit and insurance plans in which the Executive was then a
participant, until the earlier of the expiration of the Term or the date the
dispute is finally resolved, either by mutual written agreement of the parties
or by application of the provisions of Section 11. For the purposes of this
Section 8, the Company shall bear the burden of proving that the grounds for the
Executive's resignation do not fall within the scope of Section 6(d), and there
shall be a rebuttable presumption that the Executive alleged such grounds in
good faith.

9. NONCOMPETITION PROVISIONS.

(a) NONCOMPETITION. The Executive agrees that during the Term
prior to any termination of his employment hereunder and for a period of one (1)
year following the occurrence of any event entitling the Executive to Payments
and Benefits, provided the Company makes all such payments when due according to
the provisions of Section 7, he will not, directly or indirectly, without the
prior written consent of a majority of the non-employee members of the Company's
Board of Directors, manage, operate, join, control, participate in, or be
connected as a stockholder (other than as a holder of shares publicly traded on
a stock exchange or the NASDAQ National Market System), partner, or other equity
holder with, or as an officer, director or employee of, any real estate
investment organization whose business strategy is competitive with that of the
Company, as determined by a majority of the non-employee members of the
Company's Board of Directors. It is further expressly agreed that the Company
will or would suffer irreparable injury if the Executive were to compete with
the Company or

8.
any subsidiary or affiliate of the Company in violation of this Agreement and
that Company would by reason of such competition be entitled to injunctive
relief in a court of appropriate jurisdiction, and the Executive further
consents and stipulates to the entry of such injunctive relief in such a court
prohibiting the Executive from competing with the Company or any subsidiary or
affiliate of the Company, in the areas of business set forth above, in violation
of this Agreement.

(b) RIGHT TO COMPANY MATERIALS. The Executive agrees that all
styles, designs, lists, materials, books, files, reports, correspondence,
records, and other documents ("Company Materials") used, prepared, or made
available to the Executive shall be and shall remain the property of the
Company. Upon the termination of employment or the expiration of this Agreement,
all Company Materials shall be returned immediately to the Company, and the
Executive shall not make or retain any copies thereof.

(c) SOLICITING EXECUTIVES. The Executive promises and agrees that
he will not directly or indirectly solicit any of the Company's executive
employees to work for any competing real estate investment organization as
determined under the preceding Section 9(a).

(d) MARYLAND LAW. The Executive agrees, in accordance with
Maryland law, to first offer to the Company corporate opportunities learned of
solely as a result of his service as an officer and director of the Company.

10. NOTICES. All notices and other communications under this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be given by fax or first class mail,
certified or registered with return receipt requested, and shall be deemed to
have been duly given three (3) days after mailing or twenty-four (24) hours
after transmission of a fax to the respective persons named below:

If to the Company: Douglas B. Hansen
President
Redwood Trust, Inc.
591 Redwood Highway, Suite 3100
Mill Valley, CA 94941
Phone: (415) 389-7373
Fax: (415) 381-1773

If to the Executive: George E. Bull, III

Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Redwood Trust, Inc.
591 Redwood Highway, Suite 3100
Mill Valley, CA 94941
Phone: (415) 389-7373
Fax: (415) 381-1773

Either party may change such party's address for notices by notice duly given
pursuant hereto.

11. RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES. To ensure the rapid and economical
resolution of disputes that may arise in connection with the Executive's
employment with the Company, the
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Executive and the Company agree that any and all disputes, claims, or causes of
action, in law or equity, arising from or relating to the enforcement, breach,
performance, or interpretation of this Agreement, the Executive's employment, or
the termination of the Executive's employment ("Arbitrable Claims") shall be
submitted to confidential mediation in San Francisco, California conducted by a
mutually agreeable mediator from Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services
("JAMS") or its successor, and the cost of JAMS' mediation fees shall be paid by
the Company. In the event that mediation is unsuccessful in resolving the
Arbitrable Claims, the Arbitrable Claims shall be resolved, to the fullest
extent permitted by law, by final, binding and confidential arbitration in San
Francisco, California conducted by JAMS or its successor, under the then
applicable rules of JAMS. THE EXECUTIVE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT BY AGREEING TO THIS
ARBITRATION PROCEDURE, BOTH THE EXECUTIVE AND THE COMPANY WAIVE THE RIGHT TO
RESOLVE ANY SUCH DISPUTE THROUGH A TRIAL BY JURY OR JUDGE OR ADMINISTRATIVE
PROCEEDING. The arbitrator shall: (a) have the authority to compel adequate
discovery for the resolution of the dispute and to award such relief as would
otherwise be permitted by law; and (b) issue a written arbitration decision
including the arbitrator's essential findings and conclusions and a statement of
the award. The arbitrator shall be authorized to award any or all remedies that
the Executive or the Company would be entitled to seek in a court of law,
including, without limitation, the award of attorneys' fees based on a
determination of the extent to which each party has prevailed as to the material
issues raised in determination of the dispute. The Company shall pay all JAMS'
arbitration fees in excess of those which would be required if the dispute were
decided in a court of law. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to prevent
either the Executive or the Company from obtaining injunctive relief in court to
prevent irreparable harm pending the conclusion of any such mediation or
arbitration.

12. TERMINATION OF PRIOR AGREEMENTS. This Agreement terminates and
supersedes any and all prior agreements and understandings between the parties
with respect to employment or with respect to the compensation of the Executive
by the Company.

13. ASSIGNMENT SUCCESSORS. This Agreement is personal in its nature,
and neither of the parties hereto shall, without the consent of the other,
assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder;
provided, however, that, in the event of the merger, consolidation, transfer, or
sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company with or to any
other individual or entity, this Agreement shall, subject to the provisions
hereof, be binding upon and inure to the benefit of such successor and such
successor shall discharge and perform all the promises, covenants, duties, and
obligations of the Company hereunder.

14. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement and the legal relations thus
created between the parties hereto shall be governed by and construed under and
in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; HEADINGS. This Agreement embodies the entire
agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, excluding
the plans and programs under which compensation and benefits are provided
pursuant to Sections 3 and 4 hereof to the extent such plans and programs are
not inconsistent with this Agreement, and may be modified only in writing.
Section headings in this Agreement are included herein for convenience of
reference only and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement for any other
purpose.
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16. WAIVER; MODIFICATION. Failure to insist upon strict compliance
with any of the terms, covenants, or conditions hereof shall not be deemed a
waiver of such term, covenant, or condition, nor shall any waiver or
relinquishment of, or failure to insist upon strict compliance with, any right
or power hereunder at any one or more times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment
of such right or power at any other time or times. This Agreement shall not be
modified in any respect except by a writing executed by each party hereto.

17. SEVERABILITY. In the event that a court of competent jurisdiction
determines that any portion of this Agreement is in violation of any statute or
public policy, only the portions of this Agreement that violate such statute or
public policy shall be stricken. All portions of this Agreement that do not
violate any statute or public policy shall continue in full force and effect.
Further, any court order striking any portion of this Agreement shall modify the
stricken terms as narrowly as possible to give as much effect as possible to the
intentions of the parties under this Agreement.

18. INDEMNIFICATION. The Company shall indemnify and hold Executive
harmless to the maximum extent permitted by Section 2-418 of the Maryland
General Corporations Law or its successor statute, or if greater, by the
Company's Bylaws, by any applicable resolution of the Company's Board of
Directors or by the terms providing the most extensive indemnification contained
in any written agreement between the Company and any director or officer of the



Company. The Company shall make Executive a named beneficiary under all director
and officer liability policies maintained by the Company from time to time for
the benefit of its directors and officers, entitled to all benefits provided
thereunder to persons serving in a comparable role as both an officer and
director of the Company.

19. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in several
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of which
together will constitute one and the same instrument.

20. SUCCESSOR SECTIONS. References herein to sections or rules of the
Code or Exchange Act shall be deemed to include any successor sections or rules.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Agreement to be

executed by its duly authorized officer, and the Executive has hereunto signed
this Agreement, as of the Effective Date.

REDWOOD TRUST, INC.

By:
Mariann Byerwalter
Chair, Compensation Committee
GEORGE E. BULL, IIT
11.
Individual Termination
EXHIBIT A

RELEASE AGREEMENT

Except as otherwise set forth in this Release Agreement or in
Sections 7 and 18 of the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
George E. Bull, III and Redwood Trust, Inc., George E. Bull, III ("Executive")
hereby generally and completely releases the Company and its directors,
officers, employees, shareholders, partners, agents, attorneys, predecessors,
successors, parent and subsidiary entities, insurers, affiliates, and assigns
from any and all claims, liabilities and obligations, both known and unknown,
that arise out of or are in any way related to events, acts, conduct, or
omissions occurring at any time prior to and including the date Executive signs
this Release Agreement. The Company, its directors, officers, employees,
shareholders, partners, agents, attorneys, predecessors, successors, parent and
subsidiary entities, insurers, affiliates, and assigns, hereby releases
Executive and his heirs, executors, successors and assigns, from any and all
claims, liabilities and obligations, both known and unknown, that arise out of
or are in any way related to events, acts, conduct, or omissions occurring at
any time prior to and including the date the Company signs this Release
Agreement. This general mutual release includes, but is not limited to: (A) all
claims arising out of or in any way related to Executive's employment with the
Company or the termination of that employment; (B) all claims related to
Executive's compensation or benefits from the Company, including salary,
bonuses, commissions, vacation pay, expense reimbursements, severance pay,
fringe benefits, stock, stock options, or any other ownership interests in the
Company; (C) all claims for breach of contract, wrongful termination, and breach
of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing; (D) all tort claims,
including claims for fraud, defamation, emotional distress, and discharge in
violation of public policy; and (E) all federal, state, and local statutory
claims, including claims for discrimination, harassment, retaliation, attorneys'
fees, or other claims arising under the federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (as
amended), the federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the federal Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (as amended) ("ADEA"), the federal
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (as amended), and the California
Fair Employment and Housing Act (as amended); provided, however, that nothing in
this paragraph shall be construed in any way to release the Company from its
obligation to indemnify Executive pursuant to agreement, the Company's bylaws or
binding resolutions, or applicable law.

Executive acknowledges that he is knowingly and voluntarily waiving
and releasing any rights he may have under the ADEA, and that the consideration
given under his Employment Agreement with the Company for the waiver and release
in the preceding paragraph hereof is in addition to anything of wvalue to which
he was already entitled. Executive further acknowledges that he has been advised
by this writing, as required by the ADEA, that: (A) this waiver and release does
not apply to any rights or claims that may arise after the date Executive signs
this Release Agreement; (B) Executive should consult with an attorney prior to
signing this Release Agreement (although Executive may choose voluntarily not do
so); (C) Executive has twenty-one (21) days to consider this Release Agreement



(although Executive may choose voluntarily to sign this Release Agreement
earlier); (D) Executive has seven (7) days following the date that he signs this
Release Agreement to revoke the Release Agreement by providing written notice to
an officer of the Company; and (E) this Release Agreement shall not be effective
until the date upon

Individual Termination

which the revocation period has expired, which shall be the eighth day after
Executive signs this Release Agreement.

Both Executive and the Company acknowledge that each has read and
understands Section 1542 of the California Civil Code which reads as follows: "A
GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR
SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF
KNOWN BY HIM MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR." Both
Executive and the Company hereby expressly waive and relinquish all rights and
benefits under that section and any law of any jurisdiction of similar effect
with respect to each party's release of any claims hereunder.

EXECUTIVE

Group Termination

EXHIBIT B
RELEASE AGREEMENT

Except as otherwise set forth in this Release Agreement or in
Sections 7 and 18 of the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
George E. Bull, III and Redwood Trust, Inc., George E. Bull, III ("Executive")
hereby generally and completely releases the Company and its directors,
officers, employees, shareholders, partners, agents, attorneys, predecessors,
successors, parent and subsidiary entities, insurers, affiliates, and assigns
from any and all claims, liabilities and obligations, both known and unknown,
that arise out of or are in any way related to events, acts, conduct, or
omissions occurring at any time prior to and including the date Executive signs
this Release Agreement. The Company, its directors, officers, employees,
shareholders, partners, agents, attorneys, predecessors, successors, parent and
subsidiary entities, insurers, affiliates, and assigns, hereby releases
Executive and his heirs, executors, successors and assigns, from any and all
claims, liabilities and obligations, both known and unknown, that arise out of
or are in any way related to events, acts, conduct, or omissions occurring at
any time prior to and including the date the Company signs this Release
Agreement. This general mutual release includes, but is not limited to: (A) all
claims arising out of or in any way related to Executive's employment with the
Company or the termination of that employment; (B) all claims related to
Executive's compensation or benefits from the Company, including salary,
bonuses, commissions, vacation pay, expense reimbursements, severance pay,
fringe benefits, stock, stock options, or any other ownership interests in the
Company; (C) all claims for breach of contract, wrongful termination, and breach
of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing; (D) all tort claims,
including claims for fraud, defamation, emotional distress, and discharge in
violation of public policy; and (E) all federal, state, and local statutory
claims, including claims for discrimination, harassment, retaliation, attorneys'
fees, or other claims arising under the federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (as
amended), the federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the federal Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (as amended) ("ADEA"), the federal
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (as amended), and the California
Fair Employment and Housing Act (as amended); provided, however, that nothing in
this paragraph shall be construed in any way to release the Company from its
obligation to indemnify Executive pursuant to agreement, the Company's bylaws or



binding resolutions, or applicable law.

Executive acknowledges that he is knowingly and voluntarily waiving
and releasing any rights he may have under the ADEA, and that the consideration
given under his Employment Agreement with the Company for the waiver and release
in the preceding paragraph hereof is in addition to anything of value to which
he was already entitled. Executive further acknowledges that he has been advised
by this writing, as required by the ADEA, that: (A) this waiver and release does
not apply to any rights or claims that may arise after the date Executive signs
this Release Agreement; (B) Executive should consult with an attorney prior to
signing this Release Agreement (although Executive may choose voluntarily not do
so); (C) Executive has forty-five (45) days to consider this Release Agreement
(although he may choose voluntarily to sign this Release Agreement earlier); (D)
Executive has seven (7) days following the date that he signs this Release
Agreement to revoke the Release Agreement by providing written notice to an
officer of the Company; (E) this Release Agreement shall not be effective until
the date upon

Group Termination

which the revocation period has expired, which shall be the eighth day after
Executive signs this Release Agreement; and (F) Executive has received with this
Release Agreement a detailed list of the job titles and ages of all employees
who were terminated in this group termination and the ages of all employees of
the Company in the same job classification or organizational unit who were not
terminated.

Both the Executive and the Company acknowledge that each has read and
understands Section 1542 of the California Civil Code which reads as follows: "A
GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR
SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF
KNOWN BY HIM MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR." Both
the Executive and the Company hereby expressly waive and relinquish all rights
and benefits under that section and any law of any jurisdiction of similar
effect with respect to each party's release of any claims hereunder.

EXECUTIVE



EXHIBIT 10.11.1

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement"),
effective as of the 7th day of April, 2003 (the "Effective Date"), is entered
into by and between DOUGLAS B. HANSEN (the "Executive") and REDWOOD TRUST, INC.,
a Maryland corporation (the "Company").

The Company desires to establish its right to the continued services
of the Executive, in the capacity, on the terms and conditions, and subject to
the rights of termination hereinafter set forth, and the Executive is willing to
accept such employment in such capacity, on such terms and conditions, and
subject to such rights of termination. As of the Effective Date, this Agreement
wholly supersedes the Employment Agreement between the Executive and the Company
that was effective as of August 19, 1994.

In consideration of the mutual agreements hereinafter set forth, the
Executive and the Company have agreed and do hereby agree as follows:

1. EMPLOYMENT AS PRESIDENT OF THE COMPANY. The Company does hereby
employ, engage and hire the Executive as President of the Company, and the
Executive does hereby accept and agree to such hiring, engagement, and
employment. The Executive's duties as President shall be such executive and
managerial duties as the Board of Directors of the Company shall from time to
time prescribe and as provided in the Bylaws of the Company. The Executive shall
devote such time, energy and skill to the performance of his duties for the
Company and for the benefit of the Company as may be necessary or required for
the effective conduct and operation of the Company's business. Furthermore, the
Executive shall exercise due diligence and care in the performance of his duties
to the Company under this Agreement.

2. TERM OF AGREEMENT. The term of this Agreement (the "Term") shall
commence on the Effective Date and shall continue through December 31, 2005;
provided, however, that (i) on January 1, 2006 and each succeeding January 1,
the Term shall automatically be extended for one additional year unless, not
later than three months prior to any such January 1, either party shall have
given written notice to the other that it does not wish to extend the Term and
(ii) such one year extensions of the Term shall not occur on and after the
January 1 of the year in which the Executive will attain age sixty-five (65) but
instead the Term shall be extended only until the date of the Executive's
sixty-fifth (65th) birthday.

3. COMPENSATION.

(a) BASE SALARY. The Company shall pay the Executive, and the
Executive agrees to accept from the Company, in payment for his services to the
Company a base salary at the rate of $410,000 per year ("Base Salary"), payable
in equal biweekly installments or at such other time or times as the Executive
and Company shall agree. Base Salary shall be subject to such adjustments as the
Company and the Executive shall agree.

(b) PERFORMANCE BONUS - BOARD OF DIRECTORS DISCRETION. The
Executive shall be eligible to receive an annual bonus. The Compensation
Committee of the Company's

1.
Board of Directors (the "Compensation Committee") in its discretion
will determine whether such annual bonus will be paid, the amount of such bonus
and its form of payment. The Executive's target annual bonus amount is 108% of
his Base Salary (the "Target Bonus"). If the Compensation Committee determines
in its discretion that the Executive's performance meets or exceeds the criteria
established by the Compensation Committee for the award of a Target Bonus, it
may award Executive the Target Bonus or a higher amount. Likewise, if the
Executive's performance does not meet the criteria, the Committee may award a
lesser amount or no bonus may be awarded.

(c) EQUITY INCENTIVE AWARDS. Executive shall be eligible to
receive grants of equity-based long-term incentive awards, including options to
purchase Company stock and Company restricted stock. Such awards shall be
determined in the discretion of the Compensation Committee.

(d) ANNUAL REVIEW. The Company's Board of Directors shall, at
least annually, review the Executive's entire compensation package to determine
whether it continues to meet the Company's compensation objectives. Such annual
review will include a determination of (i) whether to increase the Base Salary
in accordance with Section 3(a); (ii) the incentive performance bonus to be
awarded in accordance with Section 3(b); and (iii) the amount and type of any
equity awards granted in accordance with Section 3 (c).

4. FRINGE BENEFITS. The Executive shall be entitled to participate in



any benefit programs adopted from time to time by the Company for the benefit of
its senior executive employees, and the Executive shall be entitled to receive
such other fringe benefits as may be granted to him from time to time by the
Company's Board of Directors.

(a) BENEFIT PLANS. The Executive shall be entitled to participate
in any benefit plans relating to stock options, stock purchases, pension,
thrift, profit sharing, life insurance, medical coverage, education, or other
retirement or employee benefits available to other senior executive employees of
the Company, subject to any restrictions (including waiting periods) specified
in such plans and/or related individual agreements. The Company shall make
commercially reasonable efforts to obtain medical and disability insurance, and
such other forms of insurance as the Board of Directors shall from time to time
determine, for its senior executive employees.

(b) VACATION. The Executive shall be entitled to such number of
weeks of paid vacation per calendar year consistent with Executive's
satisfactory performance of the duties set forth in Section 1.

5. BUSINESS EXPENSES. The Company shall reimburse the Executive for
any and all necessary, customary and usual expenses, properly receipted in
accordance with Company policies, incurred by Executive on behalf of the
Company .

6. TERMINATION OF EXECUTIVE'S EMPLOYMENT.

(a) DEATH. If the Executive dies while employed by the Company,
his employment shall immediately terminate. The Company's obligation to pay the
Executive's Base Salary shall cease as of the date of the Executive's death, and
any unpaid Base Salary shall be
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paid to the Executive's estate. In addition, within fifteen (15) days of the
Executive's death, the Company shall pay to the Executive's estate an incentive
performance bonus based on Executive's Target Bonus then in effect, prorated for
the number of days of employment completed by the Executive during the year of
his death. Executive's beneficiaries or his estate shall receive benefits in
accordance with the Company's retirement, insurance and other applicable
programs and plans then in effect. All stock options or other equity-related
awards, including restricted stock awards, shall vest in full and, in the case
of stock options, shall be exercisable for such period as set forth in the
applicable award agreement by which such awards are evidenced.

(b) DISABILITY. If, as a result of the Executive's incapacity due
to physical or mental illness ("Disability"), Executive shall have been absent
from the full-time performance of his duties with the Company for six (6)
consecutive months, and, within thirty (30) days after written notice is
provided to him by the Company, he shall not have returned to the full-time
performance of his duties, the Executive's employment under this Agreement may
be terminated by the Company for Disability. During any period prior to such
termination during which the Executive is absent from the full-time performance
of his duties with the Company due to Disability, the Company shall continue to
pay the Executive his Base Salary at the rate in effect at the commencement of
such period of Disability. Subsequent to such termination, the Executive's
benefits shall be determined under the Company's retirement, insurance and other
compensation programs then in effect in accordance with the terms of such
programs. In addition, within fifteen (15) days of such termination, the Company
shall pay to the Executive an incentive performance bonus based on Executive's
Target Bonus then in effect, prorated for the number of days of employment
completed by the Executive during the year in which his employment terminated.
The Executive, the Executive's beneficiaries or his estate shall receive
benefits in accordance with the Company's retirement, insurance and other
applicable programs and plans then in effect. All stock options or other
equity-related awards, including restricted stock awards, shall vest in full
and, in the case of stock options, shall be exercisable for such period as set
forth in the applicable award agreement by which such awards are evidenced.

(c) TERMINATION BY THE COMPANY FOR CAUSE. The Company may
terminate the Executive's employment under this Agreement for Cause, at any time
prior to expiration of the Term of the Agreement. For purposes of this
Agreement, "Cause" shall mean (i) the Executive's material failure to
substantially perform the reasonable and lawful duties of his position for the
Company, which failure shall continue for thirty (30) days after notice thereof
by the Company to the Executive; (ii) acts or omissions constituting gross
negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct on the part of the Executive in
respect of his fiduciary obligations or otherwise relating to the business of
the Company; or (iii) the Executive's conviction of a felony involving fraud,
misappropriation or embezzlement. In such a case, the Executive's employment
under this Agreement may be terminated, and the Company's obligation to pay the
Executive's Base Salary, any bonus and fringe benefits shall cease as of the
termination date. However, the termination of Executive's employment shall not
be deemed to be for Cause unless and until there has been delivered to Executive
a copy of a resolution duly adopted by the Company's Board of Directors (after
reasonable notice is provided to Executive and Executive is given an opportunity



to be heard by the Company's Board of Directors), finding that, in the good
faith opinion of the Company's Board of Directors, Executive's conduct met the
standard for termination for Cause.

3.

(d) TERMINATION BY THE EXECUTIVE FOR GOOD REASON. The Executive
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for Good Reason. For purposes
of this Agreement, "Good Reason" shall mean the occurrence, without the
Executive's express written consent, of any one or more of the following events:

(i) (A) The Executive's not being either President or Chief
Executive Officer ("CEO") of the Company, or if the Company is a subsidiary, of
the ultimate parent entity, except in connection with the Company's termination
of the Executive's employment for Cause pursuant to Section 6(c) or as otherwise
expressly contemplated herein; (B) the assignment of duties to the Executive not
consistent with Executive's then position as either President or CEO of the
Company, or if the Company is a subsidiary, of the ultimate parent entity; or
(C) the Executive's not reporting to the Company's Board of Directors, or if the
Company is a subsidiary, of the ultimate parent entity;

(ii) A reduction in the Executive's Base Salary or a material
reduction in the value of the Executive's total compensation package (salary,
bonus opportunity, equity incentive award opportunity and benefits) if such a
reduction is inconsistent with compensation trends for Presidents and Chief
Executive Officers at comparable companies, or such reduction is not made in
proportion to an across-the-board reduction for all senior executives of the
Company and a Change of Control (as defined in Section 2(f) of the Redwood
Trust, Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan) has not occurred;

(iii) The relocation of the Executive's principal Company
office to a location more than twenty-five (25) miles from its location as of
the Effective Date or the Company's requiring the Executive to be based anywhere
other than the Company's principal executive offices, except for required travel
on the Company's business to the extent necessary to fulfill the Executive's
obligations under Section 1;

(iv) A failure to re-elect the Executive as a member of the
Company's Board of Directors, or if the Company is a subsidiary, of the Board of
Directors of the ultimate parent entity;

(v) A failure at any time to renew this Agreement for
successive one-year periods pursuant to Section 2;

(vi) The complete liquidation of the Company; or

(vii) In the event of a merger, consolidation, transfer, or
closing of a sale of all or substantially all the assets of the Company with or
to any other individual or entity, the failure of the Company's successor to
affirmatively adopt this Agreement or to otherwise comply with its obligations
pursuant to Section 13 below.

(e) TERMINATION BY THE EXECUTIVE WITHOUT GOOD REASON. The
Executive may at any time during the Term terminate his employment hereunder for
any reason or no reason by giving the Company notice in writing not less than
one hundred twenty (120) days in advance of such termination. The Executive
shall have no further obligations to the Company after the effective date of
termination, as set forth in the notice. In the event of a termination by the
Executive under this Section 6(e), the Company will pay only the portion of Base
Salary or
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previously awarded bonus unpaid as of the termination date. Fringe benefits
which have accrued and/or vested on the termination date will continue in effect
according to their terms.

7. COMPENSATION UPON TERMINATION BY THE COMPANY OTHER THAN FOR CAUSE
OR BY THE EXECUTIVE FOR GOOD REASON.

(a) If the Executive's employment shall be terminated by the
Company other than for Cause or by the Executive for Good Reason, the Executive
shall be entitled to the following benefits:

(i) PAYMENT OF UNPAID BASE SALARY. The Company shall
immediately pay the Executive any portion of the Executive's Base Salary or
previously awarded bonus not paid prior to the termination date.

(ii) PAYMENT OF BONUS. Within fifteen (15) days of such
termination, the Company shall pay to the Executive his Target Bonus pursuant to
Section 3(b), prorated for the number of days of employment completed by the
Executive during the year in which his employment terminated.

(iii) SEVERANCE PAYMENT. The Company shall provide the
Executive the following: (x) an amount equal to three (3) times Executive's Base



Salary as in effect immediately prior to his termination; (y) an amount equal to
three (3) times the Target Bonus amount in effect immediately prior to his
termination; and (z) with respect to options granted on or before December 31,
2002, the sum of the Dividend Equivalent Rights payments (as defined in the
applicable award agreement by which any such Dividend Equivalent Rights were
granted) that would have been payable to Executive over the three (3) year
period following his termination had he remained employed (taking into
consideration the term of options and Dividend Equivalent Rights and assuming
that the options are fully vested and remain unexercised). Payments pursuant to
this Section with respect to options granted after December 31, 2002 will be
calculated in the same manner, unless such options provide a different formula
for Dividend Equivalent Rights payments if Executive's employment is terminated
by the Company other than for Cause or by the Executive for Good Reason, in
which case the Dividend Equivalent Rights payments shall be governed by the
terms of such options. The quarterly dividend per share rate that shall be used
in this calculation is the higher of (I) one-fourth (25%) of the sum of common
stock dividends declared per common share in the twelve (12) months prior to the
termination date, and (II) one-twelfth (8.333%) of the sum of common stock
dividends declared per common share in the thirty-six (36) months prior to the
termination date. The amounts set forth in this Section 7(a) (iii) (x),

7(a) (iii) (y) and 7(a) (iii) (z) shall be payable fifty percent (50%) within
fifteen (15) days after the termination date, and the remaining fifty percent
(50%) shall be payable in twelve (12) equal monthly installments beginning on
the date fifteen (15) days after the termination date and continuing on that
same day of each of the eleven (11) months thereafter.

(iv) STOCK OPTIONS AND OTHER EQUITY-RELATED AWARDS. All stock
options and other equity-related awards, including restricted stock awards, held
by the Executive as of the termination date shall vest in full and, in the case
of stock options, shall be exercisable
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for such period as set forth in the applicable award agreements by which such
awards are evidenced.

(v) CONTINUATION OF FRINGE BENEFITS. For the three (3) year
period following the termination of the Executive's employment, the Company
shall continue to provide the Executive with all life insurance, disability
insurance and medical coverage fringe benefits set forth in Section 4 as if the
Executive's employment under the Agreement had not been terminated; provided,
however, that such life insurance, disability insurance and medical coverage
shall cease as of the date the Executive receives such coverage from a
subsequent employer. No provision of this Agreement will affect the continuation
coverage rules under Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985
("COBRA"), except that the Company's payment, if any, of applicable insurance
premiums will be credited as payment by the Executive for purposes of the
Executive's payment required under COBRA. Therefore, the period during which the
Executive may elect to continue the Company's medical plan coverage at the
Executive's own expense under COBRA, the length of time during which COBRA
coverage will be made available to the Executive, and all other rights and
obligations of the Executive under COBRA (except the obligation to pay insurance
premiums that the Company pays) will be applied in the same manner that such
rules would apply in the absence of this Agreement. For purposes of this Section
7(a) (v), any applicable insurance premiums that are paid by the Company shall
not include any amounts payable by the Executive under an Internal Revenue Code
Section 125 health care reimbursement plan, which amounts, if any, are the sole
responsibility of the Executive.

(vi) EXCISE TAX GROSS-UP. In the event that the Executive
becomes entitled to the payments and benefits provided under the provisions of
this Section 7 ("Payments and Benefits"), and if any of the Payments and
Benefits will be subject to any excise tax imposed under Section 4999 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time (the "Code"), or
successor sections thereto ("Excise Tax"), the Company shall pay to or for the
benefit of the Executive an additional amount (the "Gross-Up Payment") such that
the net amount retained by the Executive, after deduction of any Excise Tax on
the Payments and Benefits and any federal, state and local income tax and Excise
Tax upon the payments provided for under this Section 7(a) (vi), shall be equal
to the amount of the Payments and Benefits. For purposes of determining whether
any of the Payments and Benefits will be subject to the Excise Tax and the
amount of such Excise Tax, (i) any other payments or benefits received or to be
received by the Executive that are contingent on a transaction described in
Section 280G (b) (2) (A) (1) of the Code or on an event, including (without
limitation) a termination of the Executive's employment that is materially
related to such a transaction (whether pursuant to the terms of this Agreement
or any other plan, arrangement or agreement with the Company, any person whose
actions result in such a transaction, or any person affiliated with the Company
or such person) shall be treated as "parachute payments" within the meaning of
Section 280G (b) (2) of the Code, and all "excess parachute payments" within the
meaning of Section 280G (b) (1) of the Code shall be treated as subject to the
Excise Tax, unless, in the opinion of tax counsel selected by the Company and
reasonably acceptable to the Executive, such other payments or benefits (in
whole or in part) do not constitute parachute payments, including by reason of
Section 280G (b) (4) (A) of the Code, or such excess parachute payments (in whole



or in part) represent reasonable compensation for services actually rendered,
within the meaning of Section 280G (b) (4) (B) of the Code, in excess of the Base
Amount (as defined in Section 280G (b) (3) of
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the Code) allocable to such reasonable compensation, or are otherwise not
subject to the Excise Tax; (ii) the amount of the Payments and Benefits which
shall be treated as subject to the Excise Tax shall be equal to the lesser of
(A) the total amount of the Payments and Benefits or (B) the amount of excess
parachute payments within the meaning of Section 280G (b) (1) of the Code (after
applying clause (i), above); and (iii) the wvalue of any non-cash benefits or any
deferred payment or benefit shall be determined by the Company's independent
auditors in accordance with the principles of Sections 280G(d) (3) and (4) of the
Code. For purposes of determining the amount of the Gross-Up Payment, the
Executive shall be deemed to pay federal income taxes at the highest marginal
rate of federal income taxation in the calendar year in which the Gross-Up
Payment is to be made and state and local income taxes at the highest marginal
rate of taxation in the state and locality of the Executive's residence on the
termination date of employment, net of the maximum reduction in federal income
taxes which could be obtained from deduction of such state and local taxes based
on the marginal rate referenced above. In the event that the Excise Tax is
subsequently determined to be less than the amount taken into account hereunder
at the termination date, the Executive shall repay to the Company, at the time
that the amount of such reduction in Excise Tax is finally determined, the
portion of the Gross-Up Payment attributable to such reduction (plus that
portion of the Gross-Up Payment attributable to the Excise Tax and federal,
state and local income tax imposed on the Gross-Up Payment being repaid by the
Executive to the extent that such repayment results in a reduction in Excise Tax
and/or a federal, state or local income tax deduction) plus interest on the
amount of such repayment at the rate provided in Section 1274 (b) (2) (B) of the
Code. In the event that the Excise Tax is determined to exceed the amount taken
into account hereunder at the time of the termination of the Executive's
employment (including by reason of any payment, the existence or amount of which
cannot be determined at the time of the Gross-Up Payment), the Company shall
make an additional Gross-Up Payment in respect of such excess (plus any
interest, penalties or additions payable by the Executive with respect to such
excess, but only to the extent that such interest, penalties or additions would
not have been reduced by prompt payment by the Executive to the appropriate tax
authority of the Gross-Up Payments previously received) at the time that the
amount of such excess is finally determined. The Executive and the Company shall
each reasonably cooperate with the other in connection with any administrative
or judicial proceedings concerning the existence or amount of liability for
Excise Tax with respect to the Payments and Benefits.

(b) NO MITIGATION REQUIRED; NO OTHER ENTITLEMENT TO BENEFITS UNDER
AGREEMENT. The Executive shall not be required in any way to mitigate the amount
of any payment provided for in this Section 7, including, without limitation, by
seeking other employment, nor shall the amount of any payment provided for in
this Section 7 be reduced by any compensation earned by the Executive as the
result of employment with another employer after the termination date of
employment, or otherwise. Except as set forth in this Section 7, following a
termination governed by this Section 7, the Executive shall not be entitled to
any other compensation or benefits set forth in this Agreement, except as may be
separately negotiated by the parties and approved the Company's Board of
Directors in writing in conjunction with the termination of Executive's
employment under this Section 7.

(c) RELEASE AGREEMENT. As a condition of receiving any of the
payments and benefits set forth in this Section 7, the Executive shall be
required to execute a mutual release agreement in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit A or Exhibit B, as appropriate, and such release agreement must have
become effective in accordance with its terms. The Company, in its sole
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discretion, may modify the term of the required release agreement to comply with
applicable state law and may incorporate the required release agreement into a
termination agreement or other agreement with the Executive.

8. DISPUTES RELATING TO EXECUTIVE'S TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT FOR
GOOD REASON. If the Executive resigns his employment with the Company alleging
in good faith as the basis for such resignation "Good Reason" as defined in
Section 6(d), and if the Company then disputes the Executive's right to the
payment of benefits under Section 7, the Company shall continue to pay the
Executive the full compensation (including, without limitation, his Base Salary)
in effect at the date the Executive provided written notice of such resignation,
and the Company shall continue the Executive as a participant in all
compensation, benefit and insurance plans in which the Executive was then a
participant, until the earlier of the expiration of the Term or the date the
dispute is finally resolved, either by mutual written agreement of the parties
or by application of the provisions of Section 11. For the purposes of this
Section 8, the Company shall bear the burden of proving that the grounds for the
Executive's resignation do not fall within the scope of Section 6(d), and there
shall be a rebuttable presumption that the Executive alleged such grounds in



good faith.
9. NONCOMPETITION PROVISIONS.

(a) NONCOMPETITION. The Executive agrees that during the Term
prior to any termination of his employment hereunder and for a period of one (1)
year following the occurrence of any event entitling the Executive to Payments
and Benefits, provided the Company makes all such payments when due according to
the provisions of Section 7, he will not, directly or indirectly, without the
prior written consent of a majority of the non-employee members of the Company's
Board of Directors, manage, operate, join, control, participate in, or be
connected as a stockholder (other than as a holder of shares publicly traded on
a stock exchange or the NASDAQ National Market System), partner, or other equity
holder with, or as an officer, director or employee of, any real estate
investment organization whose business strategy is competitive with that of the
Company, as determined by a majority of the non-employee members of the
Company's Board of Directors. It is further expressly agreed that the Company
will or would suffer irreparable injury if the Executive were to compete with
the Company or any subsidiary or affiliate of the Company in violation of this
Agreement and that Company would by reason of such competition be entitled to
injunctive relief in a court of appropriate jurisdiction, and the Executive
further consents and stipulates to the entry of such injunctive relief in such a
court prohibiting the Executive from competing with the Company or any
subsidiary or affiliate of the Company, in the areas of business set forth
above, in violation of this Agreement.

(b) RIGHT TO COMPANY MATERIALS. The Executive agrees that all
styles, designs, lists, materials, books, files, reports, correspondence,
records, and other documents ("Company Materials") used, prepared, or made
available to the Executive shall be and shall remain the property of the
Company. Upon the termination of employment or the expiration of this Agreement,
all Company Materials shall be returned immediately to the Company, and the
Executive shall not make or retain any copies thereof.

8.

(c) SOLICITING EXECUTIVES. The Executive promises and agrees that
he will not directly or indirectly solicit any of the Company's executive
employees to work for any competing real estate investment organization as
determined under the preceding Section 9(a).

(d) MARYLAND LAW. The Executive agrees, in accordance with
Maryland law, to first offer to the Company corporate opportunities learned of
solely as a result of his service as an officer and director of the Company.

10. NOTICES. All notices and other communications under this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be given by fax or first class mail,
certified or registered with return receipt requested, and shall be deemed to
have been duly given three (3) days after mailing or twenty-four (24) hours
after transmission of a fax to the respective persons named below:

If to the Company: George E. Bull, III

Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Redwood Trust, Inc.
591 Redwood Highway, Suite 3100
Mill Valley, CA 94941
Phone: (415) 389-7373
Fax: (415) 381-1773

If to the Executive: Douglas B. Hansen
President
Redwood Trust, Inc.
591 Redwood Highway, Suite 3100
Mill Valley, CA 94941
Phone: (415) 389-7373
Fax: (415) 381-1773

Either party may change such party's address for notices by notice duly given
pursuant hereto.

11. RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES. To ensure the rapid and economical
resolution of disputes that may arise in connection with the Executive's
employment with the Company, the Executive and the Company agree that any and
all disputes, claims, or causes of action, in law or equity, arising from or
relating to the enforcement, breach, performance, or interpretation of this
Agreement, the Executive's employment, or the termination of the Executive's
employment ("Arbitrable Claims") shall be submitted to confidential mediation in
San Francisco, California conducted by a mutually agreeable mediator from
Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services ("JAMS") or its successor, and the
cost of JAMS' mediation fees shall be paid by the Company. In the event that
mediation is unsuccessful in resolving the Arbitrable Claims, the Arbitrable
Claims shall be resolved, to the fullest extent permitted by law, by final,
binding and confidential arbitration in San Francisco, California conducted by



JAMS or its successor, under the then applicable rules of JAMS. THE EXECUTIVE
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT BY AGREEING TO THIS ARBITRATION PROCEDURE, BOTH THE EXECUTIVE
AND THE COMPANY WAIVE THE RIGHT TO RESOLVE ANY SUCH DISPUTE THROUGH A TRIAL BY
JURY OR JUDGE OR ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING. The arbitrator shall: (a) have the
authority to compel adequate discovery for the resolution of the dispute and to
award
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such relief as would otherwise be permitted by law; and (b) issue a written
arbitration decision including the arbitrator's essential findings and
conclusions and a statement of the award. The arbitrator shall be authorized to
award any or all remedies that the Executive or the Company would be entitled to
seek in a court of law, including, without limitation, the award of attorneys'
fees based on a determination of the extent to which each party has prevailed as
to the material issues raised in determination of the dispute. The Company shall
pay all JAMS' arbitration fees in excess of those which would be required if the
dispute were decided in a court of law. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to
prevent either the Executive or the Company from obtaining injunctive relief in
court to prevent irreparable harm pending the conclusion of any such mediation
or arbitration.

12. TERMINATION OF PRIOR AGREEMENTS. This Agreement terminates and
supersedes any and all prior agreements and understandings between the parties
with respect to employment or with respect to the compensation of the Executive
by the Company.

13. ASSIGNMENT SUCCESSORS. This Agreement is personal in its nature,
and neither of the parties hereto shall, without the consent of the other,
assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder;
provided, however, that, in the event of the merger, consolidation, transfer, or
sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company with or to any
other individual or entity, this Agreement shall, subject to the provisions
hereof, be binding upon and inure to the benefit of such successor and such
successor shall discharge and perform all the promises, covenants, duties, and
obligations of the Company hereunder.

14. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement and the legal relations thus
created between the parties hereto shall be governed by and construed under and
in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; HEADINGS. This Agreement embodies the entire
agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, excluding
the plans and programs under which compensation and benefits are provided
pursuant to Sections 3 and 4 hereof to the extent such plans and programs are
not inconsistent with this Agreement, and may be modified only in writing.
Section headings in this Agreement are included herein for convenience of
reference only and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement for any other
purpose.

16. WAIVER; MODIFICATION. Failure to insist upon strict compliance
with any of the terms, covenants, or conditions hereof shall not be deemed a
waiver of such term, covenant, or condition, nor shall any waiver or
relinquishment of, or failure to insist upon strict compliance with, any right
or power hereunder at any one or more times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment
of such right or power at any other time or times. This Agreement shall not be
modified in any respect except by a writing executed by each party hereto.

17. SEVERABILITY. In the event that a court of competent jurisdiction
determines that any portion of this Agreement is in violation of any statute or
public policy, only the portions of this Agreement that violate such statute or
public policy shall be stricken. All portions of this Agreement that do not
violate any statute or public policy shall continue in full force and effect.
Further, any court order striking any portion of this Agreement shall modify the
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stricken terms as narrowly as possible to give as much effect as possible to the
intentions of the parties under this Agreement.

18. INDEMNIFICATION. The Company shall indemnify and hold Executive
harmless to the maximum extent permitted by Section 2-418 of the Maryland
General Corporations Law or its successor statute, or if greater, by the
Company's Bylaws, by any applicable resolution of the Company's Board of
Directors or by the terms providing the most extensive indemnification contained
in any written agreement between the Company and any director or officer of the
Company. The Company shall make Executive a named beneficiary under all director
and officer liability policies maintained by the Company from time to time for
the benefit of its directors and officers, entitled to all benefits provided
thereunder to persons serving in a comparable role as both an officer and
director of the Company.

19. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in several
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of which
together will constitute one and the same instrument.



20. SUCCESSOR SECTIONS. References herein to sections or rules of the
Code or Exchange Act shall be deemed to include any successor sections or rules.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Agreement to be

executed by its duly authorized officer, and the Executive has hereunto signed
this Agreement, as of the Effective Date.

REDWOOD TRUST, INC.

By:
Mariann Byerwalter
Chair, Compensation Committee
DOUGLAS B. HANSEN
11.
Individual Termination
EXHIBIT A

RELEASE AGREEMENT

Except as otherwise set forth in this Release Agreement or in
Sections 7 and 18 of the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
Douglas B. Hansen and Redwood Trust, Inc., Douglas B. Hansen ("Executive")
hereby generally and completely releases the Company and its directors,
officers, employees, shareholders, partners, agents, attorneys, predecessors,
successors, parent and subsidiary entities, insurers, affiliates, and assigns
from any and all claims, liabilities and obligations, both known and unknown,
that arise out of or are in any way related to events, acts, conduct, or
omissions occurring at any time prior to and including the date Executive signs
this Release Agreement. The Company, its directors, officers, employees,
shareholders, partners, agents, attorneys, predecessors, successors, parent and
subsidiary entities, insurers, affiliates, and assigns, hereby releases
Executive and his heirs, executors, successors and assigns, from any and all
claims, liabilities and obligations, both known and unknown, that arise out of
or are in any way related to events, acts, conduct, or omissions occurring at
any time prior to and including the date the Company signs this Release
Agreement. This general mutual release includes, but is not limited to: (A) all
claims arising out of or in any way related to Executive's employment with the
Company or the termination of that employment; (B) all claims related to
Executive's compensation or benefits from the Company, including salary,
bonuses, commissions, vacation pay, expense reimbursements, severance pay,
fringe benefits, stock, stock options, or any other ownership interests in the
Company; (C) all claims for breach of contract, wrongful termination, and breach
of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing; (D) all tort claims,
including claims for fraud, defamation, emotional distress, and discharge in
violation of public policy; and (E) all federal, state, and local statutory
claims, including claims for discrimination, harassment, retaliation, attorneys'
fees, or other claims arising under the federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (as
amended), the federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the federal Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (as amended) ("ADEA"), the federal
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (as amended), and the California
Fair Employment and Housing Act (as amended); provided, however, that nothing in
this paragraph shall be construed in any way to release the Company from its
obligation to indemnify Executive pursuant to agreement, the Company's bylaws or
binding resolutions, or applicable law.

Executive acknowledges that he is knowingly and voluntarily waiving
and releasing any rights he may have under the ADEA, and that the consideration
given under his Employment Agreement with the Company for the waiver and release
in the preceding paragraph hereof is in addition to anything of value to which
he was already entitled. Executive further acknowledges that he has been advised
by this writing, as required by the ADEA, that: (A) this waiver and release does
not apply to any rights or claims that may arise after the date Executive signs
this Release Agreement; (B) Executive should consult with an attorney prior to
signing this Release Agreement (although Executive may choose voluntarily not do

so); (C) Executive has twenty-one (21) days to consider this Release Agreement
(although Executive may choose voluntarily to sign this Release Agreement
earlier); (D) Executive has seven (7) days following the date that he signs this

Release Agreement to revoke the Release Agreement by providing written notice to
an officer of the Company; and (E) this Release Agreement shall not be effective
until the date upon

Individual Termination



which the revocation period has expired, which shall be the eighth day after
Executive signs this Release Agreement.

Both Executive and the Company acknowledge that each has read and
understands Section 1542 of the California Civil Code which reads as follows: "A
GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR
SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF
KNOWN BY HIM MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR." Both
Executive and the Company hereby expressly waive and relinquish all rights and
benefits under that section and any law of any jurisdiction of similar effect
with respect to each party's release of any claims hereunder.

EXECUTIVE

Group Termination
EXHIBIT B
RELEASE AGREEMENT

Except as otherwise set forth in this Release Agreement or in
Sections 7 and 18 of the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
Douglas B. Hansen and Redwood Trust, Inc., Douglas B. Hansen ("Executive")
hereby generally and completely releases the Company and its directors,
officers, employees, shareholders, partners, agents, attorneys, predecessors,
successors, parent and subsidiary entities, insurers, affiliates, and assigns
from any and all claims, liabilities and obligations, both known and unknown,
that arise out of or are in any way related to events, acts, conduct, or
omissions occurring at any time prior to and including the date Executive signs
this Release Agreement. The Company, its directors, officers, employees,
shareholders, partners, agents, attorneys, predecessors, successors, parent and
subsidiary entities, insurers, affiliates, and assigns, hereby releases
Executive and his heirs, executors, successors and assigns, from any and all
claims, liabilities and obligations, both known and unknown, that arise out of
or are in any way related to events, acts, conduct, or omissions occurring at
any time prior to and including the date the Company signs this Release
Agreement. This general mutual release includes, but is not limited to: (A) all
claims arising out of or in any way related to Executive's employment with the
Company or the termination of that employment; (B) all claims related to
Executive's compensation or benefits from the Company, including salary,
bonuses, commissions, vacation pay, expense reimbursements, severance pay,
fringe benefits, stock, stock options, or any other ownership interests in the
Company; (C) all claims for breach of contract, wrongful termination, and breach
of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing; (D) all tort claims,
including claims for fraud, defamation, emotional distress, and discharge in
violation of public policy; and (E) all federal, state, and local statutory
claims, including claims for discrimination, harassment, retaliation, attorneys'
fees, or other claims arising under the federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (as
amended), the federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the federal Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (as amended) ("ADEA"), the federal
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (as amended), and the California
Fair Employment and Housing Act (as amended); provided, however, that nothing in
this paragraph shall be construed in any way to release the Company from its
obligation to indemnify Executive pursuant to agreement, the Company's bylaws or
binding resolutions, or applicable law.

Executive acknowledges that he is knowingly and voluntarily waiving
and releasing any rights he may have under the ADEA, and that the consideration
given under his Employment Agreement with the Company for the waiver and release
in the preceding paragraph hereof is in addition to anything of wvalue to which
he was already entitled. Executive further acknowledges that he has been advised
by this writing, as required by the ADEA, that: (A) this waiver and release does
not apply to any rights or claims that may arise after the date Executive signs
this Release Agreement; (B) Executive should consult with an attorney prior to



signing this Release Agreement (although Executive may choose voluntarily not do
so); (C) Executive has forty-five (45) days to consider this Release Agreement
(although he may choose voluntarily to sign this Release Agreement earlier); (D)
Executive has seven (7) days following the date that he signs this Release
Agreement to revoke the Release Agreement by providing written notice to an
officer of the Company; (E) this Release Agreement shall not be effective until
the date upon

Group Termination

which the revocation period has expired, which shall be the eighth day after
Executive signs this Release Agreement; and (F) Executive has received with this
Release Agreement a detailed list of the job titles and ages of all employees
who were terminated in this group termination and the ages of all employees of
the Company in the same job classification or organizational unit who were not
terminated.

Both the Executive and the Company acknowledge that each has read and
understands Section 1542 of the California Civil Code which reads as follows: "A
GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR
SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF
KNOWN BY HIM MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR." Both
the Executive and the Company hereby expressly waive and relinquish all rights
and benefits under that section and any law of any jurisdiction of similar
effect with respect to each party's release of any claims hereunder.

EXECUTIVE



EXHIBIT 11.1

REDWOOD TRUST, INC.
COMPUTATION OF PER SHARE EARNINGS

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Three Months Three Months
Ended Ended
March 31, 2003 March 31, 2002
<S> <C> <C>
Basic:
Average common shares outstanding ............c..iiiiiiiiiiiinan. 16,412,867 13,658,443
Total 16,412,867 13,658,443
Net Income $14,931,689 $11,218,789
Per Share Amount $ 0.91 $ 0.82
DILUTED:
Average common shares outstanding ........c.oeiiiiiiiiiiiennnneens 16,412,867 13,658,443
Net effect of dilutive stock options outstanding
during the period -- based on the treasury stock method 570,646 418,962
Total 16,983,513 14,077,405
Net Income $14,931,689 $11,218,789
Per Share Amount S 0.88 S 0.80

</TABLE>



EXHIBIT 99.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.s.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Redwood Trust, Inc. (the "Company"
on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2003 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, George E. Bull
III, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss.
1350, as adopted pursuant to ss. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the
Company .

George E. Bull
Chief Executive Officer
May 15, 2003

This certification is made solely for purpose of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, subject
to the knowledge standard contained therein, and not for any other purpose.



Exhibit 99.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Redwood Trust, Inc. (the "Company")
on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2003 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Harold F. Zagunis,
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350,
as adopted pursuant to ss. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Harold F. Zagunis
Harold F. Zagunis

Chief Financial Officer
May 15, 2003

This certification is made solely for purpose of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, subject
to the knowledge standard contained therein, and not for any other purpose.
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